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Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.
Bill passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by the

Ron. N. E. Baxter (Minister for Health),
and passed.

ANGLICAN CHURCH OF
AUSTRALIA BILL

Second Reading
Debate resumed from the 11th November.
THE HON. R. F. CLAUGHTON (North

Metropolitan) [5.19 p.mn.]: The Opposition
supports this Bill which makes operative
the change in name from the Church of
England in Australia to the Anglican
Church of Australia. The only comment I
would make is that perhaps it is sympto-
matic of the times in Australia when there
Is a greater sense of nationalism that this
should be reflected in the major churches.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.
Bill passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by the

Hon. N. McNeill (Minister for Justice), and
transmitted to the Assembly.

ADJOURNMENT OF THE HOUSE:
SPECIAL

THE HION. N. McNEILL (Lower West-
Minister for Justice) [5.21 p.m.] I move-

That the House at Its rising adjourn
until 2.30 p.m. Wednesday, the 17th
November.

Question Put and Passed.
House adjourned at 5.22 p.m.

?1rothlattuv Atirmhlyi
Tuesday, the 16th November, 1976

The SPEAKER (Mr Hutchinson) took
the Chair at 4.30 p.m., and read prayers.

BILLS (10): ASSENT
Message from the Governor received and

read notifying assent to the following
Bills-

1. Teacher Education Act Amendment
Bill.

2. Rural and Industries Bank Act
Amendment Bill.

3. Iron Ore (Hamnersley Range) Agree-
ment Act Amendment Bill.

4. Iron Ore (Mount Bruce) Agreement
Act Amendment Bill.

5. Education Act Amendment Bill (No.
2).

6. Stamp Act Amendment Bill.
'7. Local Government Act Amendment

Bill (No. 5).
8. Nickel (Agnew) Agreement Act

Amendment Bill.
9. Small Claims Tribunals Act Amend-

ment Bill.
10. Rights in Water and Irrigation Act

Amendment Bill.

BILLS (4): MESSAGES
Apropiations

Messages from the Governor received
and read reccrmending appropriations
for the purposes of the following Bills-

1. Superannuation and Family Benefits
Act Amendment Bill.

2. Acts Amendment (Judicial Salaries
and Pensions) Bill.

3. Parliamentary Superannuation Act
Amendment Bill1.

4. Leal Aid Commission Bill.

BILLS 12):- RETURNED
1. Pay-roll Tax Assessment Act Amend-

ment Bill.
2. Licensed Surveyors Act Amendment

Bill.
Bills returned from the Council with-

out amendment.

EVIDENCE ACT AMENDMENT BILL
(No. 2)

Receipt and First Reading
Bill received from the Council; and, on

motion by Mr O'Neil (Minister for Works).
read a first time.

MEMBER FOR ASCOT: ALLEGATIONS
AGAINST A MINISTER OR

MINISTERS
inquiry byg Select Committee: Statement
MR BRYCE (Ascot) [4.35 p.m.]: Mr

Speaker, I seek leave to make a personal
statement.

The SPEAKER: I warn members that
a dissentient voice will result in the hon-
ourable member being unable to make the
statement, Is leave granted?

Leave is granted.
Mr BRYCE: On the 9th November-

during the course of debate-I said certain
things about the manipulation of capital
by Ministers and by one Minister in par-
ticular.
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On the 10th November, the Premier (Sir
Charles Court) gave notice of his intention
to move for the establishment of a Select
Committee to inquire into and to report
upon the statements I had made.

On the 11th November. the member for
Kalamunda moved to appoint the Select
Committee foreshadowed by the Premier.

Throughout the debate on the motion
during that day and the morning of the
next the Opposition made it clear that-

(1) the inquiry was welcomed;
(2) the Inquiry would be looking into

matters that made it unique in
Western Australia's political
history; that is, members of
Parliament would be inquiring
into statements made by another
member of Parliament during the
course of a parliamentary debate;

(3) the unique nature of the inquiry
made essential the need to
exclude any bias that Might
flavour the committee's deilbera-
tions.

it was this last consideration that caused
the opposition to move a series of amend-
ments aimed at--

(1) bringing forward for inquiry seri-
ous allegations against the probity
of the Premier;

(2) attempting to dispense with the
sub judice rule which prohibits de-
bate here, or in the Select Com-
mittee, which the Premier says is
an extension of Parliament, of the
financial dealings of the Premier;

(3) affording to witnesses the sort of
protection considered essential to
prevent intimidation and uncover
the truth;

(4) requiring the Select Committee to
hold public hearings;

(5) allowing the political party in the
minority on the Select Committee
to call witnesses thus ensuring all
testimony would be available to
the committee.

Each of these amendments was rejected
by the Government using Its superior num-
bers in the H-ouse.

Shortly before 3.00 a.m. on the 12th
November the motion establishing the Sel-
ect Committee was passed. Then the Gov-
ernment, after gagging debate, Insisted that
the committee should bring down Its report
within less than a week.

In one last effort to ensure fair play, the
Opposition moved to add one more mnem-
ber to the committee equalising the politi-
cal representation on it. There was ample
precedent for this, but the Government
again rejected the proposal.

The SPEAKER: Will the honourable
member please resume his seat? I find it
very difficult indeed to determine what the
member is trying to do. His recitation of

past events is something that is not per-
mitted. as a personal explanation. If he
had been able to give me some earlier
idea I would be able to understand. If
the member will remember, I asked him to
give me some idea of this before we came
into the Chamber, but it was then too
late. So I ask the member to condense
his recitation of past events and come to
the point of his personal explanation.

Mr BRYCE: I am happy to do that, Mr
Speaker.

When the committee convened at 9.00
am. on Monday, the 15th November, both
Opposition members were present. I was
called to appear on the same day. Mr
Speaker and members, the Select Com-
mittee set up by this House on Thursday
last was conceived in an atmosphere of
political one-upmanship.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the memn-
ber resume his seat? I have allowed the
member very considerable latitude in re-
citing past events leading up to the es-
tablishment of a Select Committee to
inquire into allegations made by the mem-
ber for Ascot, and now he is going further
to talk about political one-upmanship in
the appointment of the committee, That
is reflecting on an action of the House-
something he is not permitted to do. I
will give the member one more opportunity
to convey, without needless objectionable
descriptive terms, the sentiment which he
wants to convey In his personal statement.

Mr ERYCE: I shall. Mr Speaker, I mean
to spell out in the clearest possible terms
that we believe a genuine far-reaching in-
quiry is essential: We believe that no mem-
ber should be permitted-

The SPEAKER: This is not-

Mr BRYCE: On the contrary, it is very
clearly-within the space of a couple of
sentences I can assure you-

The SPEAKER: I will permit you to go
up to the point where I will adjudicate as
to the rightness or wrongness of your per-
sonal explanation. I warn you that I have
been very tolerant indeed about what you
have said so far.

Mr BRYCE: Mr Speaker-

The SPEAKER: Make the next few
sentences very Pertinent to the point I
am after.

Mr BRYCE: We believe on this day the
Court Government faces the most serious
charges to confront any Government in
our State's history.

The SPEAKER: order! The member
will resume his seat. I cannot accept, in
all honesty, a personal statement charged
In the terms in which this has been
charged. It has no foundation whatsoever
for a personal statement.
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PREMIER AND MINISTER FOR
POLICE: FINANCIAL INTERESTS

AND DEALINGS
Inquiry by Royal Commnission: Notice

of Motion
MR BRYCE (Ascot) [4.43 p.m.1: I give

notice that at the next sitting of the
House I intend to move the following
motion-

That a Royal Commission com-
prised of at least two Judges be
appointed to inquire into and report
upon-

(1) the following matters of grave
concern-

With respect to the
Premier:-

(a) That during that
period when Sir
Charles Court was
the Minister f or
Industrial Develop-
ment responsible for
negotiating with
interests seeking to
develop our State's
Iron ore reserves, he
was offered In writ-
ing. an allotment of
shares by Haznersley
Holdings Limited.
The letter requested
Sir Charles Court to
specify the number
of shares he thought
was appropriate.
Sir Charles Court
replied in writing
that he thought the
company should
determine what was a
reasonable number of
shares.
On the 18th day of
may, 1967. 3000
shares were Issued to
Cherrita Pty. Ltd., a
company over which
Sir Charles Court
bad absolute control
-since that time
Cherrita Pty. Ltd.
has acquired a
further 1 942 shares
in Hamersley Hold-
ings Limited.
Subsequent to the In-
itial offer Sir Charles
Court was later to go
on public record as
claiming he would re-
ject any shares of-
fered to him on a
preferred basis.

(b) That during the same
period when he was
Minister for Indus-
t r i a 1 Development

and while exercising
the same absolute
con trol over Cherrita
Pty. Ltd., that com-
pany was offered and
accepted 1 500 shares
in Comalco Limited.
Comalco Limited was.
and Is, a public com-
pany engaged in in-
dustrial activity with-
in Western Australia.

(c) That during his term
of office as a senior
Minister in the Gov-
ernment, Sir Charles
Court held a sig-
nificant Interest in
Kimberley Finance
Corporation L td..
through the share-
holding of Cherrita
Pty. Ltd.
Kimberley Finance
Corporation Limited
had financial deal-
ings with the State
owned Rural and In-
dustries Bank. At the
time, the Premier's
family a nd long
standing business as-
sociates also had sig-
nificant interests in
Kimberley Finance
Corporation Ltd.

(d) That on the 14th of
September, 1972, the
Premier said in a
Personal Explanation
in this House:-

" Tb e important
thing I desire to
make clear to the
House is that:-
(a) my sharehold-

ing in Cherrita.
Pty. Ltd. Is a
v e ry nominal
one .. ."1

This Statement was untrue.
The truth is, that from
the incorporation of
Cherrita on 15th Septem-
ber, 1982 until af ter he
ceased to be Minister for
Industrial Development-
Sir Charles Court was the
sole Director of that com-
pany.
He had absolute power
over the Government and
control of his company.
He had the right to ex-
ercise eight times the
voting power of all other
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shareholders and com-
plete control over the dils-
tribution of the com-
pany's profits.
The Premier deliberately
misled the House in order
to conceal that Cherrita's
manipulation of capital
was his manipulation of
capital,

With respect to the Minis-
ter for Police:-

(a) That this Minister
deliberately involved
himself in a financial
transaction with the
Government in which
he is a Minister and
in which transaction
he had-through his
wile-a pecuniary in-
terest.
That during the
Period of his involve-
ment he sought and
gained access to con-
fidential information
the province of an-
o t h e r Government
Department.
That during the
Period of this Min-
ister's Involvement
the price eventu-
ally paid by the
Government for
certain land In
Innaloo increased
substantially. During
the period of this
Minister's involve-
ment he caused the
entire transaction to
be expedited by
virtue of his office as
aL Minister of the
Crown.

(b) That this Minister
approved an applica-
tion by Premier
Motors Pty. Ltd. to
market about 200
Fiat vehicles without
adhering to the pro-
cedures required for
determining accept-
able safety stand-
ards.
That shortly after-
wards the Minister
was involved in the
acquisition of a Flat
Motor Vehicle
through the company
to which be had
given compliance
plate exemption. The
vehicle so acquired
was subsequently

registered at an
address other than
the correct address
of the owner.

(2) as to whether the alleged
actions of the said Ministers
were compatible with or desir-
able while holding their office
of Minister oi the Crown.

(3) further, the Royal Commis-
sion should investigate and
make recommendations in
respect of details for legisla-
tion requiring Members of
Parliament to disclose their
business and financial
interests.

Opposition members: Hear, hear I
The SPEAKER: Order! I will accept this

motion as of now with the reservation
that I will examine it subsequently and,
in the light of my examination, determine
whether or not the motion is in order-
whether it is sub ludice or for any other
reason It is not in order-and If I find
it to be out or order I will disallow it.
If I do not find it to be out of order I
will commit It to procedure.

Mr Grayden; It is full of rubbish-

Point of Order
Mr A. R. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, I

wonder If you can help the House about
the way in which you will indicate that
parts of that notice of motion are out of
order-whether they will be changed on
the notice paper or whether an announce-
ment will be made to the House.

The SPEAKER: This is a rather extra-
ordinary point of order. However, I advise
the member for Morley that I will con-
sider the matter and determine whether
or not it Is in order as such.

THE HON. F. J1. S. WISE
Presence in Chamber

THE SPEAKER (Mr Hutchinsan): At
this juncture I want to advise members
of the House that I have a distinguished
guest in the person of the Hon. Frank
Wise, who is a former Premier of Western
Australia and Administrator of the North-
ern Territory. I have permitted him to sit
in the VIP sect) n behind the Speaker's
Chair.

INDUSTRIAL ARBITRATION ACT
AMENDMENT BILL (No. 3)

introduction and First Reading

Bill introduced, on motion by Mr Gray-
den (Minister for Labour and Industry),
and read a first time.
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Second Reading
MR GRAYDEN (South Perth-Minister

for Labour and Industry) (4.53 p.m.]: I
move-

That the Bill be now read a, second
time.

Mr B. T. Burke: Union bashing!
Mr GRAYDEN: It is not the unions, it

I--
Mr B. T. Burke: He's off!i
Mr H. D. Evans: Polish up the Jack-

boots!
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mrt GRAYDEN: This is a Bill to amend

the requirements for workers to obtain
exemption from union membership under
section 6iB of the Industrial Arbitration
Act.

Mr Davies:, Why are you shaking?
Mr GRAYDEN: As far back as 1938

the Arbitration Court used Its broad
powers to insert preference -to- unionist
clauses in some awards. This placed a
union member in a somewhat privileged
position. Obviously there was a realisa-
tion then, just as there is today, that re-
sponsible unionism is of benefit to the
worker.

In the Interests of industry and the
welfare of the employees engaged therein
it is advantageous for an employee to be
covered by an industrial award or agree-
ment. It may be expected therefore that
such workers 'who subscribe to the prin-
ciples of unionism should also subscribe
to the cost of the organisation to enable
it to provide and maintain its services to
its members.

A corollary to this is that a worker
should not be denied his individual right
to decide for himself whether or not he
subscribes to the tenets of unionism or
'whether or not he wishes to elect to apply
for membership.

Responsible unionism does not mean
compulsory unionism.

It was always Intended that a unionist
should accept free competition from those
who Preferred to remain nonunionist. For
a long time the Industrial Arbitration Act
has, in a specific provision, provided pro-
tection to a worker from discrimination
against him if he happens to be a union
member. That principle is supported.

However, the stage has clearly been
reached, in view of events of the past year,
where a person who Is a nonunion member
must also be protected from discrimina-
tion because of that fact. Society can no
longer tolerate a situation where a citizen
has no freedom to work except under
licence from a union. Unions in fact exist
only because society has provided a legis-
lative framework for their establishment.

Mr Skidmore: Unions exist because they
have been told by society that they exist.

Mr GRAYDEN: We have reached a
stage where the most important thing
about a worker is not his character, his
skills or his qualifications, but whether or
not he holds a union ticket.

Mr Harman: Who wrote this rubbish
for you?

Mr GRAYDEN: The right to live in-
cludes the right to work.

Government members: Hear, hear!

Mr ORAYDEN: The exercise of the
right to work must be protected and main-
tained free from undue restraints and
coercion.

Government members: Hear, hear!
Mr GRAYDEN: The United Nations'

Declaration of Human Rights adopted by
the General Assembly of the United
Nations on the loth December, 1948, says
in article 20 (1) and (2)-

Everyone has the right to freedom
of peaceful assembly and association.

No-one may be compelled to belong
to an association.

Some division of opinion by union leaders
has been observed In recent public ex-
pressions as to the need for preference
clauses in awards. it has been said that
in the case of some unions they are seldom
used and could even be discarded and that
good union leadership does not depend on
preference privileges.

Good union leadership is as important
to the union movement as it is to the
industry In which its members are em-
ployed. Events in recent times in Western
Australia have demonstrated that some
unions will viciously penalise workers who
happen to disagree with their coercive and
stand-over tactics; tactics which often
involve the union leaders and the unions
acting contrary to the law and against
the best interests of the community.

Glaring abuses of the preference
clauses have occurred where union officials
have confronted employers over the use
of workers 'who are not members of the
unions.

Mr Skidmore: That is in accordance
with the preference clause.

Mr GRAYDEN: interference to concrete
pours, which can be very costly to a con-
tractor If the pour is stopped once in pro-
gress, has forced contractors to pay
union fees at the site to have workers
apply for union membership immediately.

Mr Skidmore: That's a lot of malarkey!
Mr GRAYDEN: The alternative is

severe economic loss to the contractor.
Such blatant acts of vandalism and intirn-
idatory tactics by militant union leaders
are intolerable and infringe upon the
individual fights of a6 worker.

Governiment members: Hear, hear!I
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Mr GRAYDEN: It was never intended
that the enforcement of the preference
clause should lead to disputes affecting
the public, the economy or the livelihood
of workers.

One can cite the examples of the eight
plumbers at Kwinana, the risks that
workers took in defying the unions' calls
to strike over Medibank, and the coercive
tactics used against people whom some
sections of the union movement scur-
rilously label "scabs".

Mr Skldmnore: You have a pectuniary
interest in the Kwlnana example.

Mr GRAYDEN: The unions, regrettably,
have moved well outside their true areas of
industrial competence and have moved
Increasingly to act in opposition to decis-
ions taken by the freely elected Parlia-
ments of this country.

Labor leaders have defended the right
of unions to take industrial action on
political issues, thus challenging the very
establishment of parliamentary democracy.

Mr Bertram: Who wrote that for You?
Mr GRAYDEN: That such union action

can be sustained by reason of financial
resources flowing from the imposition of
compulsory unionism on citizens regard-
less of their political beliefs, is a matter
of critical concern and consequence for
the entire community.

The overt actions of the militant unions
and the obvious ground swell of discontent
and reaction from the community against
the totalitarian exercise of power by some
unions on the question of union member-
ship is so great that no Government can
allow the deteriorating situation to con-
tinue without positive action to reassert
the freedom on which this society is built.

Mr Harman: Very emotive language!
Mr GRAYDEN: It is the essence of a

free society that the individual is of prim-
ary concern.

Mr Jamieson: Who wrote this, Orson
Welles?

Mr ORAYDEN: It is the essence of a
free society that the State exists to
serve the individual.

That essence is the very antithesis of
totalitarian philosophies which have never
concealed their contempt for the indivi-
dual.

The principles of liberalism find particu-
lar expression in the Liberal Party plat-
form on "Employment and Industrial Re-
lations" in this way.-

Every employee has a right to Join
a union. Equally, every employee has
the right not to do so.

That could not be clearer. Yet there is
a contradiction between these principles
and what Is practised by unions.

In almost every award of the Industrial
Commission in this State. there Is a pre-
ference provision which, in the eyes of a

union, makes it compulsory for an indi-
vidual to join the particular union which
has been ranted a monopoly on recruit-
ment in a particular area of employment.

The options thus facing the worker or
the employer on the job are these-

(1) The worker joins the union; or
(21 The union acts to prosecute the

worker in the Industrial Magi-
strates Court. In recent years, the
unions have prosecuted many
workers for this offence which
summary action also often re-
sults in forcing a worker to take
out membership to avoid convic-
tion for an offence.

Mr Harman: Which is the major union
which takes this action?

Mr GRAYDEN: To continue-
(3) The employer is required to dis-

miss such individual if the union
produces a union member to re-
place the nonconformist.

(4) The worker may within seven days
of the issue being raised apply to
the Industrial Registrar for ex-
emnption on the grounds of con-
scientious belief. Even in this
case unions have still declared
work sites as "no ticket-no start"
which penalises. employers who
may have engaged exempt labour
when no union member was offer-
ing for employment.

Whilst one must recognise the importance
of strong, responsible trade unions, and
indeed, the desirability of encouraging
people to join recognised organisations ap-
propriate to the interests of the individual,
it should be abhorrent to every supporter
of Individual liberty that a union replaces
"preference" with "compulsion".

No individual in our community should
be forced by the State to belong to any
union, especially when some of the unions
are so active in attacking parliamentary
democracy, and when so many unions are
financially supporting a political party-

Mr Skidmnore: Is this aL con Job?
Mr GRAYDFIN: --some of whose leaders

publicly advocate extra-parliamentary ex-
ercises of power In this country.

'Preference to unionists has been a plank
in the platform of the Labor Party for
years. In 1953 it endeavoured to pass a
Bill which would have made it mandatory
for the Arbitration Court, on the applica-
tion by an industrial union of workers, to
grant preference and impose such con-
ditions as the court thought fit. That
rather embracing measure fortunately was
defeated.

Mr Skidmore: Who introduced prefer-
ence to unionists?

Mr GRAYDEN: It was not till 1983 that
the Liberal-Country Party coalition Gov-
ermnent introduced the Current section SIB
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into the Act so that workers who were
being affected by the Preference clauses
which were being more widely inserted
into awards by the Arbitration Court, could
obtain exemption from the need to join a
union and yet have equal Preference to
those who are members.

It was sufficient reason to seek exemp-
tion on the grounds of "conscientious be-
lief" whether that belief was or was not
of a religious character or part of the
doctrine of any religion. The amendment
to section 61B in this Bill will delete the
requirement of a "concientious belief" to
apply for exemption.

Instead it will allow a Person who simply
objects to becoming a union member to
apply to the Industrial Registrar to re-
ceive a certificate of exemption.

Such person will still be required to pay
an amount annually, equivalent to the fees
of the union which covers the type of
work, to the State-which incurs con-
siderable expenses in the operation of the
industrial arbitration system-or otherwise
of his own choice to the Distressed Per-
sons' Relief Trust or to a Public charitable
or benevolent body or Institution as he
nominates.

I commend the Bill to the House.
Government Members: Hear, hear!
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr

Harman.

BILLS (4): INTRODUCTION AND
FIRST READING

1. Road Traffic Act Amendment Bill
(No. 3).

Bill introduced, on motion by Mr
O'Nell (Minister for Works), and
read a first time.

2. Alumina Refinery (Pinjarra) Agree-
ment Act Amendment Bill.

3. fron Ore (Tallering Peak) Agreement
Act Amendment Bill.

4. Albany Woollen Mills Ltd. Agree-
ment Bill.

Bills Introduced, on motions by Mr
Mensaros (Minister for Industrial
Development), and read a first
time.

QUESTIONS (45): ON NOTICE
1. ELECTRICITY SUPPIE&S

Accounts: Check on Payment

Mr DAVIES, to the Minister for Fuel
and Energy:
(1) What is the delay after a customer

Pays an account at a bank before
the head office of the State Energy
Commission is advised?

(2) What check Is made by the State
Energy Commission to see whether
an account is Paid before a. final
notice is issued?

Mr,

2.

MFTNSAROS replied:

TRAFFIC
Sign Posts: Standards

Mr B. T. BURKE, to the Minister for
Transport:
(1) Has any research been carried out

into the standard of sign posting
with respect to traffic movements
in the metropolitan area?

(2) If "Yes" will he Please Provide
details?

(3) Is he aware of any shortcoming
in sign Posting designed to guide
find warn motorists approaching
traffic lights or using freeways?

(4) What rules or standards govern
sign Posting used on approaches
to traffic lights or using freeways?

Mr O'Neil (for Mr O'CONNOR)
replied:
(1) and (2) No. Minimum require-

menits for signs are covered by the
Australian Standard AS-1742 Part
1 1975 and AB-1743-19'l5.

(3) 1 am not aware of any short-
comings in respect of approaches
to traffic signals. Some apparent
shortcomings in freeway signing
have been brought to the atten-
tion of the Main Roads Depart-
menit by members of the public
on occasions.
The situation Is reviewed from
time to time and, where Prac-
ticable. Improvementa are carried
out.

(4) Guidelines for signing of freeways
as set out In AS-1742 and 1143
of 1975.
In respect to signal approaches,
the department's signing Is better
than the Australian Standard re-
quirements since "Signals Ahead"
signs bearing the cross street
name are Progressively being
erected at all sites outside the
Perth central area.

(1) Banks forward advice of collec-
tions by mail at the close of each
working day.

(2) The customer is given 15 working
days to pay the original account.
Two further working days are al-
lowed for postal delays before the
final notice is sent.
All payments actually in the BBC
office are processed before final
notices are posted.
The member will know that the
commission is in the process of
implementing a data processing
system and that In the transi-
tional period some variations to
the above procedures may have
occurred. It is expected that the
few remaining problems will be
eliminated within the next three
to four weeks.
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3. ABORIGINES (2) Is he aware of any plan by the
Rental Homes

Mtr B. T. BURKE, to the Minister for
Housing:
(1) Are there any restrictions on the

type, standard or descriptions of
State Housing Commission rental
Properties that are presently let
to Aborigines?
If so, what are they?
Can an Aboriginal family be
granted the tenancy of any SliC
rental home in country areas?

(4) Are non-Aborigines given prefe-
rence over Aborigines In the allo-
cation of rental homes in country
areas?

Mr P. V. JONES replied:
(1) and (2) The commission currently

Provides rental accommodation
with funds provided under the
Housing Agreement (Common-
wealth and State) 1973 Act and
the Aboriginal Housing Fund.
Under (a) the Housing Agreement
(Commonwealth and State) 1973
Act-applicants, Caucasians or
Aboriginals, meeting acceptable
standards in domestic hygiene,
credit worthiness, social behaviour
and a means test are eligible for
assistance in housing.
Under (b) the Aboriginal Hous-
ing Fund-applicants of Abori-
ginal descent only and who do
not meet the above criteria or
who specially wish it are eligible
for housing.
Housing for Aboriginal people
consists of:-
(0) Conventional design for urban

living and meeting Local
Authority Building by-laws.

(ii) Village type for tribalised liv-
ing designed and constructed
after consultation with the
tribal elders.

(3) Yes. Provided the family meets
the criteria in (1).

(4) No. Non-Aboriginal applicants
are restricted to housing funded
under the Housing Agreement
1973 and treated in date of appli-
cation order unless there is a
housing hardship sufficient to
warrant emergent treatment, or
some other influencing considera-
tion.

4. LOCAL GOVERNMENT
Retirement of omilens: Ex Gratia

Payments
Mr B. T. BURKE, to the Minister for
Local Government:
(1) What rules govern the ex gratia

Payment by councils to officers
planning early retirement?

Katanning Shire Council to make
such a payment to one of its
officers?

(3) If "No" will he inquire and Pro-
vide information about any such
plan?

Mr RUSHTON replied:
(1) Section 168 of the Local Govern-

ruent Act.
(2) Yes.
(3) Not applicable.

5. COMMUNITY RECREATION
COUNCIL

Nomenclature
Mr B. T. BURKE, to the Minister
representing the Minister for Recrea-
tion:
(1) Is there any plan to change the

(2)

(3)

name of the Community Recrea-
tion Council?
if "Yes" what name change is
planned?
Will any name change denote a
change in the function or em-
phasis of the council?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) The question has been raised

from within the council itself and
Is currently under discussion.

(2) It has been suggested that the
word "sport" be included in the
title.

6.

'7.

(3) No, the suggestion
identification of
with the council.

relates to the
sportspeople

BALDIVIS SCHOOL
Replacement

Mr BARNETT, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:
(1) Further to the Minister's anawei

to my question 15 where Is the:
land referred to in part (2) of his
answer?

(2) When is it now proposed that
work will commence on a replace-
ment school for Baldivis?

Mr ORAYDEN replied:
(1) Negotiations to secure an alter-

native site on Fifty Road are still
proceeding.

(2) Dependent on fund availability
and satisfactory site, a replace-
ment building will be scheduled
during 1977.

ABATTOIRS
Slaughtering Charges

Mr BLAIKIE, to the Minister for
Agriculture:
(1) What are the costs of slaughter-

ing a 200 kg dressed weight animal
at-
(a) Midland abattoir, Western

Australia;

(2)
(3)
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(b)
(c)

(d)

Samcor (South Australia):
Homebush (New South
Wales); and
Cannon Hill (Queensland)?

8.

(2) Further to (1). when were
charges last increased and would
he Indicate the percentage of
increase at each facility?

(3) Since December 1973, would he
advise what effect labour costs.
including additional weeks leave.
increased compensation benefit.
etc., has had in Increasing slaugh-
tering charges at Midland abat-
toir?

(4) (a) Have increased labour costs
and/or Increased killing charges
had any noticeable effect on the
viable operation of Midland abat-
toir: and
(b) if so. would he indicate?

Mr OLD replied:
Local Export

(1) (a) Midland..... .. .25.15 22.31
(b) Saincor..
(c) Homnebush
,d) Cannon Hill

.. 28.71 28.'71

.. 32.87 31.47

.. 28.53 27.61
Fees Include Commonwealth levies
and inspection charges where the
meat is intended for domestic
consumption.

(2) Mldland-l3th September, 1976-
12 per cent.

Samcor-9th September, 1976-4
per cent.

Homebush-Sth April, 1976- 9.5
per cent.

Cannon HiII-Oth September, 1978
-8.78 per cent.

(3) and (4) In the period from De-
cember 1973 to September 1978
meat Industry award wage rates
Increased by 66 per cent.
Labour expense charges also in-
creased substantially during this
period with an increase in workers'
compensation Premium rates of
over 400 per cent.
Labour costs and the related
labour expense charges are the
major operating costs within the
meat industry. At ivdland Abat-
toir during 1975-76 these costs
totalled $10 362 000 out of a total
operating cost of t16 616 000 re-
presenting 62.3 per cent of the
total costs.
The substantial increases in wage
rates, which have occurred in re-
cent years, have therefore had a
serious trnpact on the overall cost
structure of the abattoir.

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Laporte Titanium: Effluent

Mr BLAIKIE, to the Minister for Con-
servation and the Environment:
(1) (a) When was the pipeline dis-

charging effluent from Laporte
at Sunbury extended; and

(b) what is the present length of
the discharge line?

(2) (a) What is the daily amount of
effluent discharge;

(b) has this amount increased
during the Previous 12
months;

(c) If so, by what quantity?
(3) What research is undertaken by

his departments to ensure minimal
interference to fishing resource
and ocean and beach ecology?

(4) As he is aware that professional
fishermen have claimed deposits
of effluent material from Laporte
have been sighted in the vicinity
of Bunker Bay, will he ensure
that Geographe Bay is subject to
close scrutiny by his department
before the Government makes a
final decision on the location and
rate of discharge of the Laporte
discharge into the ocean?

Mr P. V. JONES replied:
(1) (a) and (b) The Pipeline dischsrg-

Ing effluent from Laporte Into
disposal areas on Lesehenault
Peninsula is extended from
time to time to accommodate
varying disposal sites. In
February of this year a So mm
plastic pipeline was Installed
to a distance of 5.5 kma off-
shore.

(2) (a) Total 7 300 m3 Per day, of
which 90 m' Is discharged
through the 50 mam line.

(b) and (c) No.
(3) Under the direction of a specialist

committee drawn from various
Government departments, CSIRO,
the University of WA, private
consultants and with the full co-
operation and assistance of the
company a programme of oceano-
graphic and ecological research is
In progress.

(4) It is by no means certain that the
material sighted in Bunker Bay
Is effluent from LaPorte. The
studies mentioned In (3) should
be adequate to determine the dis-
persal characteristics of the efflu-
ent plume, and no decision on
future effluent disposal will be
made by Government until
the results of the studies are
thoroughly evaluated.
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9. 11.POLICE
Fire Bombing Offence

Mr B. T. BURKE, to the Minister for
Police:
(1) Is wilful damage through fire

bombing a serious offence?
(2) Will he investigate the matter of

a defendant convicted of this of-
fence during September?

(3) If "Yes' what action will the
Government take to prevent a
repeat of this situation?

Mr O'Neil (for Mr O'CONNOR) re-
pied:
(1) A misdemneanour, penalty two

years' imprisonment. If the
offence is committed by night,
the penalty is three years' Im-
prisonment.

(2) and (3) All wilful damage
offences are investigated, and
when evidence is gained to sus-
tain a charge, the offender(s) are
Prosecuted.

CANNING VALE
INDUSTRIAL AREA

Land Acquisition: Inquiry by
Mr K. J. Tournsing

Mr BATEMAN, to the Premier:
With reference to his remarks as
published In The West Australian
newspaper that he had appointed
Mr K. Townsing, a former Under-
Treasurer, to investigate certain
alleged allegations regarding the
Canning Vale industrial land deal-
ings:
(1) Was it his decision or was It

a Cabinet decision to appoint
Mr K. Townsing?

(2) Could he further advise why
the Parliament was not in-
formed?

(3) Would he also give considera-
tion to the official appoint-
ment of Mr W. Adams, a
former Auditor-General, to
assist Mr Townsing with his
investigations?

(4) If not, why not?
Sir CHARLES COURT replied:

(1) Cabinet.
(2) The circumstances made an-

nouncement In the Press quite
adequate, the more so as alle-
gations were generated in the
media not In Parliament.

(3) NO.
(4) Mr Townslng is a person of

undoubted Integrity, experi-
ence and competence.
If Mr Adams has anything
to contribute, he should con-
tact Mr Townsing and convey
It to him.

CANNING VALE
INDUSTRIAL AREA

Land Acquisition: Compensation to
R. M. Rowell

Mr BATEMAN, to the Minister for
Industrial Development:

With reference to my question 28
of 10th November, 1976, will he
further advise was Mr R. MA.
Rowell paid in accordance with
section 6D (A) of the Industrial
Lands Development Act 1966-
1972?

Mr MENSAROS replied:
Yes. Mr R. M. Rowell as part
shareholder and creditor of the
Canning Land and Minerals Pty.
Ltd. was paid according to the
provisions of section 6iD (a) of
Industrial Lands Development Act
1966-1972.

CANNING VALE
INDUSTRIAL AREA

Canning Land and Minerals
Ply. Ltd.

Mr BATEMAN, to the Minister for
Industrial Development:
(1) What nominees were used to

acquire the shares in Canning
Land and Minerals Pty. Ltd.?

(2) Was section 60 (a) of the Indus-
trial Lands Development Auth-
ority Act used?

(3) If not, what State authority was
used to acquire the shares and
how much was paid for these
shares?

Mr

13.

MENSAROS replied:
(1) Sydney Maurice Gorton and

Robert Norwood Howie, employees
of Parker and Parker. solicitors.

(2) and (3) Yes. The shares cost
$43 512 and repayment of loans
to the company cost $108 038, the
total being the value of the com-
pany's only asset, its land.

CANNING VALE
INDUSTRIAL AREA

Land Acquisition: Involvement of
R. M. Rowell

Mr BATEMAN, to the Minister for
Industrial Development:
(1) Was the W.A. Liberal Party cam-

paign director Mr R. MA. Rowell
involved in any way with the Can-
ning Vale land acquired by the
Industrial Lands Development
Authority?

(2) If so. when?
(3) Was any Canning Vale land held

by companies associated with Mr
Rowell?

(4) When was it surrendered or sold
and for what price?

(5) Who is the current owner?

12.

10.
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Mr MENSAROS replied
(1) Mr R. M. Howell was one of four

shareholders in Canning Land and
Minerals Pty. Ltd. which owned,
since before the formation of the
Industrial Lands Development
Authority, about 31 ha of land
within the project area. The
company was bought by the
authority's nominees, since it re-
fused to sell its land, Its sole
asset.
This was Mr Howell's only associ-
ation with the acquisition of land
for the project and he, like all
other owners at the time, had no
knowledge that the authoriLy was
the purchaser.

(2) The purchase was made under
agreement dated 21st October,
1971. during the term of the
Labor Government.

(3) See- (1).
(4) See (2) and also my answer to

question 12. The price was con-
sistent with other prices negoti-
ated at the time.

(5) The industrial Lands Develop-
ment Authority owns about 80%
of the area and the remainder
falls into the area being sold
under contract of sale to the Swan
Brewery Company Limited.

14. CANNING VALE
INDUSTRIAL AREA

Land Acquisition: Commissions

Mr BATEMAN, to the Minister for
Industrial Development:
(1) Was trustees' commission paid on

behalf of the Government to any
individual representing any other
organisation in relation to Can-
ning Vale land deals other than
those previously mentioned by
him?

(2) If "Yes" will he give a complete
list of all individuals who received
commissions or other payments
for their assistance to the Gov-
ernment in acquiring land for the
Canning Vale Industrial complex?

Mr MENSAROS replied:
(1) No.
(2) Not applicable.

15. ALCOHOLICS AND
DRUG ADDICTS
Treatment Cost

Mr DAVIES, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Health:.
(1) Can the Minister estimate the

annual cost of treatment of alco-
holics and drug addicts by-
(a) Mental Health Services:
(b) Government hospitals,

as distinct from money spent by
the Alcohol and Drug Authority?

(2) What is the budget for the Alcohol
and Drug Authority for this fin-
ancial year?

Mr RIDGE replied:
(1) Separate records are not kept of

alcoholics and drug addicts by
either Mental Health Services or
Government hospitals. However,
I am advised that since the Alco-
hol and Drug Authority has been
conducting its several hospitals
and clinics, there has been a
notable decline in these types of
cases in both areas.

(2) The following are the budgets
for the various sections of the
Alcohol and Drug Authority for
1978-77:

Administration and
Carrellis Clinic ...

Aston Hospital-oper-
ating .... ...........

Ord Street Hospital-
operating..... .....

Quo Vadis--operating

16.

403 800

354 750

341 790
487 400

Note: The Aston Hospital, Ord
Street and Quo Vadis all come
within the scope of the Common-
wealth-State Hospitals Cost Shar-
ing Agreement.
Cost of administration and Car-
rellis Clinic are subject to a 90%
recoup from the Commonwealth
Government.

EDUCATION
School Terms for 1977

Mr DAVIES, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:

Would the Minister be good
enough to list school terms for
1977?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
1st Term 1971: 7th February to

13th May, inclusive
2nd Term 1977: 30th May to 26th

August, Inclusive
3rd Term 1977: 12th September

to 16th December, Inclusive.

17. PUBLIC HOLIDAYS
List for 1977

Mr DAVIES, to the Minister for Labour
and Industry:

Would he be good enough to list
public holidays for 1977?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
1977 Public and bank holidaysj
under the Public and Bank Holi-
days Act:

3993
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1st January-Saturday-New
Years Day-holiday is cele-
brated on Monday 3rd Janu-
ary.

31st January-Monday-Austra-
lia Day

7th March-Monday-Labour
day

8th April-F-riday-Good Fri-
day

11Ith April-Monday-Easter
Monday

25th April-Monday-Anzac
Day

8th June-Monday-Foundationl
Day

10th October-Monday-Queen's
Birthday

25th December-Sunday-
Christmas Day-holiday is
celebrated on Monday 26th
December

26th Decemnber-Monday-Box-
Ing Day-holiday Is cele-
brated on Thesday 27th De-
cember.

Ia. MIDLAND TECHNICAL
SCHOOL

Plans and Site

Mr SKIDMORE, to the Minister repre-
senting th~e Minister for Education;
(1) Are any plans being formulated

for the purpose of building a new
Midland technical school?

(2) If "Yes" is a site already selected
and when Is It envisaged that Ann
proposals will be submitted to
tender?

(3) If no new technical school Is at
the moment being considered for
the area, would the Minister give
consideration to upgrading the
existing facilities at the Midland
technical school?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) and (2) Planning of a new tech-

nical college has not commenced,
however, a suitable site has been
selected.

(3) Limited upgrading of existing
facilities is under consideration.

19. HEALTH
Derby: Free lnjections

Mr DAVIES, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Health:
(1) Is it possible for a child living in

Derby to receive free of charge
injections. etc., such as Insulin,
associated with the treatment of
diabetes?

(2) If not, what charges would be
raised arising from treatment at
the hospital?

Mr RIDGE replied:
(1) and (2) Yes.

20. PENSIONERS
Concessions and Benefits: Cost

of Inquiry

Mr DAVIES, to the Premier:
What was the cost of the inquiry
into pensioner benefits and con-
cessions?

Sir CHARLES COURT replied:
$7 766.16.

21. NEERA2BUP LAKE
NATIONAL PARK
Pumping Station

Mr A. R. TONKIN, to the Minister for
Conservation and the Environment:
(1) When was the National Parks

Authority first apprised of the
Intention to establish a pumping
station in what Is at present the
Lake Neerabup National Park?

(2) Was the 11th August meeting the
only one at which the proposal
was discussed?

(3) if not, what are the details?
(4) Will he table the minutes of the

authority's meeting for 11th
August and for any other date on
which the subject was discussed?

(5) What conditions or provisos were
required by the authority as a
condition of its agreement to the
proposed excision?

Mr
(1)

P. V. JONES replied:
8th July, 1974, in a letter to dir-
ector, as part of a proposal for
a reservoir.

(2) and (3) There was no meeting on
the 11th August, 1974.

(4) No. However. I have perused
minute No. 13 of 19th July, 1974,
which indicates that the director
reported on a meeting with the
Metropolitan Water Supply Board
and the Under-Secretary for
Lands regarding the establish-
ment of a reservoir in Necrabup
National Park, and which further
Indicated that following discus-
sion It was agreed to approve the
application.

(5) The Lands Department was ad-
vised by letter dated 25th July,
1974, of agreement to the appli-
cation provided every care was
taken to protect the natural flora,
particularly the blackboy stands
which abound in the area and
that on completion consideration
be given to landscaping the banks
of the reservoir.
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22. TEACHING HOSPITALS
Subsidy

Mr DAVIES, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Health:
(1) What was the total amount of

State Government subsidy for the
teaching hospitals for the years-
(a) 1974-75;
(b) 1975-76?

(2) What is the estimate for 1976-77?

Mr RIDGE replied:
(1) (a) $64 591282;

(b) $95 016 781.
(2) $115 912363.

23. SWAN VIEW HIGH SCHOOL
Recreation Facilities

Mr MOILER, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:

With regard to the Swan View
High School, will the Minister ad-
vise what recreation facilities are
to be available at the school at the
completion of the stage at present
under construction and in the
future and indicate approximately
when each facility will be avat il-
able for the students?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
Stage 1:
(a) A hall-gymnasium, available

February, 1977.
tb) A recreation oval and hockey

field, the grassing of which
will dictate their availability.

(c) Tennis courts (4), basketball
courts (2). available Febru-
ary, 1977.

Pour additional tennis courts will
be Provided with stage 2 and a
drama theatre with stage 3.

24. HOSPITALS
Funding. Agreement with

Commonwealth
Mr DAVIES, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Health:

Further to question 10 of 6th Oc-
tober, 1976, regarding the Aus-
tralian Government/Western Aus-
tralian Government agreement on
funding of hospitals, can the Min-
ister now advise If agreement has
been reached, and if so, table a
copy of the agreement?

Mr RIDGE replied:
Agreement has been reached be-
tween the Commonwealth and
State Governments and a copy of
the signed agreement is now
tabled.

The agreement was tabled (see papier
No. 552).

25. BENTLEY FOOD TRADES
SCHOOL

Liquor Licence
Mr DAVIES, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:
(1) Why is it not possible for the bar

at the Bentley Food Trades School
to be licensed?

(2) What is being done to overcome
the apparent impasse?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) The Education Department has

no desfre to license the bar at the
Bentley Technical College at this
time.

(2) No impasse exists.

26. PUBLIC SERVICE AND
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES

Ministerial Appointments

27.

Mr DAVIES, to the Premier:
(1) Referring to question 15 of 9th

November, 1976 regarding min-
isterial appointments, how many
such people are employed under
the provisions of the Public Ser-
vice Act?

(2) Do the figures given include part-
time as well as full-time em-
ployees?

Sir CHARLES COURT replied:
(1) None. The reply given in answer

to question 15 of 9th November,
1976, explained that no staff em-
ployed under the Provisions of the
Public Service Act were included
in the figure of 32 775 for minis-
terial appointments.

(2) Yes.

URBAN LAND COUNCIL
Auction ol Thornlie Blocks: Costs
Mr JAMIESON, to the Minister for
Urban Development and Town Plan-
ning:
tl) What was the cost of conducting

the urban lands council auction at
Thornlje recently, including ad-
vertising and agent's commission?

(2) How many lots have been sold
since the auction and how will the
remaining lots be released to pro-
spective buyers?

Mr RUJSHTON replied:
(1) The total cost of the auction and

subsequent sales was $17 905, in-
cluding agent's commission of
$8 043. The balance includes "once
up" expenditure on advertising,
brochures and signs, the benefit
of which will be reflected in future
lower selling costs for the remain-
ing 388 lot potential owned by
the Urban Land Council in this
area.
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(2) Twenty-seven lots have been sold
since the auction and the re-
maining two lots are available
from the agents, Kevin Sullivan
and Associates, and H. and R.
McLean.

28, NICHOLSON ROAD

Upgrading
Mr JAMIESON, to the Minister for
Transport:
(1) (a) What volume of traffic uses

Nicholson Road approaching
Albany Highway from the
south on a weekday morning
between 7 a.m. and 9 a.m. and
when was this measured;

(b) how many lanes are normally
required to cater for this vo-
lume of traffic?

(2) Has the Main Roads Department
or Town of Gosnells drawn any
plans for the upgrading of Nichol-
son Road between Albany High-
way and Canning River?

(3) When will the report of the traf-
fic study in the South East Cor-
ridor be complete?

(4) (a) What roads will carry the
traffic from Canning Vale in-
dustrial complex;

(b) who will be the construction
authorities for these roads
and where will the funds for
construction come from?

(5) When will the grade separation
planned for Albany Highway and
Leach Highway Intersection be
commenced and time from start
to finish?

Mr O'Neil (for Mr O'CONNOR) re-
plied:
(1) (a) 1 814 vehicles measured on

1st October, 1975;
(b) two lanes at a signal control-

led intersection.
(2) This road is the responsibility of

the Town of Gosnells. The Main
Roads Department has not drawn
up any plans.

(3) The South East Corridor Report
is being conducted by the Metro-
politan Region Planning Auth-
ority. A traffic study will be part
of the total report.
The report is not likely to be
completed within four months.

(4) (a) Nicholson Road and Nicol
Road for the present. Other
roads such as South Street
and Vahland Avenue and Roe
Freeway will be developed as
the need arises;

(b) the Main Roads Department
in the Case of Roe Freeway.
The local authorities In the
case of the remaining roads.

(5) No date has been set for this pro-
ject. Construction time would be
about 12 months.

29. LEACH HIGHWAY
Lighting

Mr JAMIESON, to the Minister for
Fuel and Energy:

Why has the State Energy Com-
mission not supplied the City of
Melville with plans for the light-
Ing of Leach Highway, despite
three requests in the past two
years?

Mr MENSAROS replied:
Discussions are currently pro-
ceeding between the State Energy
Commission, the Melville Town
Council and the Main Roads De-
partment mainly relative to the
costs and technical details associ-
ated with lighting Leach Highway.
When resolved a detailed plan
will be submitted.

30. HIGH SCHOOL AT
MANDURAH

Decision on Establishzment
Mr BRYCE, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:
(1) Has the Government made a firm

decision to build a high schorol in
Mandurah?

(2) If diYes' *
(a) when was the decision made;
ib) what type of school is to be

built:
(c) when will the school be built;
(d) where will the school be lo-

cated in Mandurah;
(e) does the Education Depart-

ment own suitable land in
Mandurah for a high school;

(f) has the Education Department
communicated its decision to
build the school to the Man-
durah Shire; and

(g) has the Mandurah Shire been
invited to participate in the
planning of the school?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) Yes.
(2) (a) Some months ago;

(b) not yet determined;
(c) within the next three years;
(d) probably on the high school

site In Boundary Head, Man-
durab;,

Ce) yes;
{f) no;
(g) until a question such as com-

bined use of a certain facility
arises, it is not the practice
to involve local authorities in
school planning.

$99is
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31. VASSE SCHOOL
Retention, and Maintenance Cost
Mr BRYCE, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:

Following the visit by the Min-
ister for Education to the Vasse
school-
(1) Is it the intention of the Gov-

ernment to keep this school
open?

(2) what is the estimated cost of
maintaining and upgrading-
(a) the principal's quarters;
(b) the school's buildings?

(3) (a) is it a fact that students
travel past the school to
attend other schools;

(b) if so, will the Minister
explain the rationale be-
hind such a decision by
the Education Depart-
ment?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) Yes.
(2) (a) The information is not yet

available;
(b) the estimated cost to upgrade

the buildings Is $14 550, plus
$12 000 for water supply.

(3) (a) Yes;
(b) parents in the district have

been given the option of at-
tending Vasse or one of the
larger schools in Busselton.

32. SPECIAL SCHOOL AT
KELLERBERR.IN

Decision on Establishimnt
Mr BRYCE, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:
(1) Has the Government made a deci-

sion to proceed with the establish-
ment of a new special school in
Kellerberrin?

(2) If the answer to (1) is "Yes" will
the Minister indicate when the
work will commence?

(3) if the answer to (1) is "No" can
the Minister indicate when a deci-
sion will be made?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) to (3) A new building is proposed

hut is dependent upon funding
becoming available from a future
programme.

33. HIGH SCHOOLS
Cadets

Mr BRYCE, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:
(1) in bow many high schools in

Western Australia are school
cadets now operating?

34.

(2) How many-
(a) students;
(b) staff members,
are involved?

(3) How Is the system of school cadets
financed?

(4) (a) Has the curriculum involved
or scope of activities of the
school cadets varied since the
reintroduction of the scheme;

(b) if so, will the Minister provide
details?

Mr GRAYDEN replied:
(1) Three Government schools are

operating with Army acknowled-
gement. Six other Government
schools are operating without
Army support.

(2) (a) Approximately 390) cadets in
Government schools.

(b) Approximately 35 officers of
cadets with another 24 officers
of cadets not yet formally
appointed.

(3) The Army finances all authorised
activities.

(4) (a) and (b) Since the reintroduc-
tion of the scheme, financial
support from the Army has
been limited to an annual
camp only rather than to an
annual camp, a promotion
training camp and bivouacs
as was the case previously.
The curriculum has changed
officially in that weapons are
no longer supplied by the
Army for home training. Some
schools, however, have con-
tinued with weapon training
in that they have taken out
a corporate range licence and
are using .22 rifles which they
have provided themselves on
small arms ranges. Some
schools have also overcome
finance limitations by work-
ing with Army reserve units.

MILK QUOTAS
Additional rssue

Mr H. D. EVANS, to the Minister for
Agriculture:
(1) Is it proposed to issue any further

market milk quotas In the Imme-
date future?

(2) (a) If "'.Yes" how many Is it pro-
posed to Issue; and

(b) when will these be an-
nounced?

Mr OLD replied:
(1) and (2) Answered by answer to

question 35 of 20th October, 1976.
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35. PERMANENT BUILDING
SOCIETIES

Home Purchase Loans

Mr T. D. EVANS, to the Minister for
Housing:
(1) Would he please inquire and ad-

vise the global monthly amount
of finance made available for
loans of home purchasers by West-
ern Australian permanent build-
ing societies for each of the
months of September 1975 to Sep-
tember 1976?

(2) What proportion of each of the
monthly loan allocations was
available for loans for home pur-
chases in country areas?

(3) What global amount of loan
moneys made available by per-
manent building societies from
January 1976 to October 1976 in-
elusive was available and utilised
for loan purposes in the Kal-
goarlie-Boulder area?

Mr P. V. JONES replied:
(1) Loans advanced in Western Aus-

tralia by permanent building so-
cieties--

$
September, 1975 21200000
October, 1975 30259000
November, 1975 31 561 000
December, 1975 34436000
January. 1976 28 772 000
February, 1976 32216000
March, 1976 35542000
April, 1976 29312000
May. 1976 28337000
June, 1976 26792000
July, 1976 25 852 000
August, 1976 23 117 000
September, 1976 25210000

(2) and (3) This Information Is not
available.

36. WATER SUPPLIES
Jarrahdale: Market Gardens

Mr BARNETIT, to the Minister for
Water Supplies:

Further to my question 10 on 12th
August, 1976 wherein he advises
an inquiry will be made to deter-
mine the problem of the alleged
insufficient ground water supplies
in Jarrahdale-
(a) would he Please advise what

inquiries have been made; and
(b) the conclusions from the in-

quiries?
Mr O'NEIL replied:

(a) The Public Works Depart-
ment's district officer at
Mundijong has Interviewed
the majority of the market
gardeners along Gooralongr
Brook. Jarrahdale, who rely
on underground water -and is
familiar with their problem.

(b) On present indications it ap-
pears that any diminution in
supply of underground water
can be mainly explained by
the below average rainfall of
the last two years.

37. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
Light Industrial Land:, Dixon Road

Mr EARNETT, to the Minister for
Industrial Development:

Further to his reply to my ques-
tion 9 on 12th August, 1976 rele-
vant to land available for light
industry, would he please advise
at what stage are the negotiations
with the two companies wishing
to establish in the area?

Mr MENSAROS replied:-
Following Town Planning Board
approval of the subdivision firm
proposals were put to the two
companies and these are still
under consideration. However, In
the meantime a further four lots
have been approved for sale and
development.

38. PRE-SCHOOL CENTRES
Subsidies: Criteria

Mr BARNETT, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Education:
(1) What was the department's crite-

rion in 1961-62 for the provision
of subsidies for pre-school centres?

(2) (a) Was the criterion changed in
1966-67; and

(b) in what way was it changed?
(3) (a) Has It been changed In any

way since; and
(b) how?

Mr
(1)

GRAYDEN replied:
to (3) The information requested
requires research in files which are
held in archives.

39. STATIE HOUSING
COMMISSION

Building Blocks: Rockingham

Mr BARNETT, to the Minister for
Housing:
(1) Is it correct that the State Hous-

ing Commission has 29 vacant re-
sidential lots in Rockingham?

(2) Would he please advise the precise
whereabouts of each lot?

Mr P. V. JONES replied:
(1) Yes.
(2) It is longstanding policy of the

State Housing Commission not to
disclose Information of this nature.
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40. BUS TERMINAL
Kwlnana: Toilets

Mr BARNE'TT, to the Minister for
Transport:

Further to his answer to my ques-
tion 35 on 27th May. 1976 wherein
he claims as transport operators
the responsibility of providing
toilet facilities for the Public at
the bus transfer terminal at the
corner of Thomas and Rocking-
ham Roads, Kwinana, is not his
responsibility, would he please ad-
vise to whom approaches could
be made for provision of such faci-
lities?

Mr O'Neil (for Mr O'CONNOR) re-
plied:

The local authority.

41. RURAL HOUSING AUTHORITY
Applications

Mr TUBBY, to the Minister for Hous-
ing:
(1) How many applications for Rural

Housing Authority assistance have
been submitted?

(2) How many applications have been
approved?

(3) Is Informatidon readily available as
to eligibility for assistance?

(4) If "Yes" to (3), have banks, etc.,
been Provided with this Informa-
tion?

Mr P. V. JONES replied:
(1) and (2) No formal applications

have yet been received by the
Rural Housing Authority as the
Act was only Proclaimed on the
1st November, 1976.

(3) Yes.
(4) An information brochure on the

authority is at present being cir-
culated to Interested individuals
and organisations.

42. HEALTH EDUCATION
COUNCIL

Hay Street Premises
Mr DAVIES, to the Minister for
Works:
(1) Is he aware that the work of the

H-ealth Education Council is pos-
sibly being affected beca-use they
are unable to use the Premises at
St. George's Hall, 508 Hay Street,
Perth?

,zn Can he advise what repairs and
renovations are Proposed, and
when this work will be carried
out?

Mr O'NElL replied:
(1.) and (2) 1 am aware that when

the Premises at St. George's Hall
were allocated to the Health
Education Council, renovations

had to be cardied cut before the
building could be used. In this
regard, general repairs and reno-
vations are programmed for this
building during the current fin-
ancial year.
However, as officers of the Public
Works Department have expressed
doubt as to the structural suffi-
ciency of the roof members, re-
pairs and renovation action has
been delayed pending the out-
come of a thorough examination
of the roof anid a determination
of the action required to ensure
the safety of the building.

43. This question was postponed.

44. WEST COAST HIG3HWAY
Extension through Cottesloe-

Swanbourne
Mr TAYLOR, to the Minister for
Urban Development and Town Plan-
ning:
(1) Has he yet made a decision with

respect to the West Coast High-
way extension/upgrading through
Cottesloe/Swanbourne?

(2) if "Yes" what Is his decision?
Q2) If "No" when does he expect to

be in a position to give a deci-
sion?

Mr RUSHTON replied:
(1) No.
(2) Not applicable.
(3) I hope to make my firm recom-

mendations to Cabinet by the end
of this month.

45. MOTOR VEHICLE DEALERS
ACT

Authorised Officers
Mr McIVER, to the Minister for
Labour and Industry:

Referring to question 41 of Wed-
nesday, 3rd November, 1976:
(1) Have any members of the

Road Traffic Authority been
appointed as "authorlsed of-
ficers" under the provisions of
the Motor Vehicle Dealers
Act?

(2) If (2) is "Yes" then who, in
the Road Traffic Authority
have been so appointed and
when?

(3) If (2) Is "Yes" is there any
valid reason why the Used
Car Dealers Section of the
Road Traffic Authority could
not police the operation of the
"backyard" dealer?

(4) If (2) is "No" is there any
valid reason why members of
the Used Car Dealers Section
of the Road Traffic Authority
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could not be appointed as
"authorised officers" and p01-
Ice the operations of the
"backyard" dealer?

(5) If there are any valid reasons
to either (4) or (5) what are
they?

(6) What is the name of the
officer of the Bureau of Con-
sumer Affairs who is currently
involved virtually on a full-
time basis in collating used
car advertisements?

(7) On what date was this officer
appointed to or directed to
perform this particular duty?

(8) If the date of his appointment
to this particular duty is not
known was it very recent?

(9) Is this particular work shown
on his list of duties?

(10o) if this particular work is not
shown on his list of duties
why not?

Mr GRAYDEN replied;
(1)
(4)

(6)
(7)

to (3) NO.
and (5) No-they could be ap-
pointed ss authorised officers.
The responsibilities of authorised
officers of the Road Traffic Auth-
ority set down In sections 25 and
27 of the Motor Vehicle Dealers
Act relate to the Inspection of
dealers' registrations and the ex-
amination and testing of second-
hand motor vehicles. Officers of
the Used Car Dealers Section of
the Road Traffic Authority are
fully occupied on these duties.
Mr K. V. Scholz.
and (8) 6th September, 1976.

(9) No.
(10) The officer has been made avail-

able on a special duties basis.

QUESTIONS (5): WITHOUT NOTICE
1. SAFETY BAY SCHOOL

Fence
Mr BARNETT, to the Minister
representing the Minister for Educa-
tion:

Further to my questions on the
Safety Bay Primary School, in
view of the facts that-
(a) Rae Road has recently been

made a major highway;
(b) the parents and citizens

association requested in
March of this year that a
fence be erected to safeguard
the children;

(c) the department has since that
date on two occasions been to
the school to measure up for
the fence-

would the Minister please advise-
(1) Is it the department's

intention to erect a fence for
the safety of the Safety Bay
children?

(2) When and what type of fence
will be erected?

Mr ORAYDEN replied:
(1) and (2) On behalf of the Min-

ister for Education, I thank the
honourable member for Some
notice of the question the answer
to which is as follows-

It Is not expected that the
western end of Rae Road will
be affected and It is not pro-
posed to erect a fence at the
present time.

2. AUSTRALIAN ASSISTANCE PLAN
Meeting of AMinisters

Mr JAMIESON, to the Premier:
(1) Is it true that Western Australia

is the only State not being re-
presented at a meeting in Sydney
on Friday, the 19th November,
being attended by all other State
welfare Ministers to discuss the
future of the Australian assistance
plan?

(2) if "Yes", why is Western Aus-
tralia not represented?

Sir CHARLES COURT replied:
(1) and (2) In answer to the Leader of

the Opposition, without reference
to the Minister concerned, I can-
not supply the Information. I do
not know of the conference and
therefore I do not know what deci-
sion has been made by the Min-
ister as to whether or not he
should be represented; but r will
find out,

3. CANNING VALE INDUSTRIAL
AREA

Land Acquisition: Fees to
Parker & Parker

Mr BATEMAN, to the Minister for
Industrial Development:

With reference to his answer to
my question 28, on Wednesday, the
loth November, 1976, in which he
stated Parker & Parker were
paid no more than normal pro-
fessional fees plus out-of-pocket
expenses for purchasing land In
Canning Vale, will he now
advise-

exactly how much was paid to
Parker & Parker or their agents
in fees and out-of-pocket ex-
penses for their activities in
acquiring land for the Canning
Vale light industrial complex?
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Mr MENSAROS replied:
A total of $26 418.56 was paid in
Professional fees and costs. This
is comprised as follows-
Parker & Parker. Profes-
sional services in accordance
with the solicitors' remunera-
tiosi order then current .... 3 870.21
Parker & Parker. Disburse-
ments and stamp duty .... 4 399.85
Land agents' commissions In
accordance with the Real
Estate Institute of Western
Australia's scale of charges ...18 148.50

$264 48.56

Stamup duty and land tax included
in the above disbursements has
been refunded to the authority.

4. MIDLAND JUNCTION
ABATTOIR

Obnoxious Odour: Relief

Mr SKIIDMORE, to the Minister for
Agriculture:

Has he been made aware by the
management of the Midland
Junction Abattoir tbat the smells
have been persisting on practic-
ally every night of the last month:
and has he been informed by the
management of the procedures to
be adopted to lessen the offence
to the residents in the Midland
area, and when may they expect
some relief from the smells?

Mr OLD replied:
This is a true question without
notice and I do not thank him
for no notice. I am well aware
of the fact, and the honourable
member may be also aware that
yesterday there was a meeting of
industry with the Swan Shire
when the matter was discussed
fully.

Mr Skidmnore: I was not aware of it.

Mr OLD: He Is aware of it nlow.

Mr Skidmnore: That is why I asked
the question.

Mr OLD: The honourable member
May als be aware of the fact-
if not, I will inform him-that
the by-products section has been
successfully dealt with, and there-
fore any Problem now is con-
nected with effluent disposal and
this is being worked on consist-
ently. If the honourable member
requires any more Information he
can either Put the question on the
notice paper or discuss it with the
Swan Shire.

5. CLOSING DAYS OF SESSION:
SECOND PART

Sitting Days and Hours

Mr JAMIESON, to the Premier:
For the benefit of members could
he give to the House an idea of
proposed sitting days and hours
from now to the end of the ses-
sion?

Sir CHARLES COURT replied:
The days and hours under con-
sideration at the present time-
and these will be subject to dis-
cussion with the Leader of the
Opposition-are as follows-

Wednesday, the 17th:
Meet at 11.00 am. and ad-
journ at 5.30 p.m. in view of
the social function the Parlia-
ment is having tomorrow
evening.

Thursday, the lath:
Meet at 11.00 a.m. and carry
on for a reasonable period
after dinner, bearing in mind
the limitations of Hansard
and the like.

Tuesday, the 23rd:
Meet at 2.15 p.m.

Wednesday, the 24th:
In view of the CBH function
which I understand many
members want to attend, it is
proposed to meet at 7.00l p.m.

Thursday, the 25th:
Meet at 11.00 am. and then
sit after dinner as requisite.

There are some reservations
about this which I will discuss
with the Leader of the Opposition:
for instance, the availabilty of
Hansard tomorrow plus his comn-
mnitments and mine, and those of
one or two other members be-
tween 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m.
However, I thought that if I could
indicate those times at this stage
it would help members to plan
their programmes, and any refine-
nments can be announced in due
course.

RESERVES BILL

Returned
Bill returned from the Council without

amendment.

ANGLICAN CHURCH OF AUSTRALIA
BILL

Receipjt and First Reading
Bill received from the Council; arid, on

motion by Mr O'Neil (Minister for Works),
read a first time.
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INDUSTRIAL ARBITRATION ACT
AMENDMENT BILL (No. 2)

Third Reading

MR GRAYhEN (South Perth-Minister
for Labour and Industry) (5.40 p.m.]: I
move.-

That the Bill be now read a third
time.

MR HIARMAN (Maylands) [5.41p.m.]:
Because of some Press statements which
have appeared since the debate on the
second reading of this Bill last week in
the House, I feel it is necessary for me
to make several comments about this
legislation and about the Government's
industrial relations policy generally,
because it seems to me there Is some
confusion in the mind of the Government
with regard to what it really intends to
do. There is also some uncertainty
amongst the public at large as to what
the Government intends to do, and there
have been some half-truths with regard
to what the Government policy really Is.

Mr Davies: Does the Government know?

Mr HARM AN: it will be recalled that
last week the Premier said he would intro-
duce a new industrial relations programme
for the Government, and that the measure
we are now debating was part of the
package. The Premier also said that sub-
sequently the Government would intro-
duce legislation which was a variation
of the "right-to-work" concept. That was
to be the package deal for industrial
relations in Western Australia.

Firstly, let us look at the conifusion
and let us look at the way the Government
upholds law and order-when it suits the
Government. Two weeks ago the intention
of the Government was that unionists
would have the right to vote in the
privacy of their homes by way of a postal
ballot. However, that provision was already
in operation for most of the unions in
Western Australia so there was nothing
new in that legislation. The postal ballot
system was a decision arrived at by the
unions; it was not a decision forced upon
them by the Government. That was the
attitude two weeks ago.

Last week the Government introduced
a further option: Unionists were to be able
to vote for their executive committee by
way of postal voting, but the executive
would then appoint the secretary, the
assistant secretary, and any other officer
whom the particular committee wished to
appoint. That is where the confusion
started. The confusion was brought about
by a decision made in Canberra, not as
a result of an approach by any union i n
Western Australia to the Western Austra-
lian Minister for Labour and Industry to
alter the rules of the game.

The decision by the Government to con-
duct union elections by postal ballot-
which is happening already-was against

and in contravention of an ILO Conven-
tion which specifically states that public
authorities shall not intervene or do any-
thing to prevent a society-whether a
union or an organisation of employers-
drawing up its own constitution and rules.
The aiction taken by the Government was
in contravention of the ILO Convention
which this Government has accepted. So.
the Government deliberately contravened
the law and order-an international
agreement.

Mr Grayden: We did not contravene the
ILO Convention in any shape or forn.

Mr Bertram: The action certainly was
In contravention of the ILO Convention.

Mr HARMAN: The legislation intro-
duced last week by the Government was
on the basis that the Government believed
in unionism; it believed in workers becom-
ing members of unions. That was the
belief of the Government as late as last
week, but this week it does not believe In
workers becoming members of unions be-
cause it was indicated to us in the Press
this morning-and by the introduction of
legislation this evening-that the Govern-
ment does not want the workers to become
members of unions. The workers are to
be able to opt out by going to the registrar
and stating that they do not want to be
members of unions. The registrar will
agree to any requests, but the persons
concerned will still pay the equivalent of
the union fee into some organisation. That
money could be paid to a cat society, if
the person so wished.

That boils down to the fact that the
Government last week Maid it believed in
workers becoming members of unions.

Mr Grayden: We still do.
Mr HARMA1N: However, this week the

Government does not believe that the
workers should become members of unions.
That is how the confusion has arisen
about the whole approach to industrial
relations by this Government.

Mr Grayden: You are the one who is
confused.

Mr HARMAN: When one takes away
all the emotive language used by the Min-
ister, particularly this evening; when one
takes away all the emotion and hoo-ha
surrounding the whole question of union
postal ballots; and when one strips the
matter down to the bare bone one is able
to see what the new Industrial relations
policy of this Government really means.
It means there will be postal ballots in
the unions--which they have now-but
they can opt out If they want to-the Act
already provides for a union to opt out
of a postal ballot. It means the unionists
do not have to elect their own secretaries
if they do not want to-because they now
have as an option the collegiate system-
and it also means that the workers do not
have to join unions. To take the last point
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a step further, that course is already
available to a worker who has some objec-
tion to joining a union-he is able to opt
out.

So, what has changed? What is this
new industrial relations Policy? One would
have thought-as I pointed out to the
House last week-that if the Government
really was considering a new industrial
relations policy it would be looking at the
concept of compulsory arbitration. Comn-
pulsory arbitration is unique to Australia;
it is not something which occurs in any
other industrialised country in the world.
Compulsory arbitration is unique to Aus-
trala, and has been for over 70 years. It
was introduced originally because, in past
days, management had a great deal of
Power. It was proposed on that occasion
that the unions ought to be able to gat
some sort of right through an arbitratio
system. In those early days it was in-
dicated that the arbitrators would lean
towards the unions which were not very
strong in terms of resources.

Since World War 11 the unions have
developed an expertise and have developed
their resources, and they have built them-
selves into the involved area between
management and labour. The compulsory
arbitration system really suits manage-
ment, employers, and conservative Gov-
ernments.

One of the problems of compulsory ar-
bitration is that management and unions
are able to take radical and extreme stands
on issues which can even reach the stage
of loc kouts or strikes because both parties
know that ultimately some other person
will settle the dispute. They will not
be required to settle the dispute them-
selves: some other person will do it
through the compulsory arbitration sys-
tem.

Under the system established by conser-
vative Governments, the trade unions have
to be registered with the arbitration sys-
tem, and for any reason they can be de-
registered. The arbitration system pro-
vides for certain requirements to be placed
on the unions, and above that the system
requires also that there shall be com-
pulsory arbitration. That means both
management and labour have decisions
forced upon them.

The attitude of the Labor Party has
been that it is far better for the two
parties to reach agreement between them-
selves. The best observed agreements are
those made between two Persons, or two
organisations, and the best kept agree-
ments are those which include a provision
that the union concerned will not strike
on the issues contained in the agreement.
Is that not a better system than com-
pulsory arbitration? The Present Gov-
ernment has failed to tackle the deep
question of industrial relations.

The Government has flitted around the
side. It has brought in two pieces of
window-dressing legislation, and when one

tears away all the emotion what they
propose is happening right now. There
is nothing new in the legislation: it is
happening right now. And, as I will point
out later in debate on another Hill, it
could have serious repercussions in West-
ern Australia. which I do not think the
Government has considered. It has not
had the forethought to work through all
the ramifications which would follow from
the legislation proposed to us tonight.

I want to make it clear in this Chamber,
as I did in the Press today, that the
Labor Party is not opposed to secret pos-
tal ballots. Already most unions have this
system now. What we are opposed to is
the Government of Western Australia
breaking what we believe to be an inter-
national covenant to which it is a party
and which it accepted some years ago.
That is the fundamental reason the Labor
Party is opposing this particular legisla-
tion. It is an interference in union af-
fairs which is totally opposed to and con-
travenes ILO Convention 87, which this
Government Previously accepted.

Another point which should be made
clear is that on many previous occasions--
and only recently when I endeavoured to
grant workers in this State the benefit of
long service leave after 10 years--we have
seen the Government backing away from
making a decision on a matter because it
believed it was a decision for the Indus-
trial Commission. The industrial Com-
mission is established to prevent and settle
disputes and one of the ways in which it
can settle a dispute is to make a decision
on long service leave. It can also settle
a dispute under the provisions contained
in section 618 of the Act.

The argument put forward by the Gov-
ernment at that time in relation to long
service leave was that Parliament was not
able to do anything about it and that it
was a matter for the Industrial Commis-
sion. But now, under this second package
deal, the Government is going to take
something away from the Industrial Com-
mission. It will interfere and tell the In-
dustrial Commission what it cannot do.
Is that not a contradiction? A month ago
the Minister was telling me Parliament
could not legislate on a matter because
it was a question for the Industrial Com-
mission. Now the Government is saying
this is the prerogative of Parliament and
we will instruct the Industrial Commission
what it will do.

The last point I wish to make relates
to what I regard as a serious omission on
the part of the Government. The Govern-
ment has repeatedly said on many occa-
sions, "We will consult the trade union
movement when it comes to a matter of
changing the laws relating to industrial
relations." The Government wanted to
have meaningful discussions with the trade
union movement: and conversely, the
trade union movement wanted to have
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meaningful discussions with the Govern-
ment, not only about industrial disputes
and other industrial matters but also about
employment, career opportunities, produc-
tivity, job enrichment, and so on.

The trade union movement has had
numerous discussions with the Minister for
Labour and Industry about industrial mat-
ters and most of them have been un-
successful. The trade union movement has
bad only one discussion with the Premier
of Western Australia, on the question of
employment, career opportunities, and
productivity-only one, and that was four
or five months ago. The trade union move-
ment is still waiting for an invitation from
the Premier to have another discussion,
but the Premier agreed to the first dis-
cussion only because I prodded him in
this House on many occasions and he knew
he could not go out and face the People
in the knowledge that he had never once
consulted with the Trades and Labor
Council, but I must remind the House it
was on only one occasion.

However, getting back to the real issue
here, this legislation was discussed with
members of the trade union movement
who went away with some knowledge of
the legislation and asked the Minister for
an undertaking that certain amendments
would be made and that the trade union
movement would be apprised of the final
draft before the Bill was presented. Of
course, the trade union movement was not
apprised of the final draft and had no
knowledge at all of the final Bill until it
was presented to this House. Is that not a
contradiction of what the Government said
it would do? Is that not a breaking of its
word?

On this latest Piece of legislation-the
second package of the Premier's industrial
relations policy-there has been no consul-
tation at all with the Trades and Labor
Council. I think that is a very serious
omission and a breaking of an under-
taking. The Government has broken a
Promise, which was not given lightly but
was an undertaking that it would consult
with the Trades and Labor Council and
the trade union movement in Western
Australia on the question of a far-reaching
amendment to the legislation. I think that
is quite serious and the Government
should be condemned for breaking that
undertaking. It is no wonder, then, that
the trade union movement becomes some-
what hostile about the activities of the
Government.

When we really think about it, does It
not boil down to this: that the Govern-
ment deliberately broke its Promise in or-
der to obtain the result it hoped from
the trade union movement-that the trade
union movement would become hostile and
resentful of the Government for breaking
a Promise and would take some action, and
the Government would then be able to say.

"Look at the irresponsible trade union
movement"? But the trade union move-
ment can now say to the Government,
"You gave us an undertaking and you have
not honoured it; you have broken a
Promise." That is a very serious thing for
a Government to do to an important in-
stitution in Western Australia such as the
Trades and Labor Council which represents
the workers of this State.

Having covered all those points, I think
I have made the position of the Opposi-
tion perfectly clear. We believe the Gov-
ernment has broken and contravened an
international convention to which it is a
party, and we believe the Government has
deliberately broken a promise to consult
with the trade union movement in order
to stir up confrontation and hostility.

MR GRAYDEN (South Perth-Minister
for Labour and Industry) [5.59 p.m.]: We
bave just listened to the type of thing
which has come from the member for
Maylands quite frequently recently-wild
allegations which have absolutely no sub-
stance at all. I would not be surprised-
as he set out to make them-if he has
already seen the Press and given them a
copy of what he proposed to say.

Mr Harman: Is that what you do?

Mr GRAYDEN: The statements are
completely untrue. He said the Govern-
ment broke its promise and undertaking
to consult with the Trades and Labor Coun-
cil. We had a general assurance in a
policy speech that the Government would
consult with the trade union movement.
We have continued to consult with the
unions. I have had no fewer than 58 meet-
ings with trade unions since that time.

Mr Skidmore: Ah-58!
Mr ORAYDEN: In respect of the secret

ballot or postal ballot legislation to which
the honourable member referred, the
Trades and Labor Council asked to discuss
this matter, and I welcomed the oppor-
tunity. About 15 representatives of the
TLC visited my offie, we sat down together
and I explained the legislation to them.
Exception was taken to the legislation on
about two grounds.

Mr Skidmore: On four grounds.

Mr GRAYDEN: How does the member
know that?

Mr Skidmore: How do I know? Because
I had the minutes of the meeting.

Mr GRAYDEN: No minutes were taken
at the meeting. I will now tell the House
what happened. I explained the legislation
and objections were raised to two aspects
of it. Subsequently we agreed to the
requests of the TLC. No other objections
were raised in respect of the legislation.

Mr Skidmore: You promised to go back
to them with a draft.
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Mr GRAYDEN: It was not necessary-
Mr Skidmore: Oh, I see!
Mr GRAYDEN: -because we agreed to

the two requests. That is the whole point.
So when the member for Maylands makes
accusations that the Government has
broken a promise, his statements are
completely and utterly-

Mr Skidmore: True!
Mr GRAYDEN: -devoid of truth.
Mr Harman: What about the legislation

you have just introduced?
Mr GRAYDEN: We now come to the

legislation we have just introduced. Does
the member for Maylands say that we
did not consult with the trade unions?

Mr Harman: Yes.
* Mr GRAYDEN: Certainly we did not.

Mr Harmnan: You broke a promise.
Mr ORAYDEN: We did not consult for

a very specific reason. There are certain
questions with which we have to deal and
which we could not show to the TLC
under any circumstances.

Mr Harman; Why not?
Mr GRAYDEN: The TLC would simply

take advantage of the situation to make
political capital out of it. The TLC would
muster its forces for the express purpose
of rendering abortive the legislation which
we were considering.

Mr Bertram: When did you first think
this one up?

Mr GRAYDEN: We know the TLC is
politically orientated. Had we breathed
a word of this type of legislation to the
TLC, the TLC would immediately muster
its forces for the express purpose of
defeating that legislation. We do not con-
sult under those circumstances.

Mr Harman: Has it done that today?
Mr GRAYDEN: We simply do not con-

sult under those circumstances. The ludi-
crous part of what the honourable
member is saying becomes apparent when
one bears In mind that the TIC, of its
own volition, broke off its relations with
me.

Mr Bertram: Why was that?
Mr GRAYDEN: The TIC published this

fact throughout Western Australia, and
yet ever since it has complained that we
are not consulting with it. In actual fact,
at the request of the TLC we have con-
sulted with it on many occasions.

Mr Skidmore: When did that take
place?

Mr GRAYDEN: This Is the sort of
nonsense we have heard from the member
for Maylands for the last 15 minutes.

Mr Harman: What about the ILO Con-
vention?

Mr GRAYDEN: The ILOl Covenant to
which the member refers says that unions
shall elect their representatives In full
freedom.

Mr Harmnan: That Is only part of It.

Mr ORAYDEN: That is the covenant
to which the honourable member referred.

Mr Harman: No, that is only part of it.

Mr ORAYDEN: It states that members
of unions shall elect their representatives
in full freedom.

Mr Skidmore: No, he went on further
than that.

Mr GRAYEIEN: We are hoping that the
postal ballot legislation will ensure the
implementation of that covenant.

Mr Laurance: Hear, hear!

Mr ORAYDEN: We are ensuring that
union representatives are elected in full
freedom: not with rigged ballots, not with
ballots where the papers have been tam-
pered with, but in full freedom and under
supervision. We are implementing that
particular covenant of the IL0.

Mr Jamieson: There is no way that you
can make a postal ballot secret: did you
know that?

Mr ORAYDEN: Is the Leader of the
Opposition suggesting that is the situa-
tion in respect of general elections?

Mr Jamieson: It could be. These days
papers can carry ultraviolet markings and
that sort of thing. There is no way you
can make a postal ballot secret.

Mr ORAYDEN: Is the Leader of the
Opposition suggesting that a postal ballot
is not acceptable?

Mr Jamieson: This Is the Point. I have
been Postal voting for years in my union,
but there is no way you can make it
secret.

Mr ORAYDEN: Is the Leader of the
Opposition suggesting it is an unsatis-
factory method?

Mr Jamieson: The only satisfactory
method of voting is for a person to put
his vote in a ballot box.

Mr ORAYDEN: There is provision in
this legislation for precisely that.

Mr Jamieson; Yes, I know, under dif-
ficult conditions.

Mr GRAVDEN: In these circumstances
I dismiss completely the allegations of the
member for Maylands, and I regard them
as being quite spurious.

Mr Bertram: You are only reading part
of the convention.

Mr Harman: The part that suits you.
Question put and passed.
Hill read a third time and transmitted

to the Council.
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EVIDENCE ACT AMENDMENT BILL
(No. 2)

Second Reading
MR O'NEIL (East Melville-Minister for

Works) [6.08 P.m.]: I move-
'That the Bill be now read a second

time.

This Bill contains some significant and
substantive procedural amendments to the
Evidence Act with perhaps the most im-
portant being the provision which will
abolish the right of accused persons to
make unsworn statements from the dock
during criminal trials. The right to make
such a statement has its roots deep In
history, but It is felt that there is no
longer any need for it under modern Con-
ditions. In olden times, an accused was
allowed to make an unsworn statement
pleading his innocence so that, in the
event of his conviction and suffering the
supreme penalty, he would not lose his
soul as well as his head.

In other words, his soul would not be
damned to perdition because he had or
might have Perjured himself during the
course of swearing his innocence, so he
was allowed to make an unsworn state-
ment.

The right to make an unsworn state-
ment applies only in the superior courts.
Traditionally, an accused person making
such a statement from the dock cannot
be cross-examined on it, nor can the
judge comment to the jury. But there
seems no reason that an accused should
now be given this orivilege. Surely, if
all other Persons are required to give
evidence upon oath or affirmation or, as
is envisaged in an amendment to be dealt
with in this Bill, by satisfying the court
that they understand the need to tell the
truth, it is hardly appropriate in modern
times to allow unsworn statements, which
may influence a jury, to continue to be
given.

The matter has come to the fore, par-
ticularly in rape trials where there have
been a number of cases of an accused
cross-examining a rape victim mercilessly
as to her Past sexual experiences and then
taking refuge in an unsworn statement as
to which he is not subject himself to
cross-examination.

The Government has decided that this
practice should now cease and all persons
should be put upon the same footing In
the courts: namely, that they have the
right to give evidence on their own behalf
in the normal way upon oath or affirma-
tion, etc., and be subject to cross-examina-
tion by the other side. However, an accused
will not be forced to give evidence. He
will still have the right to remain silent.
should he so choose.

The Government believes that the In-
troduction of this change will work In the
Interests of fair play and Justice in the
courts: but it will affect defendants in

the Supreme and Districts Courts only, as
the right does not apply in the Court of
Petty Sessions.

Another important provision in the Bill
is for an additional alternative method of
giving evidence. At the present time, a
witness must take an oath, swearing by
Almighty God to tell the truth, or make
an affirmation. Forms of words are given
in the Evidence Act for both an oath and
an affirmation. it sometimes happens.
however, that a witness will not under-
stand the meaning or significance of an
oath and this may apply even to an
affirmation.

Hence, it has been suggested that in
order not to deprive such persons of their
ability to give evidence, or the court of
the chance to hear their testimony, so
long as the court is satisfied that they
understand the meaning of and the nec-
essity to tell the truthI their evidence
will be admissible. This will enable such
persons to give testimony in their own
cause in pursuit of a claim in a civil
court, or as to the commission of a crime
in criminal proceedings. The court may
question the person as a preliminary to
establish his credibility as a witness.

In such cases, however, regard Is to be
had to the manner and circumstances in
which the testimony is given and received.
and to the fact that it Is given without
the sanction of an oath or solemn affirma-
Ion, and the judge may comment accord-
ingly.

Any person who gives evidence in this
manner, and knowingly therein makes a
false statement material to the subject
matter, will be guilty of a misdemeanour
and liable on conviction to imprisonment
for a term of not more than five years.

Mr Hartrey: it Is 14 years for perjury.
Why the difference?

Mr O'NEIL: There is a similar provision
In relation to interpreters. An Interpreter
may take an oath or make a solemn affir-
mation well and truly to translate the
evidence given, but if he objects to doing
so or is unable to do so he may still act as
an interpreter if the court is satisfied as
to his competence and impartiality, pro-
vided he makes a declaration well and
truly to translate the evidence given.
Such a declaration is of the same force
and effect as an oath. These are the exist-
Ing provisions.

The new provisions of the Bill are that if
for any reason, such as where he does not
understand the formal significance of the
words of the oath, an Interpreter Is not
required to take an oath or make an affir-
mation, he may be admitted to act as an
interpreter if the court is satisfied as to
his ability and impartiality In the same
way as for a witness, without an oath and
without formality.

Mr Hartery: 'what sort of Interpreter
would he be if he could not understand the
oath?
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Mr O'NEIL: A similar penalty operates
in relation to the misdemeanour com-
mitted, should he knowingly fall to trans-
late or should he translate falsely any
material matter.

Finally, it is proposed to amend section
101 of the Act relating to the evidence of
children under oath.

The present prohibition against convic-
tion of an offence on the uncorroborated
evidence of a child of tender years is to be
retained, but It is considered that "tender
years" is an uncertain term.

The Bill therefore provides for the words
"tender years" to be replaced by a ref er-
ence to children under the age of 12 years.

I commnend the Bill to the House.
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr H.

D. Evans (Deputy Leader of the Opposi-
tion).
Sitting suspended from 6.12 to 7.30 p.m.

LEGISLATIVE REVIEW A") ADVISORY
CONMTTEE BILL

Council's Amendments
Amendments made by the Council now

considered.
In Committee

The Deputy Chairman of Committees
(Mr Blaikie) in the Chair; Sir Charles
Court (Premier) in charge of the Bill.

The amendments made by the Council
were as follows--

No. 1.
Clause 7, page 4, line 36-Add after

the word "law" the words "or in-
herent in the traditional freedoms of
Her Majesty's subjects in Western
Australia".
No. 2.

Clause 9, page 5, lines 36 and 37-
Delete paragraph (a) and substitute
the following-

(a) unduly trespasses on rights
or liberties previously estab-
lished by law or inherent in
the traditional freedoms of
Her Majesty's subjects in
Western Australia; or

No. 3.
Clause 9, page 6, lines 13 and 14-

Delete paragraph (a) and substitute
the following-

(a) unduly trespassing on rights
or liberties already established
by law or inherent in the
traditional freedoms of Her
Majesty's subjects in Western
Australia; or.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I move-
That the amendments made by the

Council be agreed to.
When this Bill was before the Legislative
Assembly a move was made by the mem-
ber for Boulder-Dundas to have some
words inserted in clause 7 and at the

time I told him I was attracted to his
proposal and the spirit of what he in-
tended because it was, in fact, the spirit
of the Bill that the Government intro-
duced. I was attracted to it sufficiently
to want a chance to study it, not only
because of its wording and its drafting
at that stage, but also and more parti-
cularly to see whether, if we incorporated
the suggestion at that one place we were
leaving the Bill deficient by not including
it in other parts, particularly clause 9.

The honourable member agreed and sub-
sequently I had the matter studied by the
Crown Law Department where some
amendments were prepared and these
were submitted to the honourable mem-
ber. I also sent a copy to the member
for Mt. 'Hawthorn who also raised the
issue so far as the Principle was con-
cerned but in a slightly different context,

The member for Boulder-Dundas has
advised me that he is satisfied with the
proposed amendments which have now
been inserted by another place. To my
mind they not only give effect to what
he wanted but also to the Government's
intentions.

Mr BERTRAM: The member for
Boulder-Dundas not being in the Cham-
ber at the moment, I rise merely to agree
with what the Premier has just said. I
did receive a copy of the letter which
he was good enough to deliver to the
member for Boulder-Dandas In accord-
ance with his undertaking when the Bill
was being debated earlier. The member
for Boulder-Dundas did intimate to me
that the suggested amendments, which we
are now considering, and which have been
approved by the other place, were accept-
able to him.

However, the amendments which were
acceptable to the member for Boulder-
Dundas do not really meet the type of sit-
uation that I had envisaged. They cer-
tainly do measure up to his concern in
the manner which the Premier has already
indicated. What concerns me about the
amendments is that they tend to hold
the law at its present position and do not
really provide much, if any, scope for Dew
and changed concepts. But to that of
course the Premier no doubt would say,
"That was not the intention of the Bill
anyhow." So I simply place those thoughts
on the record and apart from that I do
not wish to speak any further to these
amendments.

Sir CHARLES COURT: In view of the
importance of the matter raised by the
member for Mt. Hawthorn I invite his
attention to the wording that has been
used to conform with the submission of
the member for Boulder-Thmdas. In clause
7 we propose to add to the passage "Pre-
viously established by law" the words "or
inherent in the traditional freedoms of
Her Majesty's subjects in Western Aus-
tralia".
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To accommodate completely the member
for Boulder-Dundas and cover the point
raised by the member for Mt. Hawthorn,
we seek in clause 9 in the first case to
delete clause 9 (1) (a) which states--

unduly trespasses on personal rights or
liberties; or

and substitute the following-
()unduly trespasses on rights or

liberties previously established by
law or inherent in the traditional
freedoms of Her majesty's sub-
jects in Western Australia; or

In the second place, we seek to delete
clause 9 (2) (a) which states--

unduly trespassing on personal rights
or liberties; or

and substitute the follow ing-
(a) unduly trespassing on rights or

liberties already established by
law or inherent in the traditional
freedoms of Her Majesty's sub-
jects in Western Australia;, or

When it is read in the context of the
original Bill I think we have caught up
everybody's wishes on the way through and
have not left the Bill so that it was con-
fined hard and fast as it was originally
expressed In clause 7.

Mr Bertram: I think you have complied
with the undertaking.

Question put and passed; the Council's
amendments agreed to.

Report
Resolution reported, the report adopted,

and a message accordingly returned to the
Council.

ALUMINA REFINERY (PI[NIARRA)
AGREEMENT ACT AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
MR MENSAROS (Fioreat-Mlnister for

industrial Development) (7.39 p.m.l: I
move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time.

This variation agreement has been made
necessary by the growth of the Pinjarra
refinery and by certain unforeseen prob-
lems arising from the development of the
inner harbour at Bunbury.

The Alumina Refinery (Pinjarra) Agree-
ment Act, 1969-1972, enables the company
to submit proposals for the construction
of pipelines to carry oil and/or liquid
caustic soda to the company's refineries.
The construction Proposals are subject to
the Minister's consideration and approval.
and the agreement provides for the ad-
ministrative machinery for the proper
examination of such proposals. While the
company has not yet submitted any such
proposals, it has acquired easements which
traverse privately owned land.

A problem has arisen as to the regis-
tration of such easements In that the land
has changed hands in some instances,

without the easement being registered on
the titles. Furthermore, the easements
are not continuous and the dominant
tenement has not been precisely set out in
the documents.

The effect of clause 16 is that the re-
quirement of setting out the dominant
tenement is removed by the application
of section 33A of the Public Works Act
to easements acquitted by the company
and provided the Minister issues a certi-
ficate that any easement In question is
required for purposes of the Pipelines re-
ferred to and purposes incidental thereto,
then the Minister for Lands, the Registrar
of Titles or the Registrar of Deeds as the
case requires, will cause registration of
the easement to be made in favour of the
company on the payment of appropriate
fees. This will streamline the operation
of acquisition and registration of ease-
ments secured by the company from
private owners and crown instrumentali-
ties.

Apart from these technical provisions,
more importantly the Bill provides for
increased advances by the company to the
State or the Bunbury Port Authority to
assist in the funding of marine works
which had been completed in Bunbury
Harbour. The advances rise from $1.5
million to a total of $6.3 million. The
Increase has been made necessary by the
unforeseen extent of basalt and other rock
encountered in dredging the turning basin
and access channel to a depth of 12.2
metres. (40 feet). The cost has risen to
some $19 million, and the company has
In fact already advanced most of the $6.3
million in 1974 and 1975 to enable the
work to continue. Its action In this regard
is much appreciated by this Government.

The increased funding also creates prob-
lems in regard to higher interest charges
to be borne by the Bunbury Port Authority.
In relation to the inner harbour, the
authority will be required to bear charges
of a capital service nature somewhat
exceeding $1 million per year. These in-
creased charges must be found from
wharfage on bulk cargoes shipped through
this section of the port: namely, alumina
and wood chips.

The State expects that revenues from
these sources will increase because of in-
creasing tonnage, and the higher wharf-
age and tonnage dues levied.

In regard to Alcoa, the company will
pay a wharfage of 15c a ton on the first
million tons shipped in any year, 12c on
the second million, and 10c on tonnage
above two million tons in any one year.
In addition the alumina carriers attract
tonnage dues equivalent to about 5.5c a
ton of alumina shipped. These revenues
would increase substantially if a. second
alumina refinery were established at Wors-
ley, or some other location near Bunbury.
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These charges are recognised as inade-
quate at least for the first six years of
operation of the port. The company has
therefore agreed to pay a special alumina
surcharge of 65ce a ton on the first 13
million tons of alumina to be shipped.

It is expected that this tonnage of
alumina will have been shipped from
Bunbury by 1982 and 1983, by which time
the annual tonnage should be of the order
of 2.5 million tons a year from Alcoa alone
and the need for a special levy will be
reviewed.

The alumina surcharge will be utilised
by the Bunbury Port Authority to boost
its revenue and assist with funding of the
harbour and the associated interest and
sinking fund charges.

It should be made perfectly clear that
the company under its current agreement
had no legal obligation whatever to in-
crease its advances or wharfage payments
to the State. It is Prepared to take a re-
sponsible attitude in this matter to ensure
that the Bunbury Port Authority has
reasonable revenues to meet its obligations
of operating the port in a manner which
will ensure stable, safe, and efficient hand-
ling of the company's cargoes in Bunbury.

The agreement also provides that wharf-
age will be reviewed in 1982 and at three-
yearly intervals thereafter to enable the
Bunbury Port Authority to meet any in-
creased costs reasonably applicable to the
company's operations. Any decreases in
costsq would also be passed on to the
company. This provision is almost identi-
cal with clause 4 (2) f (i), in the exist-
ing agreement and it is acknowledged
that it was not practicable to devise a.
reasonable formula to provide for unfore-
seen escalation; rather it is proposed to
rely on the goodwill and good sense of the
parties to the agreement as exemplified in
this very variation, to ensure that the
Baunbury Port Authority has the neces-
sary revenue to discharge its functions
efficiently.

The Bill Is commended for the con-
sideration of this House.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr
T. D. Evans.

IRON ORE (TALLERING PEAK)
AGREEMENT ACT AMENDMENT

BILL
Second Reading

MR MENSAROS (Floreat-Minister for
Industrial Development) (7.47 p.m.]: I
move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time.

The purpose of the Bill before the Rouse
Is to ratify an agreement between the
State and Western Mining Corporation
Limited, Australian Hanna Limited and

(I134J

Homestake Australia Limited, which I will
refer to as the Western Mining Corpora -
tion joint venturers.

As members will no doubt recall, at the
time of introducing the Mineral Sands
(Western Titanium) Agreement and Min-
eral Sands (Allied Eneabba) Agreement
In 1975, I pointed out that provision had
been made in each of those agreements
for the State to use its best endeavours
to arrange for the WMC joint venturers
under the Iron Ore (Tallering Peak)
Agreement Act, 1964, to make available
to the mineral sands companies its iron
ore handling system-as modified-at the
Port of Geraldton.

Accordingly, negotiations with the
WMC joint venturers have proceeded and
agreement has been reached on the terms
under which, in addition to handling iron
ore, the WMC joint venturers will modify,
operate, and maintain the conveyor system
and make It available to the mineral sands
industry. This arrangement has ensured
the continued use of a valuable facility
which possibly would be otherwise wasted.

Naturally, the Implementation of this
arrangement has required that the iron
ore handling facilities constructed at the
Port of Oeraldton under the Iron Ore
(Tallering Peak) Agreement Act, 1964-the
principal agreement-be used for purposes
not envisaged by that agreement. There-
fore it has been necessary for certain am-
endments to be made to the principal
agreement and these are contained In the
Bill now before this Chamber.

I should point out that It was agreed
with the WMC joint venturers that the
amendments to the Principal agreement
should he kept to a minimum In view of
the very limited changes which are neces-
sary to enable the mineral sands arrange-
ments to be effected.

I will now explain, In general terms,
the amendments made to the principal
agreement by virtue of the Bill before
the House. Firstly, new definitions of
"heavy minerals", "heavy mineral con-
centrates"' and "heavy mineral products"
have been inserted, together with defini-
tions of "mineral sands-iron ore handling
system" and "modified mineral sands-
iron ore handling system". These relate,
respectively, to the new products which
will be handled and to the changes which
must be made to the existing Iron ore
handling facility to enable it to handle
mineral sands.

In addition a new definition, "second-
ary Processing", which means the pro-
cessing of heavy minerals to enhance their
economic value, has been inserted.

A new definition "stockpile lease" has
also been inserted. Under the principal
agreement the WMC joint venturers were
granted a lease over an area of land at
the Port of Qeraldion for the purpose of
a stockpiling area.
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Provision has been made in the amend-
Ing agreement, by the addition of a new
clause, under which the WMC joint vent-
urers are required to surrender parts of
their existing Iron ore stockpile lease for
mineral sands purposes.

Therefore, It was necessary to define
"stockpile lease" to signify that It Is the
stockpile lease granted under the principal
agreement less any area that may be asur-
rendered therefrom from tine to time.
As other references to this stockpile lease
area are made elsewhere In the amending
agreement the definition clarifies any
doubts about which lease Is being referred
to.

Finally several amendments have been
made to clause 8 of the principal agree-
ment in order to provide for the WMC
joint venturers to continue to have the
right given them under the principal agree-
ment to have their iron ore handled for
an ongoing Period and also to allow them
to operate and maintain the mineral
sands-iron ore handling system, or the
modified mineral sands-iran ore handling
system, as the case may be for handling
iron ore and mineral sands.

I commend the Bill to the House.
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr

T. D. Evans.

ALBANY WOOLLEN MILLS LTD.
AGREEMENT BILL

Second Reading

MR MENSAROS (Floreat-Minister for
Industrial Development) [L7.53 p.m.]: I
move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time.

Albany Woollen Mills Ltd. has for some
considerable time been confronted with
increasing problems in conducting a viable
manufacturing operation in a decentralised
location,

There are additional costs in operating a
Plant in Albany as compared with a popu-
lated Centre such as the Perth metropoli-
tan area or a regional centre in the
Eastern States.

Furthermore, the mill at Albany is
unique in that the bulk of its raw material,
for the manufacture of carpet yarn, comes
all the way from New Zealand with almost
all the carpet yarn produced therefrom
being returned to distant Eastern States
markets.

The disadvantages of these logistical
difficulties were well known to the Gov-
ernment which appreciated the company's
very efficient operation as the only means
to overcome those problems.

When, however, the company contem-
plated expansion it became evident that a
completely new set of plant capable of
independently producing carpet yarn would
work much more profitably if it were in-
stalled right at the major marketplace

and near the supply of raw material input.
This move would save large amounts of
inward and outward transport costs.

The company, therefore, with economic
justification, contemplated establishing a
new operation with the new plant in Vic-
toria, gradually phasing out its Albany
mills as the installed plant becomes more
and more obsolete.

The Government. of course, aimed to
prevent this from happening as it would
have been a serious blow to the State's
decentralised Industry In general and to
the Albany district in particular, whereas
additional plant promises to enhance the
economy of the town of Albany and its
surroundings.

As a result of discussions between the
Minister for Industrial Development and
the chairman of the company, the Govern-
ment has agreed to provide financial
assistance thereby helping the company
to continue and consolidate its operation
in the decentralised location. The company
on the other band took upon itself con-
siderable obligations in consideration of
assistance offered by the State.

The Bill now before members contains
provisions which give effect to the State's
assistance on the basis of the company
taking certain steps to consolidate its
position and to embark on present and
future large-scale expansion programmes
securing its continuous presence in Albany.

The SPEAKER: Members should reduce
the level of their conversation.

Mr MENSAROS:. Assistance of the type
contained in this Bill is normally given
pursuant to the provisions of the Ass5ist-
ance to Decentralized Industry Act,
1974, or by means of the interest subsidy
scheme which, with rail freight rebate
concessions, operates as the implementa-
tion of the policies of succeeding Govern-
merits without the support of specific
legislation.

All are financed from Department of
Industrial Development funds appropri-
ated by Parliament. However, the Govern-
ment and the company consider there Is
a need in this instance for a separate
formal ratified agreement to set out
clearly the understandings, rights and
obligations of each party.

Such an agreement would ensure therr
are no possible opportunities for mis-
understandings, both now and in tin
future, and enable the company adequatel3
to secure %ts borrowings needed to funt
the installation of additional carpet yarr
plant and equipment and to progress it
Investigations into the manufacture o.
carpet in this State.

Adverting now to the content of ti
agreement, it requires, as a prereqluis iti
to the granting of assistance, the instal,
lation by the company-Albany Woolli
Mills Ltd .at its premises In Alban3
before the 30th June, 1977, additions
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Plant and equipment for the purpose of
manufacturing carpet yarn at a cost of
not less than $650 000.

In effect the company is being asked to
carry out substantial expansion of its
existing carpet yarn plant and equipment
before the State is obliged to contribute
by way of financial assistance.

This of course will result in considerable
additional employment opportunities in
Albany as the additional work force, once
the new plant is installed, will comprise
about 40 People. Members will appreciate
the ancillary effects for the Albany dis-
trict flowing from such additional employ-
ment.

The assistance from the State is to be
by way of five consecutive annual pay-
ments, the first payable on the 30th Sep-
tember, 1978, with each payment to be
the total of the following calculations--

(a) The total amount of pay-roll tax
paid by the company in respect of
pay-roll for employees normally
employed by the company at its
Place or places of business at
Albany during the preceding fin-
ancial year.

(b) An amount equal
cent of interest
company during
financial Year-

to the first 5 per
charged to the

the Preceding

(i) on borrowings by the company
for the purchase by it of the
additional plant and equip-
ment, for the purpose of
manufacturing carpet yarn.
and for installation at its
premises at Albany: and

(ii) on overdraft facilities used by
the company for working
capital required for its opera-
tions at Albany.

The maximum Payment for the total in-
terest subsidies in any one year has been
limited to $25 000.

To enable the calculations to be made,
the company has covenanted to produce
the necessary books of account and re-
cords and, if required, verification from
the company's auditors.

In addition to installing further plant
and equipment for the manufacture of
carpet yarn the company is required to
continue with investigations into the
feasibility of establishing a plant for the
manufacture of carpets in Western Aus-
tralia and to report to the Minister re-
sponsible for the administration of the
agreement concerning such investigations.

At the Present moment nearly all the
carpet Yarn manufactured by the com-
pany finds its way to markets in the East-
ern States of Australia. The Government
is conscious of the need to promote fur-
ther manufacture and usage of local raw
materials and other processed products,
hence the company is being encouraged in

its endeavours to investigate the establish-
ment of a carpet manufacturing plant in
tils State.

The company has been given until the
30th June, 1983, to complete its inves-
tigations and if it is indicated that the
establishment of Plant for the manu-
facture of carpet in Western Australia is
feasible, it must submit proposals to the
Minister for the establishment of such a
plant.

The agreement also contains the neces-
sary clauses to facilitate the functioning
of the agreement in a reasonable and ac-
ceptable manner and therefore provides
for ratification, variation of the agreement
by agreement of the parties on the basis
of such variations being tabled in each
House of Parliament, power to the Min-
ister to extend periods or vary any dates
contained in the agreement, determina-
tion, arbitration and rules for the ser-
vice of notices.

In summary, the purpose of this Bill is
to enable the State to assist Albany
Woollen Mills Ltd. to continue to operate
competitively, to expand, and to remain
a viable enterprise in a decentralised
location in Western Australia.

I commend the Bill to the House.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr T.
D. Evans.

ROAD TRAFFIC ACT AMENDMENT
BILL (No. 3)

Second Reading
MR O'NEIL (East Mellle-Minister for

Works) L8.02 p.m.]: I move-
That the Bill be now read a second

time.
This Bill contains two matters for amend-
ment to the Road Traffic Act.

The first is an amendment to subsection
(11) of section 19, which at present directs
the Road Traffic Authority to issue a
licence, at one-half the normal rate, for
a trailer or semitrailer, used or intended
to be used exclusively on roads outside of
the South-West Land Division.

However, it will be seen that there is
little or no restriction on the type of
trailer to which the concession applies. I
think it can be assumed that the inten-
tion of the section was financially to assist
transport operators, but the wording at
the moment is such that small box or
household trailers and boat trailers are
included, and it appears that certain local
authorities have, in fact, licensed such
vehicles at concession rates.

To clarify what is considered to be the
intention of Parliament the Bill proposes
a minimum tare weight provision of two
tonnes before trailers can qualify for the
concession rate. I feel this will correct
the Position and ensure that the original
intention of the Act is carried out.
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A new section, numbered 98A, is pro-
posed in the second matter introduced by
the Bill. This Provides for ministerial
approval to be given to certain types of
technical apparatus used in determining
vehicle speeds.

Its purpose is to provide a statutory
significance for radar and any other
speed-measuring apparatus so that judicial
notice may be taken of any evidence given
of any reading obtained from the equip-
ment.

The significance of the amendment
would be to Provide that any evidence
given of any speed would be prima fadie
evidence of that fact; that police proce-
dures had been carried out; and that the
equipment had been tested and had
operated correctly.

Evidence of these matters would still
be given by the patrolman as at present
and any person operating the equipment
will have undertaken instruction in the
Proper working of the apparatus.

Every patrolman who operates radar or
any other similar type of equipment is
given special instruction on its method of
operation at training courses held by the
Road Traffic Authority. This includes how
the equipment functions, how to test it,
and to ensure that it continues to func-
tion correctly.

To ensure that he does this it is in-
tended to provide an instruction in police
standing orders binding him by the com-
missioner's instructions to operate the
equipment always according to the manual
of operations and abide by manufacturer's
specifications and to give evidence in court
of having done this.

I stress, however, that giving prima facie
significance to any evidence given by a
patrolman using the approved equipment
in no way upsets the options open to a
defendant in such cases. It is not con-
clusive evidence and is not intended to be
such.

Any Person who wishes to defend a
case will still have the option of produc-
ing his own evidence and any expert of his
own choosing to prove that the equip-
ment may have been incorrectly used. It
would not deprive him of the right to test
any aspect of the evidence and the way
would still be open to him to throw the
burden of proof back onto the prosecu-
tion.

As drafted, the Bill is intended to do
no more than enable evidence to be given
of the use of the equipment and the read-
ing obtained and to give the reading the
status of Prima facie evidence, without
evidence having to be given as to the
scientific validity of the reading or as to
the manner in which the equipment was
used or tested.

I commend the Bill to the House.
Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr T. H.

Jones.

INDUSTRIAL LANDS DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY ACT AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading
Debate resumed from the 21st October.
MR T. D. EVANS (Kalgoorlie) [8.06

p.m.]: This measure, which was the sub-
ject of a great deal of Press controversy
subsequent to-and I emphasise the words
"subsequent to"-its introduction, poses
the question, when one replies to the de-
bate, as to where does one begin? Ques-
tions which have been asked and answered
indicate that the Government was well
aware of the seething undercurregt of
discontent concerning allegations and,
even, the setting for fraud; and yet, in
the introductory remarks accompanying
and justifying this measure, not one word
suggested that all was not well in the State
of Denmark. So the question is: Where
does one begin? The only obvious answer
I can give is to go back to the beginning
and consider the principal Act of 1986, a
measure enacted by the Brand-Nalder
Government.

It is interesting to note the wording of
section 8 of the Principal Act because
under the amending Bill that section is
to be drastically qualified, apparently to
cover a whole series of transactions which
appear to have been carried on quite
beyond the law. These occurred in the
latter years of the Brand Government and
during the three years of the Tonkin Gov-
ernment, and, perceptibly, they are still
continuing under the Court Government.
Section 8(la) provides that the authority
established under the Act-the authority
known as the Industrial Lands Develop-
ment Authority-may purchase or other-
wise acquire by agreement with the owner
any land situated outside the metropolitan
region,' that region being defined in section
2 of thle Town Planning and Development
Act of 1928.*

Immediately we realise that the series
of transactions which have taken place
in the Canning Vale area have breached
section 8 in two serious regards. In the
first Instance, I believe the law of prin-
cipal and agent would be applied by a
judge in construing the powers of section
8. Under that section the authority is
Permitted to deal by private contract with
the owner,' not by nominee and not even
by agent; certainly not by a nominee-
cum-trustee, because there must be agree-
ment with the owner on the terms offered
by the authority with full disclosure by
the authority and, naturally, concurrence
on the part of the owner.

I believe there has been a breach of
section 8 of the principal Act as a result
of the device of using nominees-cum-
trustees. Furthermore, the greatest trans-.
gression of the law appears to have been
the prohibition on the authority, pursuant
to section 8 of the principal Act, from
acquiring land by purchase within the
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metropolitan area. on Sunday, the 31st
October, the Sunday Independent Indi-
cated that there would be a disclosure by
a newspaper printed by a group of
students at the Western Australian Insti-
tute of Technology, and on the following
Tuesday, the 2nd November. I asked the
Premier the following question-

(1) On what date did the Govern-
ment first become aware of alle-
gations regarding land purchases
in the Canning Vale industrial
area?

My question consisted of six parts, but the
reply was a composite answer to parts (1i
and (5) of the question. It read as
follows--

(1) and (5) On the 1st September.
1976, the Government became
aware of a Proposed legal action
against the ILDA, the MH.PA and
the Registrar of Titles concerning
a Canning Vale resumption. As a
result of investigation which sub-
sequentially ensued, the Govern-
menit was advised that validating
legislation was desirable to remove
any doubt about Parliament's
original Intentions. It Is pointed
out that such legislative action is
by no means unusual.

I found that difficult to swallow. The
original intention of Parliament is clearly
expressed in section 8 of the principal
Act--that the authority or trustee, by
agreement with the owner, may acquire
land beyond the metropolitan area. Yet.
the Premier has the audacity to answer
my question by saying that the validating
legislation was to remove any doubt about
the original Intention of Parliament.
Surely those Intentions were expressed in
the original Act of 1966. The provisions
had been in the Act for 10 years, and if
the intention of Parliament had not been
expressed surely to goodness the Govern-
ment would have taken steps earlier to
rectify the situation.

Mr Mensaros: Your Government acted
under the same section.

Mr T. D. EVANS: I am not trying to
whitewash any Government; I am speak-
ing objectively. The Premier said that
the administrative action taken was by
no means unusual, but I believe it was
unusual.

Mr Mensaros: Did you not, as Attorney-
General, correct any Act of Parliament?)

Mr T. D. EVANS: Of course I did, but
It did not take a period of 10 years. Part
(4) of my question of the 2nd November
was-

(41 On what date was Mr K. J.
Townslng appointed to investigate
such allegations?

one has to bear in mind that, according
to the Premier, the Government had be-
come aware of pending litigation on the
1st September, this Year. In answer to

my question I was told that Mr Townsing
was appointed on the 25th October, 1976.
He was requested to make inquiries and
advise the Government.

It is interesting to note that the date of
the 25th October was a few days prior to
the first public utterances with regard
to the situation that all was not well in
the State of Denmark, as appeared in the
Sunday Indepenaent.

I am advised-and I believe-that acting
in good faith certain persons who were
compiling information and processing
complaints relating to various transactions
which had taken place in the Canning
Vale area believed that an approach
should be made to the Premier, and that
approach was made through Mr W. W.
Mitchell.

Mr Davies: Is he a civil servant?
Mr T. D. EVANS: I would like to know

his role-
Mr Bateman: He is a Liberal Party ad-

viser.
Mr T. D. EVANS: I would like to know

his role In this particular situation. I
believe an approach was made to him on
the afternoon following the indication in
the Sunday Independent that a newspaper
Published by a group of students at WAIT
was to draw attention to the fact that
all was not well.

I believe Mr W. W. Mitchell prepared
the Press statement for the Premier which
appeared in the following Monday's daily
Press, and in which the Premier made a
series of denials. However, to the best
of my knowledge there had not been one
public allegation at that stage; not one
specific allegation. Certainly, the Sunday
Independent did not make any specific
allegations at all, yet the Premier came
out with a series of denials.

One is Justified in asking what he had
to deny. It has been said that the Indus-
trial Lands Development Authority has
been placed by this Parliament somewhat
in the role of a trustee; that is, it is
responsible for the proper and careful
handling of public funds. Therefore, it Is
legitimate-and it has been legitimate-
for that authority to adopt any device
at all whereby public funds are protected
in the purchase of land required for in-
dustrial Purposes, and to see that land
is acquired at the best possible price as far
as the public is concerned.

Generally speaking, I would be prepared
to accept that as the role of a public
authority which is responsible for the
handling of the public purse. However,
I believe the device used Is a breach of
section 8 of the principal Act. The au-
thority adopted the surreptitious device of
using a nominee to go into the area to
purchase land. The area had been pri-
vately and secretly mapped out for future
Industrial use, and an improvement Plan
was to be put into effect. These certain
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nomninees-one might say almost in dis-
guise-approached the landowners and, I
believe, indicated to them that the nomi-
nees were, firstly, Purchasing the land in
their own interests and, secondly, that
their interests were for rural pursuits. The
land was zoned for rural purposes.

In misleading the landowners I believe
there was a dereliction on the part of the
authority which authorised these persons
to adopt this unusual device of misleading
the party to the transaction. Clearly it is
of the essence of a legal agreement that
both or all parties are of the one mind
and that each understands the other. This
is not the case here. Surely we must weigh
up the public policy which is practised by
the authority in protecting the public
purse against what I believe to be a breach
of public policy where a Government
agency deliberately condones the mislead-
Ing of landowners and deliberately
breaches the very elements of contract
law.

But that is not all. The names of three
of these interesting nominees have been
mentlonrd. One is a Mr Quinton Stow who
is a high-ranking Liberal Party official;
another is a Mr Gorton; and another is a
Mr Howie. These three persons were asso-
ciated with the eminent legal firm of
Parker & Parker. These are three of
the persons-not necessarily an exhaustive
list of them-who were chosen by the
authority to purchase land using this
surreptitious device on its behalf.

Even if section 8 of the principal Act
did permit the authority to intertwine the
usi of an agent-and I believe it does not
-surely one would expect the authority
to choose a legitimate agent-a land agent
or a real estate agent. But what did it
do? It went to a firm of legal practitioners
who were involved in buying land, appear-
ing to he in breach of section 8 of the
pr~ncipal Act. All is not well in the State
of Denmark.

However, on referring to this Govern-
ment Gazette which bears the date the 2nd
March, 1913-during the time of the
Tonkin Government-we find that the
then Minister for Works-the present
Leaiyr of the Opposition-no doubt acting
in good faith-because I have not heard
the erntrary alleged or even suggested-
and cv ting within the legitimate and
proper powers of acquisition by resumption
on the Dart of the Government under the
Public Works Act, gave his sanction for
the resumption of certain land in the
Canning Vale area. I believe there were
142 resumptions, and 142 items are listed
in tbiq Government Gazette of the 2nd
Marth, 1973.

When one goes through the 142 items,
one finds in 31 dealings the land was
owned by Quinton Stow, Mr Gorton, and
Mr Horie-the three pergonnel associated
wit" The legal firm of Psrkpr & Parker.
Mr Oulnton Stow being a leading official
of the Liberal Party of Western Australia.

One is permitted to ask two questions.
When these nominees were first adopted
their moDdus operandi was to approach a
landholder and indicate the interest of
the nominee in purchasing the land in
pursuit of a rural interest. One is per-
mrited to ahk: Why did Mr Quinton Stow
suddenly acquire such a real interest in
this land? it appears that some of the land
which it was intended to resume pursuant
to the order issued by the Minister for
Works in 1.973 was owned by Quinton Stow
and his colleagues (a) as nominees for the
authority, and (b) perhaps in his own
right.

Mr Mensaros: There is no "perhaps"
and you know that.

Mr T. D. EVANS; I condemn the Min-
ister, as I indicated earlier. When he in-
troduced the legislation there was not one
word in his speech to suggest all was not
well.

Mr Mensaros: That has nothing to do
with it.

Mr T, D. EVANS: The Minister is in-
dicted for not making a full disclosure,
and If I have transgressed against the good
name of Quinton Stow I want the Minis-
ter,' when replying to this debate, to show
mue why. I am not making an allegation; I
am suggesting the possibility that some of
this land could have been acquired by
these persons who would have been in-
spired and given prior knowledge that this
land was to be part of an improvement
plan. I am suggesting the possibility; I
am not making an allegation.

Be that as it may, let us assume of the
142 dealings which were the subject of
resumption orders signed by the then Min-
ister for Works in 1973, 31 were associated
with land held by Stow, Howie, and Gor-
ton. Here the Minister for Works of the
State Government at the time, acting
under the legitimate powers in the Public
Works Act, was unaware that this land
which he had authorised be resumed was
already held beneficially by the Govern-
mient through the authority. One arm of
the Government did not know what the
other armn of the Government was doing.
It surely cannot be said to be in any way
within public policy that one arm of the
Government is kept in the dark about
what another arm Is doing. If that situa-
tion does not offer opportunity for fraud,
I do not know what does.

On the 2nd November. 1976. the day I
asked my ouestinn of the Premier relating
to when the Government first bec-ame
aware of the allegations and asking on
what date Mr Townsing was appointed, the
Leader of the Opposition asked a question
without notice of the Minister for Indus-
trial Development in the following termr-

Is the Industrial L-ands Development
Authority still buying land through
nominees?
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The Minister's reply was,--
Not to my knowledge at the present
time...

That is not the whole answer but that
is the point I wish to emphasise. The
present Minister-acting in good faith, I
believe, no less than the Minister in 1973
-answered, "Not to my knowledge at the
present time". But in the Daily News of
the 3rd November, 1976, the very next day,
we saw an article bearing the headline
"Secret land deals will go on", and it is
attributed to the Minister under his Sur-
name.

Mr Mensaros: Be fair. I said the same
here in the House.

Mr T. D. EVANS: One arm does not
know what the other arm is doing.

Mr Mensaros: I said that in the House
after the question You recited, and you
deliberately left it off.

Mr T. D). EVANS: The Minister did not
know what the authority was doing.
Surely, as a Parliament, we cannot con-
done-

Mr Mensaros: I used to respect you, you
know.

Mr T. D). EVANS: -these methods being
used by the authority.

Mr T. H. Jones: More fuel and energy
legislation.

Mr Mensaros: The reply continued-the
reply to the question without notice.

Mr T. D. EVANS: I referred earlier to
the newspaper published by the group at
the Western Australian Institute of Tech-
nology. I would like to refer to three Press
headlines. The first is, 'Government covers
up deals In Vale land": then in the the
Daily News of the 2nd November, we see
the heading, "Secret Government land
purchases criticised", with a sub-heading,
"'Most irregular and Potentially danger-
ous'", which was the view of the former
Auditor-General. Later, in the flaily News
of the 4th November, an article was
headed, "We were Pressured out: Land row
owners".

In these circumstances, bearing in mind
that I believe the transactions concerned
were in breach of section 8 of the principal
Act, we are confronted with this piece of
legislation. One provision in a proposed
new section reads as follows-

SA. (1) Any acquisition of land
made by the Development Authority
before the coming into operation of the
Industrial Lands Development Author-
ity Act Amendment Act. 1976, and any
sale, lease or development of. or other
thing done in relation to, any land so
acquired, shall be deemed to be, and
to have always been, as valid and ef-
fectual as it would have been if-

And then certain circumstances are listed.
I will not weary the House with the whole
clause; it is there in the Bill. According to

the marginal note it is a validation clause,
although I could think of a much more
appropriate term for it than that!

For the reasons I have outlined we are
faced with one question: Can the Oppo-
sition support such a measure? Our answer
is: No way.

MR BATEMAN (Canning) (8.33 p.m.]:
I have listened with much interest to the
comments of the member for Kalgoorlie
about this Bill. I am sure you will realise,
Mr Acting Speaker (Mr Elaikie), and I
am certain the Minister will realise, that
I am very interested In this legislation.
The Minister can have no doubt in his
mind about that, because of the number
of questions I have asked him In recent
weeks regarding the Canning Vale area.

The Bill before Parliament tonight is
completely different from the issue in-
volved in the Canning Vale land acquisi-
tion which we have discussed, and about
which I have asked questions. However,
let me say that the two issues are related.
I believe this legislation is almost in the
same category as the fuel and energy legis-
lation, because it gives a Minister
tremendous overriding powers. Until this
Bill Is passed by the Parliament, the
Minister can do all sorts of things outside
the metropolitan area. However, once the
Bill is passed, the Minister will have the
Power and the authority to resume this
Parliament if he so desires. I know It
sounds ridiculous, but It is true. If he
wished, the Minister could resume Sir
Charles Court's house in Nedlands.

Mr Mensaros: The Parliament is on an
"A"-class reserve, you know.

Mr BATEMAN: Okay, I will withdraw
that one. The Minister could resume the
residence of the Deputy Premier and turn
it Into a golf links, if he so desired, once
this Bill has been passed by the Parlia-
ment and promulgated. I believe this is a
very dangerous situation.

Members will recall that a short while
ago I presented to this House a petition
signed by 420 people who live In close
proximity to Canning Vale. They know
what it is like to have their houses re-
sumed and their land taken. Certainly
they did not receive proper re-establish-
ment values for their properties. Had the
People of Canning Vale received reason-
able and equitable re-establishment values
for their Properties, we would not be de-
bating this Bill here tonight. I am quite
sure the Minister would not have Intro-
duced the Bill had it not been for all the
glaring mistakes which occurred in the
little exercise at Canning Vale. I make this
statement without fear of contradiction.

In three or four months' time there may
be a change of Government and perhaps
the Power will lie with another Minister of
a different political colour. It may be good
legislation or It may be bad legislation,
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but at this stage I am not prepared to sup-
port it, when I know of the many people
who have been so greatly affected by the
land acquisition at Canning Vale. I have
lived in this particular area for a very long
time. One particular person who was
thrown out onto the street suffered a
heart attack. The heart attack was
brought about by the worry she experi-
enced over the land resumption in Can-
ning Vale. We must think about all these
people Who have suffered hardships,

I come back again to the matter of a
fair and equitable re-establishment
valuation. I believe that had the lady to
whom I referred and her husband re-
ceived a correct and proper re-establish-
ment valuation to help them purchase a
worth-while property comparable to the
one they were leaving, we would not be
here debating the issue tonight. It Is very
sad to see this type of thing happening.
I suppose hardships occur with all resump-
tions, but we must try to protect the rights
of the individuals involved.

Many errors have occurred in these
transactions, and no doubt similar errors
occur in other parts of Western Australia,
and I am thinking particularly of the
houses in Servetus Street, Swanbourne,
and the houses to be resumed for the
Ewinana Freeway extension. Many of the
people have lived most of their lives In
these houses and raised their families
there. I suppose some people would object
to the shift no matter how much money
the Government offered, but if they could
be given a reasonable sum of money to
re-establish themselves in a comparable
situation somewhere in the metropolitan
area, we would not have a problem of this
magnitude. it seems to me that some
people in the valuations section of the
State Taxation Department are hell-bent
on their favourite course-endeavouring to
give People the least amount of money
Possible.

I do not know the reason for this
attitude. It takes me back to the par-
ticular situation In 1968 and 1969 when
the ncw Premier, at the time Minister
for Industrial Development, brought about
this si 'tuation in Canning Vale. An Hon-
orary Royal Commission inquired Into the
matter and eventually came down with the
opinion that the Canning Vale area had
a high water table and was not conducive
to industrial development. The present
Commissioner for Town Planning (Dr
David Carr) has been trying to get this
development off the ground for two years,
and yet this was the finding of the Royal
Commission.

Mr Mensaros: Can You tell me how you
know the facts relating to the Royal Com-
mission because I was told by the Speaker
that the report had never been tabled;
It Is not a public document and I should
refrain from citing It.

Mr BATEMAN: I have not been stopped
Yet, so I will continue. The Minister must
agree that these are the facts. The whole
issue is suspect, and it Is for this reason
that the member for Kalgoorlie spoke
tonight as he did. it is for this reason
that I have asked questions with regular
monotony. I have asked: How much was
Paid for this? How much was paid for
that? The Premier himself said that many
statements and innuendoes have been made.
He said that if someone comes along with
the facts a committee of inquiry will be
set up to find out what it is all about.
This has already been established. I asked
the Premier why he did not get the
former Auditor-General (Mr Bill Adams)
to look into It, as he seems to know aL lot
about this and was not very happy about
the whole situation, because he said it was
most irregular and subject to all sorts of
irregularities.

I1 think that is where the story started
to unfold. As the member for Kalgoorlie
said, why have a lawyer go out and buy
land through Parker & Parker? That is a
most irregular way to do it Why not go
to a reputable estate agency? it is most
irregular to use a legal firm-

Mr Mensaros: No it isn't.
Mr BATEMAN: -because estate agents

provide all the necessary guarantees in
these dealings. The reason this action is
particularly suspect is that at the time
Quinton Stow was the treasurer of the
Liberal Party. God forbid that I cast any
stones, but I tell the House here and now
that if my party did the same thing I
would be very critical of it. If we used
a lawyer of Labor Persuasion I would be
Just as critical of him as I am of Quinton
Stow, or as I would be of any other mem-
ber of the Liberal Party when a Liberal
Government is in office.

We have let the Government right off
the hook in this respect-, we could whale
right Into it. Even the episode last week
and tonight In respect of the member for
Ascot is a minor one compared with this,
especially If we want really to pull the
lid right off it. However, there is no way
in the world that I want to cast aspersions
on anybody.

Mr Watt: Are you concerned about the
principle or the person involved?

Mr BATEMAN: I am concerned about
the principle; I do not care a damn about
the person. There is a tremendous prin-
ciple Involved. As I said, If it were one of
my own party I would castigate him more
so than I would castigate a person involved
with the Liberal Party.

Mr Watt: Wouldn't the principle be the
same if we used an estate agent?

Mr BATEMAN: No. Let us look at this
fairly: If the honourable member wants to
have It out, I will tell him. When this little
baby was born the present Premier was the
Minister for Industrial Development, and

4016



[Tuesday, 16 November, 1976) 01

the Liberal Government of the day
appointed Quinton Stow as its agent. Mr
Stow was then the treasurer of the iberal
Party. Not only was that the case, but also
the State organizer of the Liberal Party at
that time owned the Boab Inn at Derby
and was associated with the Swan Brewery,

Mr Sodeman: Wasn't the Boab Inn at
Carnarvon?

Mr BATEMAN: God forbid! The member
for Pilbara Is slower than I tbought he was.

Mr Sodeman: You were going to say
Port Hedland, and I knew it wasn't there.

The ACTING SPEAKER (Mr Blaflke):
Order! I hope the member can relate the
Boab Inn to the Bill under discussion.

Mr BATEMAN: I will do just that, Mr
Acting Speaker, and I will now quote from
the Southern Focus of November, 1976, at
page 9. I quote the following for the memr-
ber for Pilbara-

-By a twist of fate, the Swan Brewery
nas had Indirect connections with its
new site in Canning Vale since 1970.

That was before the Labor Plarty became
the Government. It continues-

In January of that year a company
called Anna Plains Pty Ltd bought
land which now makes up a large part
of the brewery site.

On January 30, Robert Mitford
Powell became a director of Anna
Plains, which in April changed its
name to Canning Land and Minerals
Pty Ltd.

Let me pause there, because Canning Land
and Minerals Pty. Ltd. was also owned
by our friend Quinton Stow and two other
employees of Parker & Parker, and It was
taken over by Mr Rowell, who was then the
Liberal Party organizer. The whole situa-
tion just does not ring true; and I again
point out we were not in Government when
this occurred. The article continues--

Mr Rowell remained a director until
November 1971, after the Industrial
Lands Development Authority had
bought all the shares in the company.

The Minister tonight gave us a great many
facts and figures about that. To continue-

During this time, Mr Howell was a
director also of Derby Boab Inn Pty
Ltd. which had been a brewery sub-
sidiary since 1966, when four brewer
directors were appointed to Its board.

To me it Is strange that the piece of land
on which the brewery will stand was once
owned by Canning Land and Minerals Pty.
Ltd., and that Mr Rowell had-and still
has, I think-something to do with the
Swan Brewery. That situation has a hollow
ring to It.

The Premier talked about Innuendo and
said that we should produce the facts if
we have them.

Sir Charles Court: That's the idea.

Mr BATEMAN: I am sure those facts
have been Introduced. God forbid that I
should cast a, stone where I should not.
No-one says there has been Impropriety,
but I do say this: The whole situation has
been subject to some of the most irregular
connotation that It could possibly be sub-
ject to. No-one in his right mind could
say the Labor Party was responsible for
this situation, because it was stated at the
time by the Honorary Royal Commission
that the water table was so high In the
area in question at Canning Vale that it
was not conducive to light industrial pur-
poses.

Yet despite that comment by the Hon-
orary Royal Commission we went ahead
and produced the site which is now known
as the Canning Vale Improvement Plan
No. 7. I wonder why we went ahead with
it after being told by the Honorary Royal
Commission that we should not develop
that area for this particular purpose. I
wonder whether Mr Rowell and Mr Quin-
ton Stow, who were appointed two years
before the Honorary Royal Commission,
had some influence on the development
of this area.

I have paper after Paper on this matter,
and I can go back through them and see
such headings as, "No land speculators
knew of plan In the south suburban area',
back in 1970. That article was written by
poor old Bert Crowley who I think is now
deceased.

Mr Davies: He is still alive and going
well; any reports to the contrary jare
highly exaggerated.

Mr B3ATEMAN: I am glad to hear that,
and I thank the member for Victoria
Park. Again I ask the Minister to think
twice about this. We should stop and think
about the petition presented to the House
recently, which reads-

We the undersigned wish to pro-
test against the proposed legislation
currently before Parliament to make
legal the Land Development Authority
Act Amendment Act, 1976, regarding
the fact the Government is desirous of
Putting beyond doubt and also ensure
that the transactions already com-
pleted in the Canning Vale Industrial
Zone were placed beyond question and
In point of fact sets up the industrial
Lands Development Authority as a
real estate firm...

That is exactly what It is doing.
The Minister is setting himself up as a

real estate firm, and proposes to do away
with all the problems he had In the past
of having to appoint trustees or nominees
or whatever they may be.

Under this validatory clause there is
absolutely nothing the Minister will not
be able to do; it will Provide him with
tremendous powers of acquisition which
will make a mockery of the metropolitan
region town planning scheme and the
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schemes of every local authority. As the
Minister knows, all metropolitan local
authorities work closely together In the
area of town planning. Once this Bill is
passed, the Minister's power and authority
will override all those schemes.

In an extreme instance, the Minister
overnight would be able to turn a nice,
happy urbanised area into an industrial
area. it is true that such a proposal
would generate a tremendous amount of
protest, but there is no way in the world
we as a Parliament could stop the Min-
ister, once this Bill is passed.

The 420 petitioners, all of whom live
within a radius of three or four miles of
the Canning Vale light industrial area
felt so strongly about this matter that they
presented their petition to Parliament in
the hope that the Minister would take
some cognizance of their views, and of the
value of their land-the place where their
mothers and children were born. However,
I suppose It is stupid to express such a
hope in respect of petitions. I have been
here for 81 years and in that time have
seen only one petition replied to in this
place; that was by the H-on. Edgar Lewis.
the then member for Moore, who replied
to a petition I introduced relating to
education. Otherwise, petitions are laid on
the Table of the House and they go
straight down to the dungeon, and that
Is where they stay. No-one takes any cog-
nizance of the energy and effort put into
preparing petitions.

This matter means a lot to these 420
people; they are fair dinkum and expect
me as their representative in Parliament
to obtain an answer for them. They are
entitled to an answer. They put me here to
do a job for them, and I demand an
answer from the Minister. However, the
only answer they have received to the
many queries raised in this place has. been
silence.

I am sure the same situation will apply
in respect of my request on this occasion,
and to the petition which I just read to
the House. They will not even get a bland
"Yes", "No", or "We are indifferent to
their problems".

I am not criticising only the Govern-
ment of the day in respect of being ig-
nored; I also criticise the Government of
my day. it seems to be the system of this
place, but it is just not on.

one of the councilors of the Town of
Canning felt so strongly about the Bill now
before the House that he wrote a letter to
the Editor of The West Australian which
unfortunately was not printed. However,
at least he supplied me with a copy be-
cause he knew of my interest in the matter.
He asks, "Why do land transactions need
validating?" I believe the Minister will
agree that is a reasonable question. The
Government has made many blunders in
regard to the Canning Vale situation. Why

will not the Minister table all the papers
relating to the deals and transactions
which took place?

Mr May: Secrecy!
Mvr BA'TEMAN: If the Minister will do

that, I undertake not to rise in the Par-
liament on this matter again. The Premier
said that if there are any innuendos and
if anyone has anything to say, let him
speak up or shut up. That is what I am
doing now. if the Minister tables the
records of all the transactions which have
taken place in Canning Vale, the opposi-
tion will examine them and, if they are
satisfactory and above board, I will not
raise the matter again. That is all I am
asking.

The Premier made that statement, but
he had Bill Mitchell working for him as
a go-between. He also had his own cohort,
the former Under-Treasurer. However, he
will not have Bill Adams, the former
Auditor-General. He will not have a bar of
him because Bill Adams knows too much.

Sir Charles Court: Do not talk rot!
Mr BATEMAN: I am not talking rot.

The Premier also had a lawyer sitting be-
hind Bill Adams, so he should not talk
about rot to me! I know what is going
on behind the scenes better than does the
Premier. The Premier is the one who is
talking rot. If he wants to go on with
this business, I will be only too happy to
do to so. Who paid for the services of
the QC? It was paid out of taxpayers'
money to protect people like Quinton Stow
and the others. I. know what is going on
behind the scenes.

Sir Charles Court: Do not go on like a
child.

Mr BATEMAN: I have never stooped to
being a guttersnipe, so the Premier should
not accuse me of talking rot.

Sir Charles Court: You could have
fooled us.

Mr BATEMAN: I should like the Prem-
ier to call in Mr Adams, but he will not.

Sir Charles Court: Why does he not write
in and ask us?

Mr BATEMAN: Why does the Premier
not ask him? He obtained the services of
Mr Townsing, an appointee of the Premier.
Why is the Premier afraid of Mr Adams?
He is scared to appoint him.

Sir Charles Court: We answered your
question about Mr Adams. Get him to send
in his information.

Mr BATEMAN: The Premier answered
my question in the way he wanted to ans-
wer it. Why will not the Premier appoint
Mr Adams?

Sir Charles Court: You have a look at
Mr Adams' reports and then look at sub-
sequent reports of Auditors-General. They
are public documents. Why do you not
read them?
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Mr BATEMAN: They may be public
documents, but I defy the Premier to be
able to select anything out of such reports.

Sir Charles Court: Now you are insulting
Adams hinmseif, because he was an Auditor-
General. He does not belong to the Goy-
ernment but to the Parliament.

Mr BATEMAN: Mr Deputy Speaker, I
am sorry to have become so carried away.
The councillor of the Town of Canning,
to whom I have already referred, wrote
the following letter to The West Austra-
Uan-

The 'West Australian' reported, on
Wednesday October 20th, 1976, the
following statement by the Minister
for Industrial Development, when in-
troducing the Lands Development Au-
thority Act, Amendment Act 1978, and
I quote: -

"The Government wanted to put
the matter beyond doubt and
also ensure that the transactions
already completed were placed be-
yond question."'

Of course, the letter was not printed: I
think that newspaper had its own reasons
for not doing so. What does the Minister
think about that?

Mr Menisaros: That is all right.

Mr BATEMAN: Is the Minister quite
happy about that?

Mr Mensaros: Of course.
Mr BATEMAN: The letter continues-

The question that should be
answered by the Minister is*.-

"What land transactions did
take place which now require
legislation to make them valid?"

The Bill has a validatory clause relating to
past transactions. That is right, is it not?

Mr Mensaros; Yes.
Mr BATEMAN: It will make legal some-

thing which was illegal?
Mr Mensaros: It might have been illegal.

I will explain it to the honourable mem-
ber when I reply.

Mr BATEMAN: The letter continues-
The amendments proposed, includ-

ing the validating clause, leave no
doubt in my mind the time has come
to speak up against the Amendment
Bill because of its far-reaching im-
plications . . . Wrongful action by the
relevant State authorities should not
be simply rectified by a validation
clause. I submit the following in
support of that statement.

I quite agree that the introduction of this
validatory clause does not let all these
people off the hook.

I come now to the fact that many ques-
tions have been asked and answered with
variations by the Minister. I am not ac-
cusing him;, I am accusing his department

because he can answer questions only as
his department answers them. One very
interesting question was from the member
for Kalgoorlie to the Premier. He asked-

.'.how many instances of known
invalidity and dubious validity are
there attached to past land acquisi-
tions by the Industrial Lands Develop-
mnent. Authority?

The Premier said-
It has been accepted by successive
Governments since ITLDA was estab-
lished that the Authority may pur-
chase land by private treaty in the
metropolitan area.

Of course this gives the Minister now the
right to purchase land In this area. The
Premier continued-

I am advised that there have been 18
purchasr-s or exchanges of land since
the authority was established.

That is so wrong that it is stupid in the
extreme.

Let us have a jolly good lock at this
matter. In the Government Gazette of the
2nd March, 1973, there were 32 transac-
tions alongside the name of Quinton Ran-
dolph Stow. I have underlined them. Yet
the Premier said, "I am advised". He has
been advised by his department. That de-
partment needs a good shake-up. The
Premier said-

I am advised that there have been 218
purchases or exchanges of land since
the Authority was established.

Mr Mensaros: That is right.

Mr BATEMAN. This Is only one docu-
ment: 142 exchanges of land but one
Quinton Randolph Stow had 31 exchanges.

Mr Mensaros: These are resumptions.

Mr BATEMAN: The Minister can have
it if he wants it.

Mr Mensaros: I know that.
Sir Charles Court: The whole thing Is

a misreading. The question was about
purchases.

Mr B3ATEMAN: The Premier said-
I am advised that there have been 18
purchases or exchanges of land since
the Authority was established.

What the hell is that then?
Mr Mensaros: That Is resumption and

the question is about purchase.
Mr BATEMAN: Are they not exchanges

of land?
Mr Mensaros: Not purchases.

Mr BATEMAN: They are purchases. if
somebody resumes my property is that not
a purchase? Has the Minister given it
another name now? He cannot get off the
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hook. As the Premier said, he is wriggling
on the book. Don't flop your hand like
that at me!

Sir Charles Court: You are making a
fool of yourself. It does not become You.

Mr BATEMAN: The Minister is wrig-
gling on the hook. If he wants to have a
look through this document he can see
where I have underlined the name of
Quinton Randolph Stow.

Mr O'Neil: Who signed the resumption
order?

Mr BATEMAN: I am not worried about
who signed them. When was the baby
born? It was in the Premier's day in 1969
when he was Minister for Industrial De-
velopment. Do not tell me he did not know
what was going on. The Premier should
not tell me he did not know what was
going on in 1969 because I know him too
well. If he did not know he is an incom-
petent Minister and I know he is not an
incompetent Minister. He knew what was
going on in the Industrial Lands Devel-
opment Authority and in the Department
of Industrial Development and he was the
responsible Minister when this baby was
born.

Mr O'Neil: Just tell me who signed that
resumption order.

Mr Jamieson: Of course I did. I signed
a lot for local authorities too.

Mr BATEMAN: The Premier knew what
was going on, so do not try to pull the
wool over our eyes.

Sir Charles Court: Just read out
that little bit at the bottom as to who
signed the resumption order.

Mr Jamieson: That is a great thing!
Of course I did. I had no more idea than
you would have known in that regard.' I
had a responsibility to do it-you know
that.

Sir Charles Court: Why do you com-
plain?

Mr Jamieson: What a lot of nonsense!
The ACTING SPEAKER (Mr Blailie):

Order 1
Mr Jamieson: What a lot of nonsense

the Premier speaks.
The ACING SPEAKER: Order!
Mr Jamieson: What about him too?
The ACTING SPEAKER: Order! I call

the Leader of the Opposition to order.
Mr Jamieson: Why do you not call the

Premier to order too?
The ACTING SPEAKER: Order! The

member for Canning.
Mr BATEMAN: I did not think I had

provoked so much antagonism. I thought
this sort of thing happened Only on
Thursday nights.

To sum up the situation, I thought an
article in the Sunday independent of the
'7th November was very well written. It
was headed, "Stop the Bill" and con-
tinued-

The WA Goverrnent has a two-
fold responsibility to the people of this
State after recent criticism of land
transactions.

I am being very serious now and I think
all of us in this Chamber ought to think
about this because the article sums up
very clearly what we ought to do with
this Bill. It continued-

It must Immediately defer plans to
amend the Industrial Lands De-
velopment Authority Act.

And it must make sure there is an
outside investigation into all as-
pects of land dealings at Canning
Vale.

It is simply not good enough to hold
another (Laverton type) internal
inquiry.

That is what is happening at the moment.
To continue-

Legislation now before Parliament is
intended to whitewash and make
legal any wrongs in relation to
Government land dealings.

That is exactly what is happening. To
continue-

In Industrial Development Minister
Mensaros' words "It places beyond
doubt the validity of any acquisi-
tion, sale, lease or development of
land affected by the Authority
(UJDA).1

At this point in time, whether he or
the Premier, Sir Charles Court
wish to acknowledge it or not,
there Is serious doubt over the
H.DA and MRPA dealings in Can-
ning Vale.

Mr Mensaros has already used "pend-
ing legislation" as reason for re-
fusing to answer questions sub-
mitted by WAIT student journa-
lists on the Canning Vale land.

I am not interested in that. The article
continued-

The students have produced evidence
to show that the ILDA has been
roundly criticised by the Auditor
General's Department.

I am interested in that. To continue-
There is also evidence that the Honor-

ary Royal Commision has been at
least Ignored, possibly circum-
vented.

Sir Charles Court said early in the
week that he wanted "something
better than rumour, innuendo and
hearsay."

I submit to the Premier that we have
done Just this here tonight.

Sir Charles Court: Like fun You have.
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Mr BATEMAN: We
something better than
nuendo and rumnour.
tinued-

have submitted
hearsay and in-
The article con-

What more does he want now? Op-
Position Leader, Mr Jamieson, who
apparently shares our opinion, has
called for a judicial inquiry.

But our main concern is the apparent
attempted cover up. who said
Watergate could not happen here?

Mr Jamieson: I was not too sure
whether I was on the right track here.
When Peter Wright agrees with me I think
I had better think it out again.

Mr BATEMAN: I will go along with
that because he is certainly not on our
side.

Sir Charles Court: I do not know whose
side he Is on then.

Mr Jamieson: I will very soon tell you.
Mr BATEMAN: I will give a written

guarantee that he is not on our side,
but that is by the way. There is a prob-
lem; there is something that must be
looked at; there is something that must
be achieved by both sides of this House
if we are to prevent this sort of nonsense
ever happening again. People must be
given reasonable compensation for their
properties when they are resumed in
order to rehabilitate themselves. I think
this is the most important facet of the
whole matter because all the problems oc-
cur when they do not receive a decent
amount of money to rehabilitate them-
selves. In no way can those poor people
in Canning Vale, who have been treated
shabbily, harshly and unreasonably, ever
re-establish themselves on similar Pro-
perties with similar facilities; that is, 8J
miles from Perth with electric light,
schools, roads and water-all the things
near and dear to them. I say again-I
have said it outside so I may as well say
it here--

Mr O'Connor: Some of your colleagues
are not the same in that regard.

Mr BATEMAN: I will say outside what
I have said here. An invalid pensioner
and her husband had a house on 4J acres
of land resumed for $27 500. The Swan
Brewery paid $22 000 for one acre of that
property.

Mr May: No wonder there is no beer!
Mr BATEMAN: We wonder why these

people get upset. I appreciate that the
price paid by Swan Brewery for the land
included the cost of sewerage and drainage,
but no-one can tell mue that the owner of
a property should not be paid enough to
rehabilitate him or her. In this case the
woman should be paid an adequate amount
to rehabilitate herself and her husband on
a 4*-acre property with a house, and with
similar facilities and services, such as easy
access to school, the availability of water
and electricity, in an area within 8J miles
of Perth.

I say this without any fear of contradic-
tion: if the Minister can tell me where I
can buy a 41-acre property about 8* miles
from Perth, on which is established a house
with a tiled roof and a timber and asbestos
frame for $27 500 1 will go straight out and
buy it. I say such a property cannot be
bought at that price; yet that was what
the owner of the property had to put up
with. She was evicted, because she did not
want to leave her home. The home to every
woman is her castle. There was no com-
passion shown at all when the valuers from
the Public Works Department valued these
properties.

They did not take into consideration the
fact that the people affected had raised
children on those properties: had spent
their lives there; had seen their loved ones
pass away on them; and had seen them
taken away from those places to be buried.
Yet, the valuers from the department could
not care less. I realise that this aspect
does not come into the question of valua-
tion, but in these cases It should.

I shall repeat this as long as It is neces-
sary for me to do so. The important
factor is that those people must be pro-
vided with an adequate re-establishment
value so that at least they can re-establish
themselves somewhere else, whether it be at
Swanbourne, Sublaco, or Armadale, on a
similar basis to the properties that they
have lost. If they are knocked over they
should be Picked up again.

The people in the Canning Vale district
who have been affected by resumptions
have received many knocks and bumps. We
find that in the case of resumptions in
other areas--and there will be many of
these in the history of any Government-
when the people affected are knocked over,
they are picked up again and given a fair
go. That is all the people I am referring
to have asked for. If the Government does
what I have suggested It will not be faced
with the same argument, the same prob-
lem, and the same troubles on other
occasions, and it will not have to worry
about bringing before Parliament an
obnoxious Bill such as the one we have
before us. Before I resume my seat have
I much time left, Mr Deputy Speaker?

The DEPUTY SPEAKER: The honour-
able member has five more minutes.

Mr BATEMAN: I oppose the Hill.

MR JAXIESON (Welshpool-Leader of
the Opposition) [9.13 pm.): Since time
Immemorial the acquisition of property
from private persons for government pur-
poses has caused many problems In vari-
ous communities, whether they be in Aus-
tralia, the USA. or elsewhere. One needs
only to go back into the history of the
USA to learn that resumptions of areas
of land by Governments for railway lines
and the like caused an upsurge in
banditry; and Jesse James was only one of
those who rebelled, because of the Gov-
ernment's activities.
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This problem will always be one of satis-
fying the people from whom the Govern-
ment of the day acquires or resumes land.
Having been Minister f or Works for three
years when I was in charge of land resump-
tions. I bad in that period to deal with
many resumptions and many appeals, and
in that period many amazing things hap-
pened.

The Premier makes much play of the
fact that during my term as Minister for
Works I resumed a lot of land from
Quinton Stow who already owned the land
on behalf of the Government. On occa-
sions I queried the fact that I was resum-
ing land from myself, as Minister and as
the nominal holder of the land In vanious
places. It was explained by the Crown Law
officers that this was the easiest way of
clearing the title In order that the land
might be used for the Intended purposes.
No doubt that was why I was obliged by
another department to take the action
which I did take on those occasions.

Nevertheless, one is amazed at the
bungling which went on, and which un-
doubtedly was initiated through the action
of the Premier when he was Minister for
Industrial Development, because of the
way in which he Introduced the system
which evidently did not have the full cover
of the law.

Legislating retrospectively for past acts
Is always dangerous, and I suggest that
the Government should cut its losses In
this case and negotiate again where there
is some doubt about the legality of the
transaction. This would be a much fairer
way, and it would suit those concerned.
particularly the constituents of the mem-
ber for Canning. Some of them consider
they have received a rough deal.

it is difficult to judge every case. I
remember dealing with certain cases In-
volving families which owned properties
north of the city. These Properties had
been bought. Repeatedly one lady came to
see me, because she considered the value
was much higher than the Price she had
received for her property. It was not re-
sumed, but was acquired under a certain
zoning. Subsequently the land was re-
zoned for another purpose. Her claim could
not be substantiated in any shape or form,
and indeed I told her and the people who
were with her that that was the position.

At the time of the formation of the
Constitution of the Commonwealth of
Australia, the constitutional fathers, no
doubt from their experience in the State
Legislatures, discovered there were prob-
lems in this regard and they knew that
Governments were inclined to be severe on
landowners in some Instances,

As a consequence, they decided to write
into the powers of the Parliament section
51 of the Commonwealth Constitution,
Placitum (xxxi) of that section reads as

Wofows--

The acquisition of property on just
terms from any State or person for
any purpose In respect of which the
Parliament has power to make laws:

I think that was a right and proper
declaration by the people framing the
Constitution.

unfortunately we in this State do not
have a Constitution as such. We have a
unity Constitution, and our powers for
acquiring land are to be found in the
Public Works Act. They relate to the
acquisition of land for public works and
for the specific purposes laid down. The
purposes change from time to time, and at
one stage we had the right to resume land
for housing purposes but that power no
longer exists.

However, the Government has the right
to resume and acquire land for many pur-
poses, and this aspect was foremost In the
minds of those who drew up the Federal
Constitution. They realised there would be
problems, and that at times authorities
were inclined to be overbearing in their
attitude towards the rights of the people.

This was again evident during the pre-
liminary discussions before the last Con-
stitutional Convention. Committee "B"
gave this particular section of the Con-
stitution quite a deal of consideration and
ultimately suggested that if just terms
should be applicable to the Federal Gov-
ernment, then they should be applicable
also t3 the State and Territorial Govern-
ments.

As a matter of fact, at the Constitu-
tional Convention in Hobart recently, Mr
Leedman, the representative from the
Federal Territory Legislative Assembly,
handled the item on behalf of committee
"B"31, and he moved a resolution under
agenda item No. H.18. The motion,
seconded by Mr Coleman, was-

That the Resolution-That this
Convention recommends that the Con-
stitution be amended in relation to
mainland Territories and, as regards
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this resolu-
tion, in relation also to the States--

(a) so as to ensure that the "Just
terms" requirement of section
51 Cxxxi) should be made to
extend to any acquisition of
property by the Common-
wealth in such a Territory or
under a section 122 law or by
the government of such a
Territory and also to extend
to any acquisition of property
by a State in the State;

I will not read paragraph (b) because it
deals with another subject.

The debate was not very long. An
amendment was moved to delete the refer-
ence to the States. In other words the
desire was that the acquisition of prop-
erty on just terms was to apply to the
Commonwealth and to the Governments
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of the Territories, but it was not to be
extended to the Governments of the
States.

I could not go along with this, and I
was very clear in my mind on the subject
because over a long period I have had
experience of acquisitions on behalf of the
State and many of them appeared to me
to be quite unfair. Others appeared to be
reasonable, but to me just terms should
always apply in connection with dealings
with landowners. Therefore, having gone
through the mill, and having been the
person on whom local authorities and
others relied in connection with resump-
tions. I was Prepared to be considerate
when land deals were under discussion.

Getting back to the point made by the
Premier, many people do not understand
the responsibility one has when one must
sign one of these requisitions. I well
remember some irate fishermen from
Dongara arriving at my home on one
occasion because I had resumed a trunca-
tion on the corner of their property. Al-
though I had signed the appropriate
paper, I knew very little about the matter
because I had signed thousands of such
papers at the request of local authorities.
However, on this occasion, because my
signature was involved, the fishermen
came to see me, and they were not very
happy. However, I was able to convince
them at the time that I was only the
catalyst by whom the action was taken
and that they should lodge their comn-
Plaint with the local authority.

The fishermen did not consider that just
terms had been applied, and some of those
at the Constitutional Convention did not
consider that just terms were being applied
in connection with property acquisitions
and resumptions by the States.

As I said, an amendment was moved to
delete the following-

and, as regards paragraph (a) and
(b) of this resolution, in relation also
to the States.

In other words it was felt that the States
should not have to comply with the re-
quirement. I ask members to guess the
names which appeared on the division list
against the provision that Property should
be acquired on Just terms. Some of the
names which appeared with the "Ayes" in
favour of the amendment were-

Clarko, J. G. (WA)
Court, Sir Charles (WA)
MacKinnon, G. C. (WA)
McNeill, N. (WA)
MePharlin, W. R. (WA)
Medcalf, 1. G. (WA)

It is easily realised why the legislation is
before us. Members of the Government
know what occurred In regard to the
rironerty acquisition and I am sure they
knew that just terms had not been applied.
B': their vote on that amendment they in-
dicated they did not consider that just

terms should apply when the State is
acquiring land. On that occasion they had
an opportunity to demonstrate that they
believed just terms should apply, but they
did not take advantage of it. 'They in-
dicated by their vote that they do not
consider the State should apply just terms.

Borne of the properties have been ac-
quired fairly and some have been acquired
by unorthodox methods, but probably in
accordance with the law, while it is doubt-
ful whether others have been acquired in
the correct manner.

Because of these factors, we suggest
that the law should remain as it Is at
present, and that the situation should be
resolved on an equitable basis between
the owners or former owners and the Gov-
ernment of the day to ensure that the
people are not deprived of any of their
legal rights as a result of the passing of
the legislation which is to apply retro-
spectively.

If the Government adopts the course I
suggest, many of the problems will be re-
solved and If any legislation Is required In
the future to cover the activities of the
Industrial Lands Development Authority It
can be dealt with at the appropriate time.

However, I suggest that In all fairness
we should not pass the legislation before
us. We should give the people Involved an
opportunity to obtain legal representation
for negotiations with the Government so
that the existing problems can be re-
solved. When that has been done, then,
and then only. should amendments be
made to place IIJDA in a different position
when It acquires land In the future. Then
we can Include a provision requiring the
authority-as we would or should require
any other authority-to acquire property
on just terms instead of on the usual basis
of the valuation price plus 10 per cent for
compulsory acquisition. That Is not reason-
able or fair enough. The member for
Canning gave a number of examples to
Prove that the people were adversely
affected.

The homes of many people are resumed
at a certain Price and it Is not sufficient
for a replacement home to be obtained.
In many instances people have established
themselves in a certain locality where they
wish to remain for the rest of their lives
and the 10 per cent paid to them is not
sufficient to compensate for the disruption.
More Just conditions should prevail.

I think I have said enough to Indicate
I am opposed to the legislation in Its
present form at this juncture and that I
consider the House should defeat the Bill
and allow ILDA to submit suggested leg-
islation after the problem has been re-
solved.

MR MENSAROS (Floreat-Minister for
Industrial Development) [9.30 p.m.): I
think the second reading debate on this
Bill is taking place in-if one wants to be
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polite and mild-rather unfortunate cir-
cumnstances. This situation arose, or be-
came known to the Government after the
Introduction of the Bill. I am not talking
now about the legal technicalities which
the Bill is designed to correct; I am talk-
ing about the allegations, the mud throw-
Ing, and the smear campaign which was
started by the media-cleverly started In
a way possibly as a result of legal advice
to remain beyond the barrier of our libel
laws, but having sufficient imnpllcations to
try to damage generally the Public Service
and, perhaps, even Ministers of the Crown
and certain other persons.

Mr H. D. Evans: The Minister should
not have placed himself, or the Public
Service, in that position.

Mr MENSASOS: I am prepared to reply
to interjections, but that is a general state-
ment, and not a specific question.

Contrary to what the member for Kal-
goorlie said-and I was very sorry to hear
his remarks, because I have developed a
respect for him; we have opposed each
other in different fields--the Government
did not know of any fraud. The Govern-
mnent took the trouble to ascertain there
was no fraud, and nothing untoward in any
dealings. The Government is satisfied.

I Intend to cover the matters which
were raised during the debate. I think the
member for Kalgoorlie and the member
for Canning said we first knew of the ac-
cusations on the 1st September. Of course,
on the 1st September we knew about the
possibility of legal Irregularity. The rather
unusual action of having a writ issued-
not submitted to the Supreme Court, but
submitted to the Crown Law Department
representing the opponents or defendants
-with the threat that If agreement could
be reached the writ would not be lodged,
but If agreement could not be reached
the writ would be lodged, I leave it to the
Deputy Leader of the Opposition, who was
Interested, to assess In his own mind what
the best English word for that action would
be.

The allegation tried to assassinate
Personalities and characters In the Public
Service.

Mr Bateman: I ask the Minister to hold
on. No-one has assassinated anyone.

Mr MENSAROS: The member tried to.
Mr Bateman: No character was assass-

inated, and there was no accusation of
fraud. No-one has carried out any charac-
ter assassination?

Mr MENSAROS: The member said the
question of fraud was open. Is not that
character assassination?

Mr Bateman: There was no character
assassination. We asked the Minister to
table the papers.

Mr MENSAROS: I would like the mem-
ber opposite to listen, because I am trying
to explain the Position logically, and in all
Its aspects. The member for Kalgoorlie

stated the allegations which could have
involved fraud came to our knowledge
earlier than the Bill was introduced. This
Is not so. It did come to oar knowledge
exactly as the Premier stated in his reply
which the member cited. We were
told an exercise was going on at a place
of learning, or teaching, where people were
Involving themselves to create this smear
campaign.

I want to digress for a minute. Without
any Proof two members of the opposi-
tion-the member for Kalgoorlie and the
member for Canning-alleged or implied
that because somebody Is of the opposite
Political colour he could not be honest.

Mr Bateman: I will have to pull the
Minister into gear on that point. I did
not imply that he was dishonest. I did
Imply It was perfectly Irregular-and I
still say it was irregular. I would criticise
my own party If the same Irregularity
occurred. It was an Irregular action on the
part of the party represented by the Min-
ister. If my party did the same thing I
would castigate it too; make no bones about
that. The action was irregular, and the
Minister cannot say it was not.

The DEPUTY SPEAKER: Order!
Mr MENSAROS: I ask the member to

listen to me. r am not talking about Irre-
gularities; I am talking about allegations
of fraud.

Mr Bateman: Who said anything about
fraud? I defy the Minister to show me in
Hansard where there Is any reference to
fraud.

Mr MENSAROS: If the argument of the
member opposite Is to be illogical, it Is not
worth listening to. I am talking about
character assassination and a smear cam-
paign.

Mr Bateman: I am not denying that.

Mr MENSAROS: I am not referring to
the member opposite, but to the Press. I
ask the member opposite to listen to me,
and then I will come to the assassination
of certain characters. I doubt whether
anyone could produce a Person who Is
more scrupulously honest than is Mr
Quinton Stow.

Mr Bateman: I am not denying that.
Mr MENBAROS: The members opposite

implied there could be something fraudu-
lent in what he did.

Mr Bateman: I would say the same thing
about one of my own members.

Mr MENSAROS: Without indulging In
Personalities, the smear campaign started
at a place of education. One feels sorry
about this sort of situation, and to under-
stand It one has to look at the political and
moral background of the people concerned.
It is a very sad situation. Those people
teach youngsters, but they have not
adopted a responsible attitude.
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Before going into detail, I want to assure
the member opposite that I never say any-
thing Inside this House that I would not
be prepared to say outside the House.

Mr Batenman: I have never said anything
in this House that I would be afraid to
say outside of it.

Mr MENSAROS: There was nothing uan-
toward or unethical in what occurred , nor
was any profit motive involved. The alle-
gation by the member for Kalgoorlie that
Parker & Parker would have purchased
some land before the deed was drawn up,is not true. That was a specific question.

Mr T. D. Evans: The member for Kal-
goorlie did not make that allegation. It
was possible I drew that conclusion from
the answer supplied to my question.

Mr MENSAROS: It Is not possible. The
first purchases of land by Parker &
Parker were made on a deed of trust signed
by the Rural and Industries Bank, and
Parker & Parker. That is a fact I must
mention.

Mr T, D. Evans: Why did you not make
that disclosure beforehand?

Mr MENSAROS: Because the member
did not ask that particular question. Of
course, he can ask hundreds of questions
now which I could not have anticipated
and answered before they were asked.

Mr Bateman: I have asked question
after question in this Rouse.

Mr MENSAROS: I ask the member op-
posite. to try to be logical.

Mr Bateman: Why did you not table the
documents?

The DEPUTY SPEAKER: Order, the
member for Canning. The Minister Will
continue.

Mr MENSAROS: I ask the member for
Kalgoorlie to point out where he asked
that particular question with regard to
Parker & Parker purchasing on their
own account.

Mr T. D. Evans: The member for Kal-
goorlie did not say that at all,

Mr MENSAHOS: Did not the member for
Kalgoorlie say, a minute ago that the
questions were not answered? The question
was not asked.

Mr Bateman: Would the Minister like
the question to be asked now? I would like
to have the opportunity to stand up and
have another go.

The DEPUTY SPEAKER: Order!
Mr MENSAROS: In the American

Senate I could concede my right of speak-
ing and the member opposite would have
the right to speak again, but we do not
have a similar Standing Order here-
which I regret.

Mr Bateman: Just as well we do not
have a similar Standing Order here.

Mr MENSAROS: There is no truth In
the allegation. Again I repeat: I can only
answer questions which are asked. Another
200 questions could be asked now, but I
am going into those questions raised dur-
Iug the debate.

Concerning the accusation which has
just been made-apart from those I men-
tioned earlier-I have shown the trust
deed to a reporter of, I think,
the Dly News. The Press were after
allegations, and I showed the deed to the
reporter and he was satisfied.

The Rural and Industries Bank bought
the land first through nominees. Then it
became disinterested in a swap deal be-
tween the Coog-ee land and the Canning
Vale land and later on left the land to the
Industrial Lands Development Authority,
but the Rural and Industries Bank made
the trust deed with the solicitors.

Secondly, there was an allegation that
Mr Rowell could have made his invest-
ment through knowing something in ad-
vance at the time he made It. That Is not
true either, because he did nut know any-
thing-

Mr Bateman: How do you know he did
not know anything?

Mr MENSAROS: I am trying to tell the
honourable member-

Mr Bateman: How do you know so much
about Mr Rowell that you know he did not
know anything?

Mr MEN'SAROS: I will tell the honour-
able member. Then he, was bought out. His
company's share was bought out because
that was the technical way to buy the
land. He was in fact an aggrieved party. He
bought the land for a long-term invest-
ment and was absolutely reluctant to give
it away.

Mr Bateman: How do you know all this?
Mr MENSAROS: I know because there

were people who dealt with him and,
contrary to the honourable member. I
believe in human beings.

Mr Bateman: You are pulling a long
bow now.

Sir Charles Court: The member for
Canning Is putting on an act for his
electors.

The ACTING SPEAKER (Mr Blalkie):
Order 1

Mr MENSAROS: If the member for
Canning wants to ask a question I sug-
gest he Put his hand up and I will wait
to hear his Interjection and reply to ft.

Mr Bateman: I would like to stand up.
Mr MENSAROS: The reason I know

this is simply that I interviewed the peo-
ple who at that time dealt with Mr Rowell
in this manner and they had the Impression
that he was very reluctant to sell. They
went on with the negotiations. The only
benefit he had was to sell the shares of
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the company, in which case he would not
lose so much in taxation. So ILDA
bought the company instead and uased it
f or further purchases.

Mr Moiler interjected.

Mr MENSAROS: Does the member for
Mundaring want to ask a question or is
he just talking?

Mr Moiler: I said you aided and abetted
him to evade taxation.

Mr MENSAROS: A question on which a
great deal of Importance was plated was:
Why does not Mr Adams inquire into
things?

Mr Bateman: That is the question I
asked the Premier. You are not organising
the investigation; the Premier is organis-
Ing the investigation.

Mr MEN1SAROS: I am still at liberty to
talk about it and I do not have views which
are different from those of the Premier.
I give one reason which I leave to the
honourable member's judgment. It was re-
ported that Mr Adams said-

It could be dangerous to carry on
a practice like this. You would need
aL written agreement very close with
these people who were the nominees.

That is what Mr Adams said according to
the newspaper; that is what he was re-
ported as saying and he did not deny it.
If the report is correct, Mr Adams does
not remember that he, as the Auditor-
General, saw the written documents which
he is asking for. He saw the deeds of trust,
as is implied in his Auditor-General's re-
port. Certainly he complains now about
something, the opposite of which he veri-
fied to be there. So what kind of credibility
would the honourable member give the
man today? If someone, saw a written
document and certified it was a written
document, and now suddenly asks for it,
what does the honourable member think
about it?

Mr Bateman: If you are so worried and
scared, why don't you reveal the whole
story as he, the Auditor-General, saw it?
I do not know Mr Adams from a bar of
Burford's but I know the Premier knows
the former Under-Treasurer very well.
Probably he does not know Mr Adams very
well.

Sir Charles Court: I do-he was the
Auditor-General.

The ACTING SPEAKER (Mr Blaikie):
Order! The Minister will continue his
speech.

Mr MENSAROS: I repeat that it is
illogical behaviour if on the one hand the
Opposition asks, "Why do you spend money
for someone to investigate the matter?"
and on the other hand it says. "Investi-
gate everything."

Mr Bateman interjected.

Mr MENSAROS: Would the member for
Canning give me a little chance?

Sir Charles Court: He is just putting on
an act tonight, and not a very good one
either. There is a grin all over his face.

The ACTING SPEAKER:, Order!

Mr MENSAROS: The suggestion has
been made that the land was bought for
a certain Price and was sold to ILDA
for a certain much higher price. I can
assure the House ILDA is not there to
make a profit; nor does it make a profit. It
has to acquire the land for a price, and
sell it according to the cost of the
development, earthworks, sewerage,
water, and services on it. That is the
price the authority sets. If there is a slight
difference one way or the other, the
Treasury either receives the money or has
to make up for it.

I now want to explain the two problems
which might arise if we leave aside the
smear campaign which was started by the
media and the institution of education.
One of the problems is the technical legal
one I mentioned; the other is an ethical
problem.

There is no doubt it has been discovered
there could be a legal doubt. It is simple
to explain why. The Industrial Lands De-
velopment Act-the principal Act-has
apparently been drafted contrary to the
wish of Parliament and the Government
which introduced it. This is proven by the
fact that successive Governments have
acted according to the original wish. It was
said in Parliament at that time and by the
then Minister-the present Premier-that
land should be made available to industry
and In order to do so it should be acquired
by private treaty. Only in the last resort
was the State to undertake resumption.
That was the purpose which was accepted
and that was the way ILDA worked.

Why did it work this way? Not only be-
cause the Minister said so but because
section 5 of the Act says-

(1) A body known as the "Indus-
trial Lands Development Authority" is
established.

(2) The Development Authority-
(a) is a body corporate, with

perpetual succession, and
shall have a comnmon seal;

(b) is capable, in its corporate
name, of acquiring, holding.
and disposing of, real and
personal property in the
State and of suing and being
sued in that name:

There is no restriction about country
areas or the metropolitan area. All suc-
cessive officers of IIJDA and the de-
partment. and all successive Ministers
have been quite happy that according to
the intention of Parliament section 5
means the authority is like a corporate
body and can purchase and sell land as It
wishes and where it wishes.
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I am trying to explain the whole legal
difficulty. Section 8 of the Act spells out
specific powers but does not give ILJDA
the specific power to acquire land in the
metropolitan area by private treaty. It
gives only the power to resume land in
the metropolitan area. obviously that was
not the intention of Parliament and the
Act has never been implemented in that
'way. Crown Law, which drafted the original
legislation on instructions and which pre-
sumably has made 100, 200 or 500 settle-
ments for ILDA, did not pick up
that that was the result. With due res-
Pect, I sometimes think the largest part
of the work of the Crown Law Department
is incurred in correcting its own mistakes.

This exercise of amending the Act
started when one of the aggrieved parties,
whose property was subject to resumption,
was not prepared to accept the price. A
writ was taken out, but it was not sub-
mitted to a court. It was submitted to the
opposing party through the defendant's
solicitor, the Crown Law Department, and
it said, "You either agree or we sue you."
Then the very smart solicitor found a
difference between the general section and
the specific power section and he said,
"There is a doubt about past actions of
ILDA."

Thereupon the Government said, "What
can we do? We wanted ILDA to have this
right; successive Governments agreed
ILDA should have this right to acquire
industrial land, so now we have to vali-
date it whether it is legally practised or
not." That is all that is contained in
the validating clause, and therefore, I do
not think it Is immoral.

Let us come to the other question dealt
with by the Leader of the Opposition and
the member for Canning. This is an
ethical question, but there remains the
general question: Is it moral or ethical
from the point of view of the community?
After all, it is the community that the
Government represents. Is it moral or
ethical for the Government to be able to
acquire land for industrial purposes in
order to sell the land at a reasonable
price to industry so that Industry can
employ more workers and enhance our
economy? The answer to that question
is--and has been by all successive Govern-
ments--"Yes, we want industry to employ
more people and to enhance our economy.",

There are not many incentives the Govern-
ment can give. We do not have any fiscal
powers. We cannot say to the companies,
as the Government of Malaysia can say,
"We will give you a five-year tax holiday."
All we can do is to offer Industry land at
a reasonable price, a little freight subsidy,
and a little interest subsidy. This Is all we
can do to entice industry. Is it right or
wrong that we do this? I believe this
question should be left to the judgment
of members.

Mr Bateman: What about the people
from whom the land is being resumed?

Mr MENSAROS: I do not want to repeat
myself.

Mr Eateman: Please repeat yourself.
Mr MENSAROS: Is it moral or immoral

that the Government should acquire land
for industrial purposes?

Mr Bateman: That is not an argument.

Mr MENSAROS: It is my argument, and
surely the honourable member will let me
have some argument as well. This is my
argument: Is it moral or not to do this?
If we decide It is moral, as succesive Gov-
ernments--of various colours-from the
Hawke Government onwards have appar-
ently decided this, then we pass the
legislation. This is the question that the
Leader of the Opposition asked:. H-ave we
got the proper power ultimately to resume
this land? The intention of the depart-
ment is to obtain the land through Private
treaty first of all. If the land cannot be
obtained through private treaty, the Gov-
ernment has the right to resume the land
through the Public Works Department.

The next question is: Do we have ade-
quate and clear rules for resumption? The
Leader of the Opposition has said that we
do not have fair laws in relation to
resumption, but had the Tonkin Govern-
ment, or indeed, successive Governments,
felt this way, an attempt would have been
made to amend these laws. The laws were
the same during the term of the Tonkin
Government as they are now. If a person
whose property Is to be resumed is not
satisfied with the figure placed on it, he
has the opportunity to appeal against it.
The owner appoints an arbiter and the
Public Works Department appoints an
arbiter. The two parties agree on a oh air-
man, and then the arbitration tribunal
makes a decision. This is the provision in
the Act in regard to resumption.

A valuation is Placed on the property
accordIng to recent land sales in the area,
and if members feel that this is not a
Proper course to follow, we will have to
think about how we can amend the legis-
lation.

I come to the other moral question in-
volved. It is claimed that the people whose
land was resumed should have received its
appreciated value after the development
and rezoning of the land subsequent to the
resumption. I ask the House: Can this
argument be sustained? I come back to
my question: Do we want to ask Industry
to purchase land at an unreasonable price?
If we want to give industrial land to in-
dustry in order to enhance the economy
and the employment situation, would we
achieve this end by putting up a sign on
the land, "Although this land used to be
zoned rural, we are intending to buy it
for the Government"? If we did that, we
would defeat our purpose.
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Mr Barnett: Why did the Government
buy same of the blacks?

Mr A. R, Tonkin: That is defeating your
argument.

Mr MENSAROS: I would like to refer to
a comment made by a gentleman who is
not involved politically in this issue. A
former Deputy Premier of the State
expressed himself correctly and properly
when he commented objectively on the
matter in a very few wards. Of course,
he is not now under any political obli-
gation to a party. He is no longer a member
of Parliament, and possibly he Is no longer
an active member of the Labor Party. He
said, "What do you expect us to do? Are
we not to acquire land; do we advertise
that we want land for a particular pur-
pose and thereby increase the price of
acquisition?"

Members opposite should not forget if
they advocate now that the appreciation
that accurs because the Government has
rezoned land should belong to the owners,
then they should not have supported the
Salvado legislation. The member for Vic-
toria Park will know the principle Involved
and advocated by his Party at that time
and which I am sure he would agree was
that the appreciation following on rezon-
ing does not belong to the previous owner
but that it should go back to the State.
It is for this reason that we opposed the
legislation at that time.

The other point is that had the Govern-
ment of the day not decided to use this
particular area for industry, even today it
would be a rural area. Perhaps this would
make the people who lived there happier,
and I will concede that point. The zoning.
however, would still be rural and any land
sales would have attracted the same price
at which the land was acquired, allowing
only for inflation which raises values every
year. So It is very hard to argue that we
should pay to the owners an extra sum to
allow for increased valuation after all the
improvements and services have been
added.

Mr Bateman: I do not really think that
Is what they want.

Mr MENSAROS: What is the argument?
Mr Bateman: They ask to be re-estab-

lished.
Mr MENSAROS: This comes back to

the first matter I raised. If the present law
regarding resumption Is not fair and Just,
we will have to change it if that Is the
view of the community. Successive Gov-
ernments have not changed it.

In conclusion I would like to say one
thing about re-establishment. I have
always Instructed ILDA that if people
were not happy to accept the price
offered, wherever possible an attempt was
to be made to find another house in
a somewhat similar situation. of course,
the house would need to be a little further
from the city. In many cases this course

was followed and In many cases it was
rejected. The member for Canning will
know that when he led a deputation to
see me and this argument was raised I
said, "All right, if you form a company
with all the people owning the land there
and then put money into it to develop the
land and sell it to Industry at the same
price as ILDA does, do you think you
would make a profit?"

Mr Bertram: A good deal too!1
Mr MENSAROS: I repeat that I have

answered all the questions put to me, un-
less they were put facetiously-as hap-
pened with somne of the media-or put It
a way that could have been construed as
libel or blackmail. I was interviewed by
a reporter from the Daily News and every
question was answered and documented. I
have answered every question asked in the
House. So anyone who wants to use this
issue of allegations of impropriety, as I
am very sorry to say the member for Kal-
goorlie did, to hang his whole second read-
ing speech on, is simply embarking on a
smear campaign suggesting that some-
thing untoward happened. The member
cannot hang his speech on that.

Several members interjected.
Question put and a division taken with

the following result-

Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Mr Orayden
Mr (Prewar
Mr P. V. Jan=
Mr Laurance
Mr Mensaros
Mr Nanovich
Mr O'Connor

Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram

Mr B. T. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davies
Mr 11. I). Evans
Mr T. D. Evans
Mr Fletcher

Avi-
Mr Merbarlin
Mr Rushton
Mr Crane
Dr Dadour
Mr Thompson

Ayes--22
Mr Old
Uar O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Mr Shalders
Mr Sibson
Mr Sodeman
I& Stephens
Mr Tubby
Mr Watt
I& Young
Ur Clarko

(Teller)

Noes-i?7
Mr Harman
Mr JTamieson
Mr T. H. Jones
Mr May
Mr McIver
Mr Skidmore
Ur A. R. To n
Mr Moiler

fTelleTj

Pairs
Noes

Mr Bryce
Mr J. T. Tonkin
Mr T. J. Burke
Mr 'Pavior
I& Hather

Question thus passed.
B'I remd a second time.

In Committee
The Deputy Chairman of Committees

(Mr Sibson) in the Chair:, Mr Mensaros
(Minister for Industrial Development) in
charge of the Bill.

Clause 1: Short title and citation-
Mr T. D. EVANS: This clause states

that this Act may be cited as the Indus-
trial Lands Development Authority Act
Amendment Act. 1976. It is the bel-! of
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the Opposition that the title is not only an
unhappy one but also an unfortunate one.
One might even say with same justification
It is an Illegitimate title because it seeks to
legitimise by virtue of clause 4 something
which was illegal ab initio; and not only
illegal, but because of the circumstances
outlined in the debate tonight, quite im-
moral in my belief.

I am referring to the devious means
whereby land was acquired, presumably in
the Public interest, by the authority act-
Ing through these disguised agents. We
have debunked the legitimacy of that
approach tonight, and we were shocked
to discover In the light of the Public con-
troversy that the Minister came out on the
3rd November and indicated the use of
secret nominees was to continue.

We believe the Short title is unfortunate
and unhappy because this measure should
not be here at all. This Parliament should
not be wasting its time and the public
nurse on debating something which Is
inappropriate at this time.

The Leader of the Opposition has clearly
indicated the measure should be withdrawn
until such time as adequate public scrutiny
of all the transactions has taken Place.-In the interest of the Public, and In the
interest Of Compassion and morality, a
fair Price should be Paid; and where it Is
revealed that this has not been the case,
adequate reimbursement should be made
to those Persons who were deluded bybreaches of section 8 of the principal Act,
whereby the treaty-making power of the
authority was breached because the parties
were not ad zdem.

The Government has acted with supreme
Political nalvety In associating this type
of legislation with allegations Made earlier
In this Chamber, and by introducing it in
the absence of a Public inquiry demanded
by the Press controversy.

It Is not my intention to debate eachclause Of the Bill. I have referred toclause 4 which is founded In the title: itIs the essence of the title because It seeks
to validate something which was quite
illegal from the beginning. I draw this
conclusion: A cardinal principle enshrined
In the Australian Constitution. binding
upon the Australian Parliament and Aus-
tralian Governments, Is that where landis acquired at Commonwealth level It must
be acquired on just terms.

When we look at our own State public
works legislation, which gives the legitixn-
ate Power to the Government to acquire
by resumption land for Public Purposes, wefind the same Principle contained therein;
and legal machinery is Introduced to en-
sure that principle is honoured as near
as Possible.

The very principle of this legislation
was to provide an alternative, because no-
body really likes to see someone lose his
land by resumption, although we under-
stand the motivation and the need for It.

I believe It was the intention of the
Brand Government, when Introducing the
Principal Act, to Provide an alternative
to the resumption Powers in the Public
Works Act; and surely to goodness It was
an inherent principle that the land should
be acquired on just terms. By the refusal
of the Minister to table details of the
transactions It Is obvious this land has not
been acquired on just terms.

I repeat that this legislation should be
withdrawn, the papers tabled, and public
scrutiny invited. Then, and only then
should validating legislation be brought
forward. I do not intend to speak on any
other clause; I merely reiterate our com-
plete dislike of this Bill at this time.

Mr BATEMAN: I should like to sup-
Port the remarks of the member for Kal-
goorlie. I made my position clear during
the second reading debate. I referred to
the petition objecting to the Hill signed
and presented by 420 people in the near
vicinity of the Canning Vale industrial
zone. I will bet the Minister here and now
he has not even looked at the petition.
If he has, let him stand and say his
Piece. I will bet my bottom dollar.

Mr Mensaros: Of course I have, and I
will reply to you in due course.

Mr BATEMAN: If the Minister had read
the petition, he would have taken some
cognizance of the feelings of the people
objecting to this legislation. They do not
like it; nor do members on this side of
the Chamber, and nor do the rest of the
people of Western Australia. This dictat-
orial attitude of the Government must be
stopped. When will the Government get
the message that we are not here to tell
the people of Western Australia what we
want them to do by dictatorial legisla-
tion? Let us get down to basic legislation,
which gives the people what they want.
The Minister is being dictatorial; he Is
telling the people he will resume their
land. He already has power to resume land
in the outer suburbs and the country,
and now he is seeking power to resume in
the metropolitan area.

Mr Nanovich: The Salvado Bill pro-
posed resumptions anywhere in Western
Australia.

Mr BATEMAN: I will be happy to de-
bate that at any time; the honourable
member was not here at the time, and
would not know what went on. The Min-
ister has taken little or no notice of the
people's wishes. The petition sought a
Government inquiry Into the Issue, but
that was ignored. I ask the Minister to
think again in the interests of all those
People who signed their names on that
piece of paper. The Hill should be with-
drawn and the matter re-examined and if
it is reintroduced at a later time, it can
be debated in a different light.

Mr MENSAROS: Mr Deputy Chairman,
I bow to your judgment, as I always do to
the Chair, in Permitting the Committee
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debate to become political grandstanding. I
dc not wish to answer in that way. The
attitude adopted by members opposite
means that either they did not lien to
my explanation during the second reading
stage or they did not care about it. How-
ever, I take up one point: If the mem-
ber for Canning and the member for
Kalgoorlie say that the transactions were
immoral, I can only signify very strongly
that their side does not want land made
available at a reasonable price for indus-
trial purposes. If they choose instead to
conduct all sorts of inquiries, and leave
unchanged the possibility that the land
was acquired illegally, I put it to them
that the land acquired for the brewery
may be in jeopardy, and this in turn would
jeopardise the jobs of hundreds of con-
struction workers and suppliers. That is
what the apposition wants.

Clause put and passed.
Clauses 2 to 4 put and passed.
Title put and passed.

Report
Bill reported, without amendment, and

the report adopted.

Third Reading
MR MVENSAROS (Floreat-Minlster for

Industrial Development) [10.16 p.m.]: I
move-

That the Bill be now read a third
time.

MR BATEMAN (Canning) [10.17 p.m.]:
I suppose I could continue for another 45
minutes, but I am afraid my appeals would
fall on deaf ears. This is my last call for
some sort of understanding on the part
of the Minister. On behalf of all those
people who signed the petition I presented
to this House, I appeal to the Minister to
reconsider before he takes this very im-
portant step which will affect so many
people. The Minister tonight Is making a
rod for the backs of Governments of the
future, irrespective of their political colour.
I only hope to goodness a future Govern-
ment has the sense to amend this legis-
lation.

Mr Sodeman: How can they if they
have to carry it?

Mr BATEMAN: I am talking to the
Minister; he has some brains, which is
more than I can say for the honourable
member interjecting.

Mr Sodeman: You did not pay him that
tribute previously. I am pleased to see
you have now. We are getting somewhere.

Mr BATEMAN: In a last-ditch stand I
appeal once more to you, Mr Minister, to
let this Bill lie in limbo for the present-
even at the third reading stage before It
goes to another place. Let us have a good
look at It. Let us look at the implications.
Let us look at the authority and the

dictatorial powers it will give the Minister.
They are dangerous powers. As I said
earlier tonight, similar powers were con-
tained In the fuel and energy Bill and I
think we had enough of that when it was
introduced. We do not want to see any
more of those powers.

This State is over-governed, overpowered
and over-administered; in this respect It is
second to none in the world and we do
not want any more. One cannot shoot a
rabbit, a duck, a kangaroo or even a rat
without having a licence for it and we are
Imposing yet another restriction by this
Bill. Every Minister has untold power
which is unprecedented in any other
country in the Western world.

In a last stand effort I ask you, Mr
Minister, once again to reconsider, rethink
and revamp your ideas. Let us have
another look at the Bill before it goes to
another place. Perhaps we may leave It be
and let it die on the notice paper, which
is where It justly belongs.

MRt MENSAROS (F'loreat--Minister for
Industrial Development) [10.21 p.m.]: I
reply out of courtesy because I have no
doubt about the sincerity of the member
for Canning. At the same time I am trem-
endously sorry that I will never be able to
see proof of the Opposition's sincerity
because I will probably die before that
party comes to Government and-if it is
sincere-repeals this Bill.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a third time and transmitted

to the Council.

STATE FORESTS
Revocation of Dedication: Motion

Debate resumed, from the 4th November,
on the following motion by Mr Ridge
(Minister for Forests)-

That the proposal for the partial
revocation of State Forests Nos. 4, 28,
43, 58 and 63 laid on the Table of the
Legislative Assembly by command of
His Excellency the Governor on 2nd
November. 1976, be carried out.

MR A. R. TONKIN (Morley) [10.23
pm.]: The Opposition does not intend to
oppose this motion.

Question put and passed.
Resolution transmitted to the Council

and its concurrence desired therein, on
motion by Mr Ridge (Minister for Forests).

SUPREME COURT ACT AMENDMENT
BILL (No. 2)

Second Reading
Debate resumed from the 14th Septem-

ber.
MR JAMIESON (Welshpool-Leader of

the Opposition) [10.24 p.m.]: I understand
this Bill deals with the times of sitting
of the Supreme Court and the adjusting
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,of the usual legal holidays that occur at
various times of the year. Due to the
great backlog of cases, this is probably a
-good idea although I think that within a
few years we will be having a look at ways
of streamlining the court's system. The
courts still seem to be cluttered up far too
much and there must be some way of
overcoming the problems associated with
this.

A similar situation has ozcurred with
regard to proceedings in Parliament. In
the last two years we have seen a necessity
to revamp some of them to try to get away
from the old system. For example, we
used to resolve ourselves into a Committee
of Ways and Means and members really
did not know much about what they were
doing, except the Clerks, and they became
somewhat confused at times because of
the actions of members. Because of this it
was necessary to bring in new forms of
action.

Many things have been tried in the
Supreme Court and the District Court to
try to keep up with the constant increase
in the number of legal cases. However,
the situation does not seem to have been
overcome and we have reached the stage
of trying to do something once again. This
time we are attempting to alter the sitting
times to allow more cases to be heard
within a given time.

I would not like to see the members of
the judiciary penalised by this provision,
because usually they have a fixed holiday.
I do not know what the position is In the
Eastern States but members of the judi-
ciary may use this time for conferring
with each other on legal matters. It would
be a great pity If we were to put our people
out of line with legal people in the Eastern
States.

The Minister may be able to tell us
whether this Bill will do that because as
far as I have been able to determine not
much consideration has been given to this
point. However, it we can make some
progress by getting rid of the normal ad-
journment of the Supreme Court So that
we can get down to dealing with some of
the outstanding cases, I think we will
have achieved something. Having achieved
that much and the member who moved
for the adjournment of the debate now
having arrived, I shall sit down and say
no more.

Mr O'Connor: DO YOU agree with his
comments?

MR BERTRAM (Mt. Hawthorn) 110.27
p.m.]: I most certainly do. I think they
were very timely and appropriate and r
thank him for leading us into the debate.

This is an Interesting Bill although
there is not a great deal to be said about
it. As I look back a few years, I find that
in 1899 there was an Act for the more
s"eedy trial of accused persons. It pro-
vided that sittings of criminal courts

would occur from that time on in every
month except January and February.
That was the order of things until we
came to 1934 when It was provided by
legislation that there would be sittings of
criminal courts every month except
January.

By Act No. 39 of 1971 the law was
altered slightly again so that criminal
trials could occur in the Supreme Court
every month except January, in which
month certain matters could be dealt with
within the criminal jurisdiction of that
court. Now we come to 1976 and we are
seeking to amend the law to enable the
criminal court to sit Just as effectively
and to deal with such matters of a
criminal nature as may be dealt with by
that court in any other month.

We have been assured by the Minister
in his second reading speech that the
Chief Justice is satisfied that appropriate
arrangements can be made and that this
change of the law can be effected quite
satisfactorily.

Mr O'Neil: From what you have said
UP to date it looks sr though the next
Bill will be to increase the number of
months in the year so that we can have
another month In which they can sit.

Mr BERTRAM: That is right. We have
also been assured that the District Court,
per medium of proclamation, will also
have its sittings in line with the sittings
of the Supreme Court that will occur
following the enactment of this Bill.

I suppose some people would say that
this is a matter of progress, but in fact
what it does is to acknowledge what hap-
pens to be a most unsatisfactory state of
affairs in this State relating to crime. The
fact of the matter is that crime in Aus-
tralia has reached a dangerous level and
the community needs to sit up and take
notice, with a view to seeing what can be
done to have the position restored to a
more tolerable one. The Ideal is that we
should have no crime, but that is a
Utopian hope and we are a little away
from that situation. However, I think a
warning can be seen.

The other day I read a report indicating
that the Attorney-General of the Com-
monwealth said that crime was costing
Australia something in the nature of $1 000
million per annum. This is a frightening
figure, and is the sort of loss which a
nation such as ours cannot afford.

Mr Davies: Was It $1 000 million or $100
million? It was a lot of money.

Mr BERTRAM: It was a huge figure.
That reminded me of the days in the
1960s when each day that one picked up
a newspaper one was confronted with a
string of noughts after a figure, indicating
the tonnage of Iron ore that would be sold
and exported. In any event the figure
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given as being the cast to the nation result-
ing from crime is huge. That is the dan-
gerous position reached in Australia, but
the same situation also exists in Western
Austraia.

Let us turn to the position in Australia.
and in this regard I quote from the 1978
annual report of the Police Department.
At page 71 under the heading of "Criminal
Investigation Branch" the following ap-
pear&--

The statement is summarised below
showing the percentage cleared f or
the previous financial year. A notice-
able feature was that the number of
crimes Increased by only 4.2 per cent
over the previous twelve months, tak-
ing the figure to 5'7 917, whilst the
previous year showed an increase of
22.4 per cent.

It is pleasing to note that the total
of solved offences in that category in-
creased by 2.2 per cent in the year
under review. A comparison of the
current rate of detection in Western
Australia of all serious crime, com-
pared with that of the total Australian
figures, cannot be made as Australian
figures are not yet available from the
Australian Bureau of Statistics.

However, taking the figures on the
1974 Australian average the Western
Australian detection rate is very much
higher in almost every category of
major crime.

Last year a crime was committed
on an average of every 9-1/7th
minutes. a serious assault or robbery
every 19-111th hours, a breaking and
entering offence every 37 minutes, a
theft every 17 minutes and a motor
vehicle stolen every 1 hour 46 minutes.
Wilful damage increased by 14.6 per
cent compared with an increase in the
last financial year of 64.6 per cent.

The report goes on to state that during the
year ended the 30th June, 1976, the follow-
ing categories of crime were reported-

Homicide ... ... .... 53
Serious Assault .. ... 320
Robbery ... .. 145
Rape . . .. .. ... 71
Breaking and Entering ... 14 013
Motor Vehicle Theft .. .... 4917
False Pretence Fraud .... 2571

It may well be that the Police Force in
this State is doing a, very good job In
the circumstances, but that is not the
point I am seeking to make. The fact
is that crime is skyrocketing, and it has
presented a real problem to the com-
munity,

One of the consequences of crime is that
in order that the law may cope with the
offenders after they have been appre-
hended the Supreme Court, the District
Court. and the Criminal Court must sit
in the 12 months of each year. This pro-
cedure was not necessary in the past,

That really is the background situation
to the Bill before us. 'Whilst in a sense
it seems to be a minor amendment, in
fact the legislation has been brought about
by the increase in crime. I take this
opportunity to make that point and to
express the belief that something very
dramatic will have to be done in this State
in respect of crime, because if we do not
take notice of the warnings and evidence
available to us in one form or another, we
will live to regret our negligence.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

Int Committee, etc.
Bill passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by

Mr O'Neil (Minister for Works), and
passed.

ACTS AMENDMENT (EXPERT
EVIDENCE) BILL

Second Reading
Debate resumed from the 14th Septem-

ber.
MR BERTRAM (Mt. Hawthorn) [10.39

p.m.): The opposition supports the Bill.
I am pleased to see the Minister's second
reading speech indicates he has been at
some pains to spell out very adequately
what the Eml intends to achieve. In my
experience that is a somewhat unusual
occurrence, and therefore I am justified in
placing that comment on the record.

Mr Coyne, it is most appreciated.
Mr BER.TRAM: The Bill deals with

what In civil jurisdiction is referred
to as discovery and production of
documents. Up till now the position
has been that certain documents
have been privileged from disclosure or
discovery; that is to say, a plaintiff or
defendant has not been obliged to disclose
certain documents. However, one particu-
lar class of documents-the ones
mentioned In the Bill-in future
will have to be discovered and,
subsequently, produced, the Idea being
generally to expedite litigation and enable
parties to obtain information on certain
aspects of the other side's case before it
reaches the trial stage. As a consequence
it is hoped and expected-and I think
rightly so-that the legislation will ensure
that law suits will not only take less time,
but also will be cheaper for the parties
involved.

As I said, the Minister's speech was good
and spelt out the purposes of the Bill.
Therefore there is no point in my going
into any more detail on it. The Bill takes
a relatively small step towards Injecting
a little more justice into law and for that
reason the opposition supports it.
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Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.
Bill passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by Mr

O'Neil (Minister for Works), and passed.

ADOPTION OF CHILDREN ACT
AMENDMENT B[LL

Second Reading
Debate resumed from the 21st Septem-

ber.
MR DAVIES (Victoria Park) (10.47

p.m.]: This EUll came to us from another
place on the 21st September, which is
nearly two months ago, and I only hope no
child or family has been disadvantaged by
the Government's inactivity in not bring-
ing the measure forward on the notice
paper. There is nothing controversial in
it and I do not intend to oppose it, but
I would have thought that before this
there would be an opportunity to clear it
from the notice paper.

Although it is an important Bill It is
one the contents of which we tend to
forget after a couple of months and we
leave it to the law courts and civil servants
to deal with because it does not cause us
any great concern.

The Act itself has been on the Statute
book since 1896 and it is interesting to
note it was something like 20 Years before
it was amended and then during a period
of some 10 years further amendments were
made after which it was another 19 years
before it was amended again; that is, be-
tween 1926 and 1945. Since then the Bill
has been amended on half a dozen oc-
casions and as recently as 1971.

All the amendments tend to demonstrate
that there is a much more enlightened and
realistic approach taken to this important
matter; that is, the adoption of Children.

Prom time to time there have been
hearthurnings as a result of some of the
amendments made in 1964 and 1971, and
it is to correct those and to set some
Australian standards that the Bill is
before us.

I must congratulate the Government on
submitting the measure so promptly. The
amendments, particularly those relating to
legitimacy, were decided on at the most
recent meeting of Ministers. Then, after
the Bill had been introduced In another
place, dealt with there, and then received
by us, I noticed in the Press a reference
to the fact that amendments were to be
made on an Australia-wide basis. But we
were a jump ahead. On this point I
am delighted to congratulate the Govern-
ment. I do not know whether the other

States have even yet got off the ground,
but if my memory serves me correctly,
the report in the Press is based on amend-
ments Proposed in the ACT.

I just want to say there are still some
heartburnings regarding adoptions, but the
aspect which is the most frequent cause
of complaint to me is that the Department
for Community Welfare will not entertain
an application if either the man or the
woman seeking the adoption is over 34
years of age.

I believe that to be an arbitrary figure.
I have not been able to find out why it
was set at 34 Years of age. I do know
that the age was reduced to that figure
because a sufficient number of children
were not available for adoption. The de-
partment decided that 34 years of age was
to be the cut-off point, and it will not
even accept applications for adoptions
from people past that age. I believe that
to be totally unfair. it presupposes that
any person over 34 years of age is not a
fit person to be a parent.

I believe many members in the House
strongly object to that provision. None
would object more strongly than myself,
who did not become a Ilather until I was
45 years of age. I do not think that even
then I was too old. my only complaint,
of course, is that my daughter wants me
to play cards with her at 7 o'clock in the
morning but that probably tends to keep
me younger than I would otherrise be. I
do object strongly to the fact that the
department will not accept applications
under any circumstances whatsoever, for
adoptions from People who are over the
age of 34 years.

I have written and complained to the
director and, in all fairness, I must say
he has invited me to discuss the matter
with him rather than try to explain the
reason by letter. It is a, fairly complex
situation, and I could not agree more with
him. I have not as yet had an oppor-
tunity to discuss the matter with the
director, but as soon as the House rises I
will do so because I have several People in
my electorate who I believe would make
ideal parents. However, their applications
will not be accepted.

In one case the man has just turned 34
years of age. His wife is several years
younger-about 28 or 29 years of age.
They were married several years before
they were quite certain that they could
not have children of their own, and by
that time the husband had just turned 34
years. Despite the fact that they are pro-
fessional people, and are of excellent
character, they have no chance of being
able to adopt a child because the depart-
ment has set the arbitrary age of 34 years
as the limit.

I believe there should be some excep-
tions to the rule, and various circum-
stances should be taken into account.
While I realise there are dangers in saying
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that people over the age of 34 years can another place. The Bill is acceptable in.
adopt a child, in preference to people
under the age of 34 years, I believe the
department should be wise enough to be
able to assess each individual application.
I will be talking to the director about this
problem, and at this stage I do not know
whether I will be able to get him to change
his mind.

I am aware that some people associated
with the adoption of children blame the
Whitlam, Government. Of course, the
Whitlarn Government has taken a fair
amount of blame, one way or another,
particularly from people who sit opposite
in this Place. In this case the reason is
that the Whitlam Government Paid sup-
porting mothers' benefits to unmarried
mothers. That encouraged those unmar-
ried mothers to keep their children. I
think that Is a laudable arrangement, for
the natural Parent to be prepared to keep
her child and look after it in a proper
manner, and I congratulate the Whitlamn
Government on its action. However,
apparently that action has had the effect
of causing the shortage of children avail-
able for adoption. So the poor old Whit-
lam Government gets the blame again.

No doubt, the modem methods of con-
ception would also cause a shortage.

Mr P. V. Jones: Did the member mean
to refer to "conception" or "contracep-
tion"?

Mr DAVIES: I meant to refer to contra-
ception. Did I use the wrong word?

Mr P. V. Jones: Yes.
Mr DAVIES: I thank the Minister for

correcting me; there is a great difference
between the two. if one gets them mixed
up one is in troubler

Dr Dadour: Abortions cause a shortage,
too.

Mr DAVIES: From the figures I have
studied-and the member for Subiaco
would be able to correct me if I am wrong
-it does not appear that the number of
abortions has increased over the years.
They are being cardied out more effec-
tively, and more hygienically, but I believe
a reliable assessment shows that the actual
number of abortions would be roughly
the same.

Commenting generally, I san thankful
that I do not have to interpret the Act
because on looking at clause 8 I am unable
to understand which is which and who be-
longs to what. No doubt the clause can be
interpreted by a person with a legal mind.

Likewise, because of the nature of the
subject with which we are dealing, some
of the other clauses in the Bill are rather
difficult to interpret. However, the provi-
sions of the Bill have been studied by the
Crown Law Department, accepted by the
Department for Community Welfare, and
Passed by the legal eagles. The measure
also has been agreed to by members In

its Present form and my lack of knowledge
in matters legal probably prevents me
from readily understanding its provisions.
The clauses are of the type which one has
to go over several times, and relate the
words to each other.

The difficulty of understanding the Bill
is not helped by the wording of the new
definition of "an illegitimate person". In
future such a person will be referred to
as-

a Person whose parents were not mar-
ried to each other at the time of his
birth or subsequently.

That wording does not tend to make the
Hill any easier to understand. However,
the provision is laudible. It emphasises the
marital condition of the parents, rather
than placing any stigma on the child. I
am quite certain we all agree that the
child should not be punished in any way
for the "sins" of its parents.

While I agree we should do away with
the Phrase "illegitimate person", for the
life of me I cannot think of a better way
of expressing such a person than that set
out in the Bill. I have given a great
amount of thought to the matter, but I
cannot improve on the proposed definition.
We will be stuck with it and provided it
meets the objective of removing any stigma
from the child, I think we should all agree
with it.

A complaint which always has been
raised is that if the mother, or the father
who had control of the child, married
again, and the child needed to be adopted
by one of the parents-not a natural par-
ent-both parents had to effect the adop-
tion. This provision has always caused a
great deal of despair and dismay when
People have married-having had a child
out of wedlock-to find they have had to
adopt their own child. That has been the
main complaint I have heard over the
years regarding the adoption of children.

I congratulate the Government on ef-
fecting this particular amendment. The
Hill contains several other minor clauses.
The father is to be given the same stand-
ing in regard to adoption qualifications as
other relatives such as the grandparents,
brothers, sisters, uncles or aunts. Here
again, I do not think anyone in this
House would say the natural father of the
child should not be treated as favourably as
the other relatives in the family are
treated.

The Government has decided that when
a child Is adopted his or her Christian
name cannot be changed without the con-
sent of the child if that child is over the
age of 12. 1 wonder why the age of 12 was
chosen. I suppose it is as good an age as
any but when we understand that children
are impressionable from the age of two I
would think inquiries should be made of
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Younger children by the Judge to satisfy
himself that they are happy about any
change of name.

We Prevent children going to see "R"-
rated films from the age of two because we
believe children of that age are impression-
able. The trauma of adoption for a child
of advanced years must in Itself be bad
enough, but we say if the child is below
the age of 12 the Christian name can be
changed without the child caring very
much, although If the child is over the
age of 12 the Christian name can be
changed only if the child agrees.

There is a subtle difference between
the Bill and what the Minister said In his
Introductory speech. The Minister said-

A further proposal is designed to
prevent the Christian names of child-
ren over the age of 12 who are adopted
from being changed without their con-
sent.

The way the Bill reads the Judge must be
satisfied the child agrees. It is not an
Important difference but It is a subtle
difference.

I do not know why we settle on the age
of 12. 1 would rather see a requirement that
the judge be satisfied that a child of any
age is not unhappy about a change of
name. At the age of six or seven perhaps
a child might not care very much, although
children learn to recognise their names
from the age of 12 months or so. I would
not have set an arbitrary age In this pro-
vision. I would have said a judge must be
satisfied in all eases that the change Is
acceptable to the child.

The other two changes are only minor
and I do not think they are worth com-
menting on. We agree to them. They relate
to the director having control of adoptions,
which has been the tendency over the
years. I think it has taken it away from
"baby farming" because we know if the
director is in charge he will carefully Polle
each application for adoption. The last
clause relates to using undue influence on
a Person to revoke an adoption.

All in all, despite my earlier remarks
about age limits, I believe the Department
for Community Welfare does a good job
In regard to adoptions. Procedures and
standards are set. Although it is a lengthy
and difficult Process to go through if one
wants to adopt a child, I think we must
have all the safeguards. As far as our
legislation is concerned, there have been a
few shortcomings which have been over-
come by the amending Bill. I am pleased
to support the legislation.

MR RIDGE (Kimberley-Minister for
Lands) [11.04 p.mo.]: I thank the member
for Victoria Park and the Opposition for
their support of the measure. I can assure
the honourable member there was no
ulterior motive in having the Bill remain
on the notice paper in this place for some-
thing like two months. It Is true it appears
to be a long time because the Bill was

Introduced into this House on the 21st
September. On the other hand it went
through the other place without any violent
objection and the Government considered
it was not controversial and that It was
necessary to get other legislation through.

I also thank the member for Victoria
Park for his expression of congratulations
to the Government on implementing these
proposals. It was pointed out in the second
reading speech that the Hill was the subject
of discussion at the Australian Council of
Welfare Ministers not very long ago, and
I believe the legislation is regarded as the
model for legislative amendments in other
States.

The honourable member referred to the
fact that It was impossible for people over
the age of 34 to adopt children. I share
his concern about this matter because at
33 or 34 I would consider myself capable-

Mr H. T. Burke: I have had exceptions
go through.

Mr RIDGE: I am pleased to hear that.
The member for Victoria Park said he was
Prepared to discuss this complex situation.
I am certainly not in a position to advise
him and I hope his representations meet
with some success.

I also share his concern about the word-
ing of the Bill. As with many other Bills,
one has to read It several times before
one can pick up what it is intended to con-
vey. The Committee notes are just as com-
plicated as the legislation, but the Bill has
been through the Crown Law Department
and various legal people have had a look
at It and agreed it is quite acceptable and
necessary.

I do not know why the age of 12 was
settled upon as the age at which a child
could object to his name being changed. I
would be surprised if it were something
which happened frequently. I think a
change of name at such an advanced stage
in life would be a very traumatic experience
for a child, and I would certainly hope
his Prospective adoptive parents would
have regard for his feelings and would
not want to change his name.

I do not think any contentious points
were raised by the honourable member and
I commend the Bill to the House.

Question Put and Passed.

Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.

Bill Passed through Committee without
debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by Mr

Ridge (Minister for Lands), and passed.
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LEGAL PRACTITIONERS ACT
AMENDMENT BILL

Second Reading

Debate resumed from the 19th October.

MR BERTRAM (Mt. Hawthorn) [11.11
P.m.]: The Minister introduced the second
reading of this Bill on the 19th October,
and his speech is to be found at Page 3239
of Hansard of that date. He appears to
describe the Bill adequately and, in con-
sequence, the Opposition supports it.

Reference is made in the Bill to the
matter of managing clerks seeking to be
admitted as practitioners, and this caused
my mind to turn to the situation of law
students who have qualified by examination
at the university but who appear currently
to be encountering some difficulty in ob-
taining articles from practitioners within
the State. This matter should concern us
all because it seems rather odd that the
People should provide the facilities and the
wherewithal to enable young people to
study at the university to obtain their
degrees only to discover that they cannot
find their way promptly into the profes-
sion so that they may take up some of the
slack In the profession which still exists in
this State. I think the number of legal
practitioners per bead of population is a
little below what it should be.

It has been said, and probably accurately,
that the legal profession itself is doing the
best it can to ensure that in the near
future all students qualifying through the
university will be given articles for next
year. I certainly hope that this move is
successful. I believe that Governments
should make it their business to ensure
that these people find their way Into the
Profession to become fully fledged practi-
tioners at the normal time.

I ought to point out that the People are
subsidising our young students and there is
little point in doing so if the students can-
not follow the sequence through so that
they become ultimately Practitioners of
law. Not so long ago we had the Problem
that first-year medical students could pass
their examinations but if they did not
come within the applicable quota, they had
to enter other courses of study. That
seemed to me to be a terrible state of
affairs and the situation in regard to law
students in tis State could become anala-
gous to that earlier situation in the medi-
cal faculty.

It has been said that in the near future
the number of Practitioners necessary to
service Properly the legal requirements of
the public in Australia will be reached, and
it is very Important, therefore, to keep an
eye on that situation. It is important to
ensure that we have a sufficient number of
legal Practitioners in the community, and
then it is very important to ensure that we
do not exceed that number, otherwise we
will find we are hopping out of the fat into
the fire. I hope this situation will be
watched, and I repeat that Governments

should take a close interest in it because
people generally will be affected In a very
real way if we are not careful.

Some other matters in the Bill could be
mentioned because they are very appro-
prIate. I notice, for example, that the
maximum fine which may be Imposed upon
a legal practitioner found guilty of un-
Professional conduct or neglect or undue
delay in attending to his client's business
has been Increased from $200 to $2 000.
I believe the maximum penalty of $200 has
been In force for a period in excess of 50
years, if indeed It was not the figure in the
original Act of 1893. So this amendment is
long overdue.

Of course it is to be hoped that the need
to invoke penalties will arise only rarely,
but on occassions when a penalty must be
imposed, it Is sensible that the penalty
should be appropriate, and at the moment
the maximum Penalty Is Insufficient.

Of the remaining provisions in the Bill.
the one that would probably interest the
public the most is the amendment which
simplifies a number of sections of the Act
which deal with the taxation of bills of
costs. It is accepted generally that these
Provisions are unnecessarily complex and
Ave should agree to any amendments which
make our Statutes more easily understood
and, therefore, easier to implement.

As I have said, the Minister covered
other matters in his second reading speech.
We agree with all the objects of the Bill,
and we support it.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee, etc.
Bill Passed through Committee without

debate, reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

Third Reading
Bill read a third time, on motion by Mr

O'Neil (Minister for Works), and passed.

ANGLICAN CHURCH OF AUSTRALIA
BELL

Second Reading

MR O'NEIL (East Melville-Minister for
Works) [11.22 p.m.]: I move-

That the Bill be now read a second
time'

This is an extremely short Bill which has
only one purpose: to change the name of
the Church of England in Australia to the
"Anglican Church of Australia".

Mr navies: Will we get a copy of it?
Mr O'NEfL.: The Hill Is from another

Place and is on the file. It has saving pro-
visions to ensure that the Act does not
interfere with any actions that have been
taken by the authority of the Church of
England in Australia. It Sets out the
appointed days upon which certain things
will take place; these, of course, will be on
the recommendation of the Primate of the
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Church of England in Australia, as fixed
by proclamation. The Bill also covers other
matters related Purely to the administra-
tion of the Church.

Mr Jamieson: He ought to have sent his
notes to you, anyway. It's a bit rough.

Mr O'NEIL: I commend the Bill to the
House.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr
Bertram.

PREMIER AND MINISTER FOR
POLICE: FINANCIAL INTERESTS

AND DEALINGS
Inquiry by Royal Commission: Speaker's

Ruling an Notice of Motion
THE SPEAKER (Mr Hutchdison): I give

my ruling on whether the notice of motion
of the member for Ascot is admissible.

In summing up this matter, it must be
remembered that the member for Ascot, on
Tuesday, the 9th November, said that Min-
isters in the Court Government had grown
wealthy during their Parliamentary careers,
and that they had done this by the mani-
pulation of capital. He said further that
one of them has sticky fingers. As a result,
the Rouse eventually carried a motion that
a Select Committee be appointed to inquire
into and to report upon the allegations
made by the member for Ascot.

It Is now fact that the Select Committee
has sat on several occasions in an
endeavour to ascertain what are the alle-
gations, and it seems that the member for
Ascot will not so far testify before the
committee. if it seems to the House that
I Perhaps shoul1d not use words in that
form, I point out I have reason for so
doing which I will give at a later stage.

Instead, the member for Ascot gave
notice of a long motion today, Tuesday,
the 16th November, which seeks to set up
a Royal Commission to inquire into further
similar allegations against the Premier and
the Minister for Police; and, further, that
the Royal Commission should investigate
details of legislation to require members
to disclose their business and financial
interests--a matter that already has been
aired In this House.

The situation, therefore, is that what-
ever allegations were in the mind of the
member for Ascot when he first spoke of
them, and whatever allegations he has
In mind now, can be given to the Select
Committee which the House has already
set up for the purpose.

At this stage I must Inform the House
that the Leader of the Opposition came
to see me and asked me to include two
points in my consideration of this matter.
Firstly he said that the member for Ascot
would not divulge whatever his informa-
tion was to the Select Committee, but
that he would divulge It to a Royal Com-
mission, and he would be prepared to sign
a statutory declaration to that effect.
Secondly, the Leader of the Opposition
said he had been informed there was a

danger that witnesses giving evidence be-
fore the committee were not properly
covered by privilege.

In the first of these two matters I advise
that the member for Ascot is fully pro-
tected In so far as his statements are
concerned in all hearings of the Select
Committee, and he has the full privilege of
Parliament. Standing Order 394 confers
this privilege, and It is recognised by courts
of law. Whether or not members agree
with privileged statements, the whole par-
liament would insist on the principle of
privilege being firmly upheld.

The only other point that should perhaps
be mentioned In the context is one which
does not detract in any way from the
principle of parliamentary privilege, and is
one that is held firmly in honour and in
practice: that the power of privilege held
by members should be used in a responsible
manner as befits a member of Parliament.

I also state without equivocation that
other witnesses, including civil servants.
called by the Select Committee do have the
full protection of parliamentary privilege
in any evidence given to the committee.
This privilege is not just something given
by the Select Committee as such: it Is
granted In full by the Standing Orders of
the Parliament; and, what Is more, the
force of law fully respects such privilege.

In this regard I would like to draw the
attention of the House to the case Regina
v. Wainscot in 1899. At one stage of the
case, His Honour Mr justice Hensman gave
a dissertation on the matter of privilege
applying to witnesses giving evidence be-
fore parliamentary committees. The follow-
ing comprises part of his remarks--

The Crown Counsel, when met with
this difficulty, made use of an argu-
ment in which I cannot recognise any
force. He said it is true that Parlia-
ment has given its Protection to
certain witnesses, but that Parliament
may also withdraw its protection in
such cases as it may choose. That
seems to me to be a monstrous pro-
position.

The language of the Parliamentary
Standing Order is, that all witnesses
examined before the House or any
Committee thereof are entitled to
the Protection of the House In respect
of anything that may be said in their
evidence. This Standing Order is very
short, concise and perfectly plain.
There is no ground whatever for say-
ing that Parliament may choose and
select which witnesses shall be pro-
tected and which shall not. It is for
this Court to Interpose and say that
the good faith of Parliament shall not
be brought into question. This Court
cannot allow it to be said that Parlia-
ment, after saying that their protec-
tion will be thrown around witnesses
answering questions put by them, will
afterwards withdraw that Protection.
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It should be perfectly clear that all wit-
nesses appearing before a Select Commit-
tee are fully privileged and should have
no fears whatsoever about giving evidence.

I am sorry to have taken so long, but I
now conclude by saying that the motion
raises in another form matters which to
the best of my knowledge already are be-
fore or should be placed before the Select
Committee which is already functioning.
As this Select Committee has been ap-
pointed by the Parliament to carry out the
investigation, It would not be proper to
discuss or to appoint a second, alternative
inquiry. To allow debate or decision an the
motion would tend to create confusion
worse confounded.

I therefore rule the motion out of order.

Dissent from Speaker's Ruling

Mr A. R. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, I
move-

That the House dissent from the
Speaker's ru-ling.

I do so because you have given some as-
surances as to the protection afforded to
witnesses appearing before a Select Com-
mittee which in fact the Select Commit-
tee in question declined to give. The Select
Committee would not give the assurances
sought. I think this House must consider
very seriously the fact that, by an action
today, the Select Committee already has
disobeyed a Standing Order of this House.
In spite of attempts by the member for
Ralga and myself to move to the contrary,
the member f or Gascoyne moved a motion
which I shall read to the House.

The SPEAKER: Order! Upon checking
with the Clerk of the Assembly, I am of
the opinion at this Juncture that no mem-
ber of the committee is permitted to
describe the workings of the committee
before a report is made to the House.

Mr Jamnieson: Surely if there was a
breach of Standing orders--

The SPEAKER: order! I do not wish
the Leader of the Opposition to interrupt
me: I am awaiting the Clerk's information
in this regard. I wish to ascertain the facts,
and try to do the right thing. Standing
Order 373 states-

The evidence taken by any Select
Committee of the House, and docu-
ments presented to such Committee
which have not been reported to the
House, shall not be disclosed or pub-
lished by any Member of such Com-
mittee, or by any other person.

I would think all matters pertaining to
the work of the committee cannot be
divulged in this House before the proper
report has been made to the House, and
I ask the member for Morley to have re-
gard for that.

Point o1 Order
Mr B. T. BURKE:- Mr Speaker, I raise

a Point of order. Your ruling is quite
wrong, as evidenced by the precedent you
yourself set this evening in informing this
House that the member for Ascot so far
has refused to testify to the committee.
That information is the province of the
committee alone and, according to your
subsequent ruling, should not have been
revealed.

The SPEAKER: I am not very happy
about the point of order raised by the
member for Balga, but I do not suppose he
would worry much about that. He may
recall I queried the matter myself at the
time I first mentioned it, However, the
Leader of the Opposition specifically asked
me to take into my consideration of this
whole matter points relating to this very
factor. Therefore, I rule the point of order
raised by the member for Balga as being
out of order.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr A. R. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, as you
pointed out, Standing Order 373 read--

The evidence taken by any Select
Committee of the House, and docu-
ments Presented to such Committee
which have not been reported to the
House, shall not be disclosed or pub-
lished by any Member of such Com-
mittee, or by any other person.

I have been very careful not to refer in
any way to the evidence placed before the
committee. I am obeying Standing Order
373 and being very careful not to talk
about documents placed before the com-
mittee. However, Standing Order 373 does
not forbid discussion of the workings of
a committee of this House, and I have
been very careful to talk only about the
operations of the committee. This House
is superior, and must always be superior
to any committee of this House. it Is
most proper that there should be a dis-
cussion if in fact it is believed a committee
has transgressed the Standing Orders.

I was aware of the Standing Order you
quoted, Mr Speaker, and I have been very
careful not to mention any documents or
evidence given to the committee. I am
not speaking and will not speak of the
evidence: I am speaking only of the opera-
tions of the committee. Standing Order
375 states-

The Chairman shall read to the
Committee convened for the purpose
the whole of his draft report, which
may at once be considered, but if
desired by the Committee, It shall be
Printed and circulated amongst the
Committee-

The SPEAKER: Order I The member
for Morley will resume his seat. I believe
It is quite within the province of the
member for Morley, or, indeed, any other
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mrember of the House to question the
Speaker's rulings-and as a matter of
fact, it has been done quite frequently.
However, I wish to draw to the attention
of the member for Morley an additional
factor which may impress him. At page
424 of the 1.9th edition of Erskine May's
Parliamentary Practice, the following
statement is made-

The proceedings in and report of a
Select Committee may not be referred
to in debate before they have been
laid upon the Table.

I believe the member for Morley can still
debate the reasons he disagrees with my
ruling, but he should not go into matters
regarding the proceedings of the Select
Committee.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: I adhere to your
ruling, Mr Speaker; the improper action
of the committee will be referred to at a
later time. Mr Speaker, you did refer to
the fact that all witnesses examined before
the House or any committee established
by the House are entitled to the pro-
tection of the House in respect of any-
thing that may be said in their evidence.
It is highly likely that such a Standing
Order itself has no legal justification.

The Standing Orders of this House derive
from section 34 of the Constitution Act
which states-

The Legislative Council and Legis-
lative Assembly, in their first session,
and from time to time afterwards, as
there shall be occasion, shall each
adopt Standing Rules and orders,
joint as well as otherwise, for the
regulation and orderly conduct of their
proceedings and the despatch of busi-
ness, and for the manner in which the
said Council and Assembly shall be
Presided over in the absence of the
President or the Speaker, and for the
mode in which the said Council and
Assembly shall confer, correspond and
communicate with each other, and for
the passing, intituling, and number-
ing of Bills, and for the presentation
of the same to the Governor for Her
Majesty's assent; and all such Rules
and Orders shall by the said Council
and Assembly respectively be laid
before the Governor, and being by him
approved shall become binding and of
force.

Because that Act does not give this As-
sembly the Power to draw up a Standing
Order in terms of 394, constitutional ex-
perts have very grave doubts as to whether
there is Proper protection of witnesses.
This was submitted to the committee and
inadequate time was given to the member
for Ascot to ehable him to seek proper
legal opinion. The committee gave itself
time on the Monday and sought legal
opinion from the Crown Solicitor which
indicated that the Crown Solicitor,
amongst other things, had not read the
Standing orders.

Mr O'Connor: If the member for Ascot
was telling the truth he would not have
any worries.

Mr Grayden: He flatly refused to give
any evidence.

Mr Bertram: Who told you that?
Mr O'Connor: He has chickened out.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: It Is not a question

of chickening out.
Mr O'Connor: He should resign.
The SPEAKER: Order! The member for

Morley.
Mr Cirayden: He should resign.
Mr Jamieson* You want to watch out.

I'll show you a document.
Mr Grayden: You will show me nothing.
Mr Jamieson: Yes, I will.
Mr A. R. TONKIN:, The larrilcin for

South Perth is showing himself in his true
colours. and these people are Ministers of
the Crown.

Withdrawal of Remark
The SPEAKER: Order! The member for

Morley will withdraw that remark about
the larrikin for South Perth.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, I with-
draw.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's
rsung) Resumed

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: Other disorderly
comments were made a moment ago. The
Minister is now threatening under his
breath in his usual mnanner. He was
threatening the Leader of the Opposition
a moment ago and when I make that kind
of comment I am asked to withdraw. It
is quite right that I should withdraw, but
I am wondering why the member for
South Perth is not required to withdraw
the comments he made to the Leader of
the Opposition.

Mr Sibson: That is up to the Leader of
the Opposition.

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: It was not appar-
ently up to anyone but the Speaker when
I was asked to withdraw-in answer to
the member for Bunbury who is now back
behind his book pretending he did not say
it. The fact is that whether or not people
speak the truth-and even the two Min-
isters sitting on the cross-benches may
half know this truth-there are laws
relating to what was said; and if they do
not know that It is a scandal that this
Parliament has the ealibrg of Minister
who does not even have that elementary
knowledge of the law. Mr Speaker, the
fact remains that anyone who comes be-
fore this Parliament or before a com-
mittee of this Parliament needs to know
where he stands legally.

Mr O'Connor: in the gutter-that is
where he stands.

Mr Skidmore: Here we go again.
Mr Grayden: That is where four indi-

viduals on that side sit-in the gutter.
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Mr A, Rt. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, you do
not think that Is a highly disorderly re-
mark by the Minister-"in the gutter".
You intervened quite properly and asked
me to withdraw when r was speaking
about the larrikin for South Perth and yet
two Ministers of the Crown-

The SPEARER: Will the member re-
sume his seat. r certainly do not want
the member for Morley to reflect on mue
in the Chair. I do not think I have to
explain my actions. I took action I thought
was proper when the member referred to
the Minister. The other matter was some-
thing with regard to which the member
could have asked for a withdrawal him-
self. It is something that has been used
in this Chamber a number of times with-
out it being queried from the Chair, and
I am acting on that score. Unfortunately
it is too late for the member to do so now,
but he could have asked for a withdrawal
and may take satisfaction from that. But
I do not want him to reflect on me. I act
as I think I should act.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: Yes.
The SPEAKER: The member for Morley.
Mr A. R. TONKIN: The Constitution

Act does not give authority to this House
to include Standing Order 394. It Is
fatuous to say that the protection of the
House is given when no legal authority
knows what the protection of the House
Is. If In fact it was meant that parlia-
mentary privilege was given, then It should
be said and It Is not said. If It was meant
that there was immunity from civil prose-
cution, then It should be said and It Is
not said. If it meant that there should
be immunity from criminal prosecution,
then it should be said and it has not been
said. The Standing Order states--

All Witnesses examined before the
House or any Committee thereof, are
entitled to the Protection of the
House...

What Is the protection of the House, Mr
Speaker? We have seen examples of the
protection of the House, have we not?
The Protection of the House resides where
the numbers are and If this House declines
to give proper protection to a member be-
cause, as some people think, he stands in
the gutter--and apparently this House
thinks that such language Is proper- then
that Protection will not be given to the
member.

Withdrawal of Remark
The SPEAKER: Order! I ask the mem-

ber to apologise to the Chair for once
again reflecting on the Speaker.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: I have not reflected
on the Speaker.

The SPEAKER: Order! I am asking the
member for Morley to apologise for re-
flecting on the Chair. I say to the House
that the member for Morley was once

again referring to this matter and I told
him that he could have taken an objec-
tion. I ask him to withdraw.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: I withdraw, Mr
Speaker.

Debate (on dissent from Speakerfs ruling)
Resumed

Mr A. Rt. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, we have
seen that this House is composed of two
sides, We have seen this House is not
able to act impartially, We have seen
that this House votes on various matters
and all the argument in the world put
by the side which Is in the inferior as
far as numbers are concerned will do no
good at all because the numbers rule, in
this place. Do not let us believe that
justice rules in this place. Decisions are
m'ide; they are political decisions. What
protection will the Rouse afford to a
member who happens to speak the truth?
What protection will be given by this
House which is divided 29 to 22? We do
not know. The only time we know this
is after the event.

A member of this House was denied
adequate opportunity to obtain legal
advice-the kind of thing that Is given
to any person in any court of law-in an
area that Is very grey, in an area which
is not tried, where any competent lawyer
will say, "Look, It is not clear where the
law stands on this because the only way
we can know what the law says is to look
at precedents and at what judges have
said; and there have been so few cases
on this that it is quite clear the only way
to find out what the law says is to have
a judgment." I believe In this case that
is what the Government wants. The
Government wants to silence the member
f or Ascot by using the process of law.

Mr O'Connor: We want him to speak
up.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: They want to put
him outside the protection of the law and
the protection that this House ought to
give, but will not necessarily give; that is
why they are trying to force him into the
position. of answering when he asks for
the normal assurances that could be given
to him by any court of law. He was re-
fused these assurances. So, we are seeing
this kind of situation occurring. We saw
today, when the member for Ascot was
given permission to withdraw to seek legal
counsel-

Point of Order
Mr LAURANCE: The member for Mor-

ley has once again referred to the pro-
ceedings of the Select Committee, and I
think that is against the ruling you gave
earlier.

The SPEAKER: It is Indeed true that
tho member for Morley must not refer to
th2 proceedings of the Select Committee.
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He has already appreciated this point, and
I ask hin to do so again. The member for
Morley has three more minutes.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr A, R. TONKIN: If I am not to speak
about the shameful proceedings that have
gone on then I do not know how I could
possibly debate this motion, because the
motion rests upon the fact that there is
no provision for the proper protection of
witnesses. Legal opinion has been given
that this Is a fact; we believe that is a
competent legal opinion.

Mr Orayden: You will do anything to
avoid having the member for Ascot sub-
stantiate his statement.

Mr A. R. TONKINT: Legal opinion given
by the Crown solicitor indicates that the
Standing Orders are not clear. On two oc-
casions the Crown solicitor quite rightly
said, "I am not sure".

Mr Grayden: When is the member for
Ascot likely to come along with the facts
to substantiate his allegations?

Mr Jamieson: When he gets protection.
You are the biggest coward in the world.

Mir Grayden: Who are you talking
about?

The SPEAKER: Order! The member for
Morley will proceed.

Mr A. R. TONKIN: This is the problem,and it will not be resolved here because
as I have said, justice does not reside here
but the numbers do. It will not be possible
to see to it that the full evidence 'is
brought out. The Select Committee envis-
aged by the Premier was a device for
burying all the evidence. He has seen to
It that there would be no proper debate-
only a meeting in secret.

We believe there should be an open in-
qjuiry. If we can forget the Standing
orders for a moment, it would be naive of
me In the extreme to appeal to natural
Justice, but I do appeal to natural Justice,
not because anyone on the opposite side
of the Chamber or in fact others will lis-
ten.

The SPEAKER: The honourable mem-
ber's time has expired.

Mr SKIDMORE: I rise to disagree with
your ruling, Mr Speaker, and I do so on
rounds other than those mentioned by
the member for Morley. I must state that
I find it rather remarkable that a situation
should develop where a proposition having
been put forward by you should be the
means by which the member for Morley
would be prevented from propounding the
same theories. However, so much for that.

I would like to deal with the reasons
that you gave for your refusal to accept
the motion of the member for Ascot of

(i SI)

which notice has been given. As I under-
stand the position, the Motion was drawn
up in a properly canstituted form in ac-
cordance with the Standing Orders of this
Assembly.

The member for Ascot presented the
motion, and read it out. It contains cer-
tain matters which reflect upon the
Premier and upon another Minister. As I
understand the reasons given by you for
your refusal to accept the resolution, they
were based upon the premise and the pre-
supposition that if and when the member
for Ascot appears before the committee
to give evidence-as I understand he has
been before the Select Committee-that
evidence will relate to certain instances.
I might be prepared to accept that as a
matter of fact, Mr Speaker, if it could be
shown by you In your ruling to this House
that the member for Ascot was going to
refer specifically in his evidence before the
Select Committee either to the Premier or
the Minister he named in his resolution.
The presumption Is that you are denying
the rights of British justice, because
neither you, 1, nor anybody else knows
what evidence the member for Ascot wili
Present to the Select Committee.

Quite frankly, with due deference to you.
Mr Speaker, I find it incredible in the
extreme that you should propound such
a theory and that you should ask me to
accept that ruling, because you think that
in substantiating his statement the mem-
ber for Ascot will deal with mattcrs in-
volving the Premier and the Minister for
Police at the inquiry by the Select Cam-~
mittee, when in fact neither you nor I
know what evidence he will give to the
committee. The only Person in possession
of that knowledge is the member for Ascot
himself and he has not divulged it.

Quite frankly I find it incredible that
I have to cop aL decision by you that the
motion will not be accepted. I say that
in the strongest terms, because You believe
that a member may speak to a matter
that has already been determined by the
House as one which should be investigated
by the Select Committee. In doing that
You, Mr Speaker, are doing an injustice to
this place and to the whole system of our
Standing Orders, because you reflect upon
the standards of this House. Surely you
should not deny anybody the right to
bring forward a motion for the appoint-
mnent of a Royal Commission. I find it
incredible In the extremne that the action
you have taken has brought about a re-
fusal for the motion to be debated in this
House.

I am most disappointed with your rul-
ing. As you well know, Mr Speaker, I up-
hold the traditions of this House and our
Standing Orders to the hilt; but on this
occasion I quarrel quite violently and sin-
cerely with your ruling. I certainly regard
it as a matter which I will never counten-
ance while I am a member of Parliament.
I disagree with your ruling, Mr Speaker.
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You are completely wrong and You should
have accepted the motion which the memn-
ber for Ascot Proposes to move.

Mr B. T. BURKE: I also wish to support
the motion that Your ruling be disagreed
with. Before touching on several points
which are important I wish to dwell
briefly on the ruling that you gave, and
on the action that you took in repeatedly
sitting the member for Morley down for
touching upon matters which you said
were proceedings of the Select Committee
and which could not rightly be mentioned
in the course of this debate. With respect,
it seems that you have done exactly the
same thing.

The SPEAKER: Order[ IWill the hon-
ourable member resume his seat? The
member for Balga may disagree with my
ruling. He has already taken a point of
order, and I do not want him to refer to
that. The subject before the Chair is the
motion to disagree with my ruling. The
member for Balga may speak on that.

Mr B. T. BURKE: In that ease allow me
to say that during the exposition of the
reasons for your ruling the notice of mo-
tion of the member for Ascot out of order,
T believe that you floundered and showed
quite clearly that you did not have a
grasp of the situation. I believe this lack
of understanding is illustrated best in your
comments with regard to the allegations,
when you said you presumed they were
the same allegations that were to be made
before the Select Committee.

It seems to me that is an enormous
presumption to make; and to base your
ruling on that sort of presumption is pure
folly. I believe that you, Mr Speaker, had
no right to presume that these allegations
were the allegations which caused this
House to appoint a Select Committee. I
believe the portent of Your ruling is to
refer this matter to what I accept as being
a kangaroo court; and that is the Select
Committee on which I have sat for the
past two days.

It seems to me that an adequate case
was made by the member for Ascot when
he gave notice of his intention to move
for the appointment of a Royal Commis-
sion. He stressed the gravity of the
charges he would make and he thought
they could properly be heard before a
Royal Commission. He said a Royal Com-
mission was a proper and fitting sort of
inquiry for which consideration of these
matters should be reserved.

Notwithstanding that difference which
he tried to emphasise and notwithstand-
Ing that difference which was very clear
to most members In this House and cer-
tainly to members on this side of the
House, it seems to me that you have
blundered in saying to the member for
Ascot that he shall not proceed. It is
Particularly important when you consider
the folly of your actions taking into
account the nature of the charges the

member for Ascot has made. Time and
time again there have been cries for sub-
stantiation and cries for specification of
the allegations. Then when we get the
allegations we find they cannot be debated.
I ask: What has this Government to bide?

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Hear, hear!
Mr B. Tx BURKE: It wants an inquiry;

it calls for an inquiry; it establishes an
inquiry. When the Opposition offers it a
far more authoritative and searching in-
quiry the Government uses the procedures
of the House to refuse that offer. It does
not make sense,

Serious charges have been raised. The
Opposition says that the most definite way
to ascertain the truth is through a Royal
Commission. We know it is the practice
of this House with serious matters to
establish Royal Commissions, not to estab-
lish Select Committees; and yet we find
that in connection with these charges-
Perhaps the most serious charges I have
heard raised In this House-a Select Comn-
mittee is said to be the appropriate body
for inquiry and report--a Select Commit-
tee that I repeat has, In my opinion, be-
come in the two days I have been a
member of it no more than a kangaroo
court.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Hear, hear!
Mr B. T. BURKE: It has become

nothing but a kangaroo court best empha-
sised, with due respect to your previous
ruling-

The SPEAKER: Order! I
the member to refer to the
mittee in such terms again,

do not want
Select Corn-
please.

Mr B. T. BURKE: It Is best Illustrated
by the fact that the most crucial motion
to come before the committee was one
typed out two hours prior to crucial debate,
and moved in an unaltered form after
that debate.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the honour-
able member Please resume his seat? The
member for Ealga knows very well that I
told the member for Morley that he could
not talk about the proceedings of the
Select Committee. I ask the member for
Balga to have respect for that.

Mr B. T. BURKE: Not only are we told
that this Parliament cannot debate a
notice of motion to establish a Royal Com-
mission; we are now told we cannot debate
those matters which are crucial to llus-
trate to the House that the progress of
this Select Committee makes evident, it is
not appropriate, and is not acceptable-

The SPEAKER: Order! If the member
for Balga persists in the line he is taking
I will have to take action against him;
I will have to ask him to withdraw and
follow the machinery along. The member
is able to talk strongly about my ruling.
It is within his province to disagree, and
already members have talked strongly in
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this regard; but he is not to talk about
proceedings in the Select Committee. That
is not for debate in this House until the
appropriate time.

Mr B. T. BURKE: if I can rephrase
more Precisely what I amn saying, it is
this: Without touching upon the proceed-
ings of the Select Committee, I am saying
that the Select Committee has shown it-
self to be neither appropriate nor accept-
able for the consideration of charges of
this gravity. I would have thought that
you, as Speaker, would discern the serious-
ness and gravity of those charges and
would be Pleased to relieve your members
of Parliament of the obligation of inquir-
ing Into matters involving other members
and which are of such a serious nature.

It seems to me we are departing from
common sense. Also it seems to me that
we are giving this Government the oppor-
tunity to flee from the charges, Why
should we do that? Why should it want
to flee from the charges if it has nothing
to hide?

Mr Laurance: What charges?

Mr B. T. BURKE: Why does the Gov-
ernment call for an inquiry and then deny
an inquiry in its most appropriate and
acceptable form?

With due respect to you, Mr Speaker, I
believe that your ruling tonight has de-
based this Parliament and this fact will
be broadcast throughout the country be-
cause it has prevented debate of subjects
in which people are extraordinarily inter-
ested. We have no right to do that, especi-
ally in the circumstance that you are un-
able to refer to any Standing Order as
the authority for your decision: and
especially in the circumstance that you
are unable to say precisely why, apart
from some generalistatlon, you believe this
matter is not appropriate for debate.

It is neither fair nor just, and the mem-
ber for Morley said no truer words when
he said that the numbers in this place rule
this place, and while that situation persists
we cannot expect fairness or Justice, and
certainly we cannot expect an acceptable
situation in which charges of this nature
can be investigated by a Royal Commis-
sion.

I would expect members of the Govern-
ment to rise to their feet and support the
move to disagree with your ruling be-
cause they have evinced so often their re-
quest for an inquiry of the most appropri-
ate form. If the Government wants to get
the member for Ascot and if the Govern-
ment wants to ensure his political extinc-
tion, the Opposition is placing before it
the method by which it can achieve that
end. The Political one-upmanship, as the
member for Ascot said earlier tonight, can
be achieved here by the Government in its
purest form. If the Government has
nothing to hide then let it ensure that the

Position of the member for Ascot is made
completely untenable by having a Royal
Commission.

If the Government does not want a
Royal Commission, why does it not want
a Royal Commission? The Government
must justify that and justify it not only
here, but in the eyes of the public. Why
does It believe a Select Committee is more
appropriate?

Mr Barnett, To hide the facts.

Mr B. T. BURKE: It becomes very dis-
appointing for members on this side of the
House constantly to support propositions
in which they believe and then to see
those propositions voted down consist-
ently. I suppose this proposition will go
the same way as those in the past and we
cannot hope that this motion will be car-
ried. I can say only this: While the public
has knowledge of the allegations made by
the member for Ascot there will be no
relaxation of the pressure on this Govern-
ment, which will be continually asked to
provide answers-and a political manoeuvre
-that is, the reference of the allegations
back to the Select Committee-will not
relieve the pressure. It might delay the
pressure in a way which will become most
uncomfortable for the Government, but
it will not relieve the pressure.

Because of that, and with all due
respect to you, Mr Speaker, I would most
strongly urge that your ruling be dis-
agreed with and that the motion be car-
ried so that the member for Ascot can
make his allegations as he has so ofter
been called upon to make by the Govern-
ment.

Adjournment of Debate
Mr BARNETT: In order that the Par-

liament can properly consider your ruling,
I move-

That the debate be adjourned for
one hour.

Motion put and a division taken with
the following result-

Mr Blarnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davies
Mr H. D.Evans
Mr T. D. Evans

Mr Blaikie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Mr Coyne
Mrs Craig
Mr Orayden

Mr Orewar
Mr P. V. Jones
Mr laursacs
Mr Mensaros
Mr Nanovieb
Mlr O'Connor

Ayes-17
Mr Pletcher
Mr Harman
Mr Jamnieson
Mr T. H. Jones
Ur May

Mr Skidmore
Mr A- R. Tonkin
Mr MicIver

(Taller)

NOOs-2a
Mr Old
My, OwNen
Mr Ridge
Mr Shalders
Mr Sibson
Mr Sodernan
Mr Stephens
Mr Tubby
Wr watt
Mr Young
Mr Clarko

trailer)
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palm
Aye" Noe"

Aft J. T. Tonkin Mr MePhanln
Mr T. J. Burka Mr Huhton
Ur Taylor Mr Crane
Mr Eartrey Mr Thompson
Mr Moller Dr Dadour

Motion thus negatived.

Debate (an dissent fromn Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr H. D). EVANS: I, too, must regret-
tably disagree with your ruling, Mr
Speaker, and at the same time I find there
is a certain amount of diffculty and
handicap in not having the facility of a
transcript of your exposition to which
reference can be made.

Briefly, the two salient points which
emerge from your decision are, firstly,
that the protection of the House is
afforded to the member who is involved
and to the witnesses he may care to call.
I would respectfully ask the authority
from whence that decision arises as It
appears to be a grey area, as the member
for Morley Pointed out. It is very diffi-
cult to define and has been the subject
of disputation amongst constitutional legal
authorities.

That Is one thing which does perturb
me, and It would be a transgression not
to have that matter cleared up before
any further sittings of the Select Comn-
mittee are allowed.

The second Point is one that I feel could
best be demonstrated, if one cares to make
an analogy, by comparing the two forums
which have been proposed. The Oppo-
sition is anxious that this matter should
be Pursued to Its ultimate-to its utmost.

Mr O'Connor: Particularly if it takes
six months.

Mr Jamieson: We will see about that.
What about those people connected with
drugs. How soon will they come up?

Mr H. D. EVANS: We are not prone to
sub Judtce matters, but You have it within
Your Power and authority, Mr Speaker,
to allow the Royal Commission to proceed
immediately. I intend to draw your
attention to the comparison which can
be made between the two legal forums
which are envisaged.

On the one hand, there is the Select
Committee composed of five members of
this House-three from the Government
side, and two of whom are totally depend-
ent for their future careers within this
place upon the goodwill of certain per-
sonages, and It is a reasonable assumption
that those two members would not jeopar-
dise their positions lightly. If justice can
thrive in that climate, we would be very
much surprised.

Mr Young: That is an assumption that
everyone Is crooked.

Mr Janmieson: Rilgby made that clear.

Mr H. D). EVANS: The comparison with
the Select Committee is the suggestion of
the member for Ascot tonight in his
notice of motion, and it Is the setting up
of a Royal Cormmission involving at least
two Supreme Court judges. Even the
member for Scarborough would admit
there is a world of difference between
the legal climate in the two instances.
That is the point we put forward, and I
feel this is something which should be
regarded when looking at your determina-
tion here this evening, Mr Speaker.

The terminology of the content of the
notice of motion presented by the member
for Ascot this evening covers quite a
number of matters.

The SPEAKER: They may not be dis-
cussed.

Mr H. D. EVANS: I will not refer to
them. I point out that they extend beyond
the Province of the two Ministers to whom
reference was made-reference which you
yourself, Mr Speaker, alluded to. The sub-
stance of the motion which has been pro-
posed is much broader than that currently
being examined by the Select Committee.
Therefore, It would be a gross injustice to
deny to the member for Ascot the oppor-
tunity to examine the matters which are
contained in the proposed motion. They go
far beyond those which were presented in
the terms of reference of the Select Com-
mittee.

So, three issues are involved here, and
it is on these three issues I am forced
to disagree with your ruling. I feel you
should at least consider further, firstly,
whether or not you are doing the mem-
ber for Ascot an injustice by curtailing
him from moving for the appointment
of a Royal Commission to Inquire into all
these matters. Secondly, you should con-
sider whether the authority upon which
you based your assumption-in the first
instance-that witnesses will receive the
protection of this place does Indeed stand
up and can be substantiated after evidence
has been given. From that point the wit-
nesses, if they do not have the assurances
you suggest they have, would be in a
most embarrassing position. I do feel you
should have further regard for this matter
on those three seperate grounds.

Mr O'CONNOR: I rise briefly to support
your ruling Mr Speaker. It !s a long time
since we have heard so much drivel In this
place in an effort to cover up. During the
last few days the Opposition has endeav-
oured to cover up the most contemptible
action ever taken by a member in this
Chamber.

Mr Bryce: A cover-up!
Mr Jamieson: We want the inquiry to

be as wide as you like.
Mr H. D. Evans: The Minister should

come out from his hollow log.
The SPEAKER: order!
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Mr O'CONNOR: It is an obvious cover-
up.

Mr Jamnieson: It Is no cover-up: we want
to open it as wide as possible.

Mr O'CONNOR: I do not need any pro-
tection; I will come out into the open.

Mr H. fl. Evans: Well, go ahead!
Mr O'CONNOR: I am quite prepared to

come out in the open.
Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order! Previous

speakers were heard in reasonable silence.
Mr O'CONNOR: The member for Ascot

has a few supporters; they can be Identi-
fled by their squeals.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!

Point of Order
Mr H. D. EVANS: The reference by the

Minister, more than by inference. is
objectionable by any standard, and I ask
that he withdraw it.

The SPEAKER: I ask the Minister to
withdraw his remark.

Mr O'CONNOR: I withdraw. I do not
know what the member opposite is refer-
ring to, but I withdraw in deference to
you, Mr Speaker.

Debate (on dissent from Speakers
ruling) Resumed

Mr O'CONNOR: Members opposite have
stated that the member for Ascot has not
had an opportunity to debate the matters
before the Chamber, but he did have ample
opportunity and he chickened out.

Mr Bryce: When?
Mr O'CONNOR: We have a Select Com-

mittee, and the member for Ascot has had
ample opportunity to give whatever in-
formation he has to this Select Committee.

Mr Bryce: Rigged!
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr O'CONNOR: What has the member

for Ascot done? He has cringed behind
the curtain of parliamentary privilege.

Point of Order
Mr JAMIESON: I must rise on a point

of order. We are discussing, I believe, your
ruling, Mr Speaker. You have ruled that
we cannot-

Mr O'Connor: The member for Balga
made that point which I replied to.

Mr JAMIESON: -discuss matters per-
taining to this Select Committee. The
Minister is definitely discussing these-he
is starting on quite a series of them-and
I ask you to have a look at his debate
f row the point of view of keeping him in
order in regard to the point you made
earlier-that we must not discuss things
which are Privy to the Select Committee.

The SPEAKER: in his debate the Min-
ister must keep as close as possible to the
subject In hand; that is, the motion to
disagree with the Speaker's ruling on the
matters that have been raised.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's
ruling) Resumed

Mr O'CONNOR: Thank you, Mr Speaker,
I will do that. The comment I made a
moment ago was in reply to a comment
made by the member for Balga. I was
amazed last week when members of the
Opposition stated they would whole-
heartedly support a Select Committee but
they have obviously done everything they
can to avoid it-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Six amendments we
put forward.

Mr O'CONNOR: -to avoid the respon-
sibility of a Select Committee.

Mr Bertram: Tell us how.
Mr O'CONNOR: They come back to this

House-
Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order! Members are not

permitting the Minister to speak.
Mr O'CONNOR: As far as I see it-and

I think I see it fairly clearly-the Op-
position is grasping at straws in an effort
to avoid its responsibility in this House.

Several members interjected.

Point of Order
Mr B. T. BURKE: In an aside the Min-

ister for Police said the member for Ascot
would not know what honest was. I find
that personally objectionable.

The SPEARER: I find the point of
order raised by the member for Balga
to be out of order and one that could have
been taken at the time by the member for
Ascot himself. It is now too late for him-

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr Jamieson; Be fair!
The SPEARER: Order!
Mr Jamieson: You be fair, then.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr Jamieson: I ask you to be fair.
The SPEAKER: I ask the Leader of the

Opposition to refrain from speaking in
such a manner.

Mr Bryce: What sort of instructions
have you been given?

The SPEAKER: Order! I have acted in
this way as I should have acted. There
was a whole range of discussion going on
and members were interjecting on the
Minister. The remark was made at the
time. Perhaps it would be wise for the
Minister to withdraw the remark.

Mr O'CONNOR: Mr Speaker, I withdraw
the remark.
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Debate (on dissent from Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr O'CONNOR: It is patently obvious
where the problem lies.

Several members interjected.
Mr H. D. Evans: What are you frighten-

ed of?
Mr Jlamieson: A Royal Commission-

what are you frightened of?
Mr O'CONNOR: I am not frightened of

you or any of your-
The SPEAKER: Order! The Minister

will resume his seat. It is a bad feature in
parliamentary life when there is continual
heckling opposition to Prevent a member
being heard in this place. I ask members
to refrain from doing this. Members of
the Opposition have had an opportunity to
speak and be heard in reasonable silence.
All members should be heard in similar
fashion.

Mr O'CONNOR: Mr Speaker, I can un-
derstand why members of the Opposition
do not want me to be heard in silence-
because they have so much to hide.

Mr Jamieson: Hollow log. Get back into
your log.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the Min-
ister resume his seat?

Point of Order
Mr BARNETT: Mr Speaker, in all hon-

esty, a speech of that nature-
The SPEAKER: What is the-
Mr BARNETT: I object to the Minister

saying I have something to hide. I have
nothing to hide.

The SPEAKER: Order! The member will
resume his seat. There is no point of
order.

Mr Bryce: There ought to be a Select
Committee to inquire Into It.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr O'CONNOR: I believe as we go on
tonight we see the sham of the members
of the Opposition in their statements last
week that they would support a Select
Committee. They said they would sup-
port this committee. They are running for
cover like a mob of rabbits down a bur-
row, It Is obvious where the Problem lies.
The member for Ascot tonight made some
arrangements to go on TV and debate the
issue, and scuttled out very quickly.

Point of Order
Mr A. R. TONKIN: Mr Speaker, I want

You to assist the House by informing the
House what Is before the Chair at the
Present time.

Sir Charles Court: You, of all people.

The SPEARER: The matter before the
Chair is the matter of disagreement with
the Speaker's ruling.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr O'CONNOR: Mr Speaker, I have
hardly been able to say two or three words
without interjections, as you know, and
I have risen to support the ruling you have
made.

Mr Sodeman: An indication of the fair
Play that goes on.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr Sodeman: And it is so often asked

for.
The SPEAKER: Order! The Minister.
Mr O'CONNOR: I believe the action

here tonight in moving this motion is
virtually a contempt of this House. This
House set up a Select Committee to look
into certain allegations. Then a member
who claimed he had some, and who I think
is stalling for time to bring some
forward-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: He indicated them
tonight.

Mr O'CONNOR: There is no fact in
them.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!

Mr O'CONNOR: And what is more, If
the honourable member is prepared to
do so, I would go out with him anywhere
and discuss it In the open. I have nothing
to be afraid of.

Mr May: Have a Royal Commission.

Mr Bryce: Have a Royal Commission.
Mr A. R. Tonkin: Take out a writ to

make it sub judice, as Your master has
done.

Mr Bryce Interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr O'CONNOR: If anything was going

to be slapped on the member for Ascot
It would not be a writ.

Mr Bryce: That does wonders for the
tone of Parliament.

Several members interjected.
Mr Bryce: You are the members who

pretend to be concerned about this Parlia-
ment.

The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr O'CONNOR: The member who has

taken these contemptible actions is one
who makes allegations such as that.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Let us have an open
inquiry.

The SPEAKER: order!
Mr Barnett: Have a Royal Commission

and clear yourself.
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Mr O'CONNOR: A Select Committee is
welcome to go through all my papers-
all of them.

Mr Bryce: What assurance is there they
will?

Mr Grayden: Why is the member for
Ascot frightened to give evidence before a
Select Committee?

Mr O'CONNOR: I think your ruling
tonight Is a correct one, Mr Speaker. I
believe all the Opposition is doing is Stal-
ling for time in an effort to cook some-
thing up. I support the ruling you have
given.

Mr BRYCE: I desire to support the
motion of dissent from your ruling. Mr
Speaker, because it is part of a monstrous
cover-up. Nobody in this Chamber will be
kidded otherwise. Anybody here who was
the slightest bit concerned for a genuine,
open inquiry would support tihe con-
cept of a Royal Commission; and not
just an ordinary Royal Commission, a
Royal Commission that might well be
stacked with members of the Government
side, an Honorary Royal Commission;
because we are all aware that when this
Parliament dissolves this so-called Select
Committee may be converted into an Hon-
orary Royal Commission which will be Just
as much of a sham as this Select Commit-
tee is.

Mr O'Connor: They reckon a buffalo has
a thick hide.

Mr BRYCE: That kind of Royal Com-
mission would be just as great a farce. If
this Government Is prepared to divorce
itself from Its Political future, and if It is
Prepared to demonstrate to the People of
Western Australia that there is nothing
to hide, it will at least appoint two judges-

Mr O'Connor: You are the one who has
something to hide.

Mr BRYCE: Bring in the judiciary. Let
the Judiciary hear the evidence.

Mr O'Connor: Wily not the Select Com-
mittee?

Mr BRYCE: In these last few days we
have been presented with plenty of evi-
dence that this Select Committee is
designed to produce a tailor-made result.

Mr B. T. Burke: Hear, hear!
Mr BRYCE: The Premier has used and

abused the media to direct those junior
members of his back benches to bring down
the finding that he wants.

Mr Carr: They are writing their report
tonight.

Mr BRYCE: He has indicated through
the media to these junior members of the
House-and it has been pointed out already
by members on this side of the House that
nobody blames them for being able and
willing young men whose future depends
upon the decision-

Several members interjected.

Mr BRYCE: I am able to illustrate very
clearly, and I will do this in just one
moment, how a member of that committee
was prepared, in a premeditated fashion,
to draft the proposals of the report, and to
take that draft to the committee meeting
before one skerrick, one iota, of evidence
had been submitted to the committee. We
argued In this Chamber a few days ago,
when the Government made Its decision to
establish this committee, that the report
and findings of the committee had prob-
ably been written before the committee
was established, and we find-

Mr A. R. Tonkin: Proved today.
Mr BRYCE: -today that a member of

the committee, before he had heard one
single word of evidence, came to the com-
mittee, with an outline-

Points of Order
Mr LAURANCE: On a point of order,

Mr Speaker-
The SPEAKER: Order! Will memberf

resume their seats. I take the point of
order. The member for Ascot knows, and
I think he was in the Chamber when I
informed the House, that the proceedings
in, and the evidence taken by, the Select
Committee cannot be debated In this House
until a report is brought down by the
committee.

Mr B. T. BURKE: On a point of order,
Sir, I move to disagree with you ruling.

The SPEAKER: Will the member for
Balga resume his seat. I gave a ruling on
this matter some time ago; it has been
featured already and members have had
regard for it. There is no point of order
at this time; the ruling was given a long
time ago.

Debate (on dissent from Speaker's ruling)
Resumed

Mr BRYCE: Mr Speaker, you rufled out
of order a motion that was designed to
establish a Royal Commission headed by
the judiciary to investigate these charges
that the Government has brought on Its
own head. The Government has insisted, in
this place and in the media, that these
charges be brought forward in public, Into
the open. It insisted time and time again
that the details be provided, and when
those details were provided, the Govern-
ment decided to squeal and to run for
cover.

Sir Charles Court: You silly little boy!
Mr BRYCE: In running for cover, the

Government is insisting that the Select
Committee-

Mr O'Connor: Have you something to
worry about?

Mr BRYCE: -is stacked chock full of
its members, with a majority of three to
two. The committee is designed with no
objectivity whatsoever. It seems apparent
that not one member on the Government
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benches is Prepared to support the con- Mr B. T. Burke: The chairman of the
cept of an open, decent, dinkurn, honest
inquiry into these allegations-

Mr O'Connor: What would you know
about an honest inquiry?

Mr BRYCE: -headed by the judiciary.
If the Minister for Police were prepared
to support an inquiry of that nature, he
would not be criticised, but it is obvious
that he is--

Mr O'Connor: I went out in the open
and said what I thought about you to-
night.

Mr BRYCE: I am not in the slightest
bit interested in exchanging insults with
the Minister for Police. We were chal-
lenged to provide details. It was argued
that there was nothing wrong, but when
we provided the details the Government
decided to cover up the details.

Mr O'Connor: Cover up! I went out
openly on the air tonight.

Mr BRYCE: It is quite apparent that
the Select Committee appointed-

Mr O'Connor: Frightened little boy-
head for cover!

Mr BRYCE: -is a totally inappropriate
body to handle the task that it has been
given. Mr Speaker, that committee, con-
trary to any ruling that may have been
given in this place or anywhere else, is
unable to give witnesses who come before
it assurances that civil and criminal pro-
ceedings will not be taken against them.

Mr Mensaros: You want to make ac-
cusations under privilege, that is what
you want.

Mr Jamieson: Shut up and go back.
Mr BRYCE: This sort of talk is designed

to frighten and to bully people into silence.
Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order! The member for

Ascot.
Mr BRYCE: That is the traditional

method used by those who set out to bully
and frighten people into silence; that vague
threat that civil or criminal proceedings
could be taken against them if they dare
to tell the truth. The assurances to which
I referred have not been given. However,
the most astonishing shortcoming of this
particular committee is that despite the
Parsimonious promises made by the Prem-
icr in this Chamber, when the issue was
debated originally a few nights ago, that
any aspect of his dealings could be brought
under scrutiny by such a committee, we
have been informed that the committee is
not competent to look at matters sub
iudice.

Sir Charles Court: Oh, don't talk rot!
Mr BRYCE: The Premier interjects by

mumb'ing, and says, "flon't talk rot".
That is something-

Mr Bertram: Produce your authority.

committee ruled that way.

Several members interjected.

The SPEAKER: Order!

Mr BRYCE: The Premier may be mani-
pulating the committee from the outside.
but he is not on the inside to know that
such a ruling has been given. Of course,
the fact is that despite these parsimonious
promises given here, it is incompetent for
that committee to look at those particular
subjects. It is even Incompetent for that
committee to come back to the Chamber
to report on the subjects, even if it found
they were relevant and serious.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: And the chairman has
said that.

Mr BRYCE: The chairman has said also
that he will rule as to what constitutes a
matter sub ludice and what does not.

Sir Charles Court: Heaven forbid that
you ever become a Minister.

Mr BRYCE: In the mind of the man
who was chosen by the Government to
head this committee lies the decision and
the responsibility to determine what is to
be discussed on that broad issue. Mr
Speaker, the Minister for Police is mum-
bling obscenities under his breath.

Several members interjected.

Mr BRYCE: I am not sure whether he
is directing them at me or at Hansard,
but he will have to speak up a little if he
wants me to hear them.

I have illustrated a very serious
weakness in this committee, and the
weakness is the basic reason that
a Royal Commission, headed by the
judiciary, should be given the power
and opportunity to look into these charges.
Why should any witness come forward to
the Select Committee to put his head on
the block? I am not talking about myself
or any other member of Parliament, but
why should any witness from outside this
place come forward to the committee-

Mr Mensaros: They have nothing to fear
if they tell the truth.

Mr BRYCE: --only to find that if It
suits the whim and wishes of the chair-
man, at the direction of the Premier, the
substance of the evidence he gives will not
be considered because it may be embarras-
sing-

Mr A. , R. Tonkin: The voting is three
to two.

Mr BRYCE: Yes, the voting is three to
two on party lines. The Minister for Police
just uttered the interjection, "Stall, stall,
stall."

Mr O'Connor: That is right.
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Mr BRYCE: If the Minister is dinkum,
I challenge him to obtain the support of
his Cabinet colleagues-

Mr O'Connor: I challenged you tonight,
and you chickened out.

Mr BRYCE: -for a Royal Commission.
Let us select judges, make a decision, and
ensure that this is an open healthy in-
quiry and not an inquiry by a Select Com-
mittee that has been shackled. The Select
Committee can give no-one an assurance
that witnesses who may be needed to
elaborate on testimony given will even be
called. Some witness could provide vitally
important evidence to the committee and
indicate another witness to further sub-
stantiate his evidence. if It is not in the
mind of the chairman to call that subse-
quent witness, he will never be called.

The SPEAKER: Order! Will the mem-
ber resume his seat? I must at this
juncture advise as Speaker of this House
that It is not the chairman of the Select
Committee, or the Select Committee.
which gives the privilege of Parliament.
It Is the Standing Orders of this
House which do that, and this has
been acknowledged by courts of law, and
will he in the future. Anyone who does
not follow the rule of privilege will be
taken to task very severely. I do not
think the member I or Ascot was in the
Chamber when I spoke of that previously.

Mr BRYCE: Mr Speaker, I was demon-
strating the point that no dinkumn inquiry
can be conducted by a Select Committee
which is a politically lopsided body and
which may not necessarily call all or any
of the witnesses necessary to clarify the
Issues. So if somebody makes an allegation
that warrants investigation, in the public
interest and In the interest of the Parlia-
ment one would assume that all the wit-
nesses who wish to testify in respect of
that issue should be given the opportunity
to do so.

However, the assurance I sought that
this should happen was denied, and that
is a reality.

It is also possible and probable that if
a civil servant were called before the
Select Committee, the Government could
use its authority to direct that civil serv-
ant to claim Executive privilege and not
answer the questions or provide the
information necessary for the purposes of
the investigations of the committee. Who
could possibly argue it is a genuine com-
mittee of Inquiry if that shackle is placed
upon its activities?

I sought the assurance from the Govern-
ment, through the committee, that the
Government would not use this cover-up
tactic because, let us face it, if the inquiry
gets close to the truth by this method it
is quite simple for the Government to
claim Executive privilege and silence civil
servants.

The SPEAKER: It is not possible at all.
Mr BRYCE: Mr Speaker, if that were

the case it would have been a simple
matter for the Crown Law Department or
the chairman of the Select Committee
to indicate that when the assurance was
sought; but, in fact, that was not the
ease.

A great deal of trash has been talked
about the preparedness of the member
for Ascot to testify. I am very happy to
testify at any time-

Mr O'Connor: You will have your chance
in the morning.

Mr Clarko: When it suits you.
Mr BRYCE: -to any dinkum. Royal

Commission headed by the judiciary. We
have seen the Premier and one or two
other Ministers use this ruse that a memn-
ber of Parliament may decide to exercise
his privilege and refrain from giving evi-
dence. Mr Speaker, I am happy to table
a statutory declaration to say that if a
decent, honest, and open inquiry is
established in the form of a Royal Com-
mission headed by the judiciary, I will be
only too happy to attend and testify under
oath at any time.

Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr BRYCE: The Select Committee is a

kangaroo court that has been designed-
Mr Sodeman: Why don't you come

clean?
Mr BRYCE: -to bring down a laund-

ered, specially tailored finding to protect
the Government. I think it is a disgrace
as far as this Parliament is concerned
when matters of such seriousness can be
covered up in this way.

Mr Sodeman: Your hypocrisy is a great
disgrace.

Mr BRYCE: There will be no doubt In
the minds of people outside this
Chamber-

Mr Clarko: Why don't you go outside
and tell them what you think?

Mr BRYCE:-that when the Govern-
ment introduces a move to squash an
inquiry by a Royal Commission, it is run-
ning for cover.

Mr O'Connor: You have done that
tonight.

Mr BRYCE: I say that because despite
the brave talk from members on the Gov-
ernment benches, we know very clearly-

The SPEAKER: The member has two
minutes.

Mr BRYCE: -they have something to
fear-

Mr O'Connor: No way.
Mr BR.YCE: -because if they did not

they would accept the simple, straight-
forward solution.
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Mr O'Connor: I am not afraid to go
before the Select Committee.

Mr BRYCE: What a brave man! He
says he will go before the Select Commit-
tee, knowing full well that the full truth
zan never come out. That is the essence
Af It; the Government does not want the
full truth to come out, otherwise It would
appoint a Royal Commission.

Several members interjected,
Mr BRYCE: We support the concept Of

a committee of Inquiry; in this place we
tried to convert that proposition Into
something that was decent and respectable.
But we finished up with something that is
not even worth while passing the time
of day on, because we know the report was
drafted in the minds of the people who
conceived that committee of inquiry before
It was established. We have seen evidence
today that was even put Into writing be-
fore one iota of evidence was put to the
committee. Some members of the com-
mittee were prepared to go on the com-
mittee with a brief outline of what their
report would be. Objectivity? Absolutely
nil!

However, the People outside this Cham-
ber, treated so contemptuously by the
Government In so many ways, will not be
fooled with the three to two majority.
Opposition members sought a politicaily
unbiased Inquiry, and one we could be sure
would achieve a decent result.

The SPEAKER: The member's time
has expired.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I want to get
back to the real purpose of this debate,
which Is to disagree with the Speaker's
ruling. I would like to say here and now
that I support the Speaker's ruling, and I
oppose the motion. What members op-
posite, who are getting so excited and con-
cerned, seem to have lost sight of is the
[act that there is a basic reason why the
notice of motion given by the member for
Ascot was out of order- The cold, hard fact
Is that the House has before it a certain
matter which arises out of some very
scathing and broad, smearing allegations
made by the member for Ascot.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: They were also
specific.

Sir CHARLES COURT: The House saw
fit to refer the specific statements, broad as
they were, to a Select Committee.

Mr A. R. Tonkin: With a majority of
your boys on It.

Sir CHARLES COURT: Now, 0ll of a,
sudden members of the Opposition have
lost their enchantment with Select Com-
mittees, of wvhich they have been great
advocates in the Past. Suddenly their total
concern is to protect the member for Ascot
against the inquiry.

Mr H. D. Evans: Why are you fright-
e3ned?

Mr Harman: That Is nonsense, and you
know it.

Sir CHARLES COURT: They want to
protect the member for Ascot against
something, and I take It to protect him
against himself. If the honourable
member had honest and decent intentions
he would have no compunction at all about
going before the Select Committee and
informing it of the basis of his allegations.

Mr Jamieson: You would not do it. With
all your virtues, you would never go before
a loaded court.

Sir CHARLES COURT: I just ask the
House and members opposite: If the mem-
ber for Ascot has decent intentions, basic
information and specific allegations which
are based on fact, why does he object to
going before a Select Committee?

Mr Jamieson:, Because it is loaded.
Mr Bryce: The answer is: Yes, I do have

specific information.
Sir CHARLES COURT: I pose it an-

other way: if the honourable member has
this information and If he believes in that
Information, he would not even be bothered
about seeking the protection of a Select
Committee; he would go public, into the
Press, on the radio and on television.

Mr Bryce: So you could issue a writ and
tie it up again? That is precisely your
intention.

Sir CHARLES COURT: It is quite obvi-
ous that members opposite have decided
they want to destroy the Select Commit-
tee; they are setting about it in a very
methodical and almost skilful way In an
endeavour to destroy its credibility. In so
doing, they are doing this Institution a
tremendous disservice because they are
going to destroy the credibility of all
future Select Commnittees--an instrument
of the Parliament which in the past has--

Mr Jamieson: There has never been aL
Select Committee like this before.

Sir CHARLES COURT: In the past,
Select Committees have been a part of this
institution, and have fulfilled-

Mr Jamnieson: Never to inquire into
members of Parliament.

Mr Bryce: You have egg on your face.
Mr O'Connor: Listen to who is talking.
Sir CHARLES COURT: A man who

would stoop to what the member for Ascot
stooped to in this Chamber would stoop
to anything. For him to talk about People
having egg on their faces Is the height of
hypocrisy; there has never been anyone in
this Chamber who has been quite as low
as the member for Ascot, or has done the
things he has done. I wish to return to the
subject matter of the debate, What is this
protection the member for Ascot so des-
perately needs?

Mr Bryce: Not for me.
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Sir CHARLES COURT: If It Is not for
the honourable member, who is it for? It
would be Interesting if he would tell the
Select Committee who It Is for.

Mr Bryce: You would like to know so
that you could bully them like You bully
everybody else.

air CHARLES COURT: I know what the
Opposition had in mind for the elections.
and realise they are sore because their
plans have blown up in their faces. I wish
to return to the vital question: If only
members opposite will set aside their hys-
teria and this phobia about trying to pro-
tect the member for Ascot they will see
the real significance of the Speaker's
ruling is that if we are going to have
orderly business in this place we cannot
have a matter superimposed on an existing
matter, as is now proposed by the Opposi-
tion In respect of this notice of motion.
Therefore I support the Speaker's ruling
and oppose the motion.

Mr Nanovich: I think I will go and have
a cup of tea.

Mr JAMIESON: Mr Speaker, you have
based Your ruling on Standing Order 394.
and that is the Standing Order about
which I am most concerned. I believe you
should have a closer look at it, because
it is my understanding the Crown Law
Department does not support part of Your
ruling tonight. I know you gave some
example from the past w~here this has
been accepted; I understand it was an
English precedent.

The SPEAKER: No. an Australian pre-
cedent.

Mr JAMIESON: Mr Speaker, you have
implied Standing Order 394 gives a certain
power, but it is my understanding that
the Crown Law Department does not sup-
port your contention, and that some out-
side legal opinion is not sure. I believe in
all fairness and for the benefit of the
House and members you should clarify
what obviously is a grey area.

The SPEAKER: I do not believe there
is a grey area.

Mr JAMIESON: Well, if outside legal
opinion and the Crown Law Department
disagree, it would seem to me the matter
needs clarification.

The SPEAKER: I have cleared it up.
Mr JAMIESON: I do not wish to reflect

on you, Mr Speaker, but nobody should set
himself up as being quite so infallible.
This matter could be vital and should be
resolved now otherwise we may be creating
a Problem for the future.

Sir Charles Court: The Speaker must
make a Judgment on the matter, and the
House eventually decides.

Mr JAMIESON: I agree; but Ilam saying
that often it Is necessary to obtain a
number of legal opinions to sort out the
grey areas which may exist.

The Premier implied that we do not now
support what we supported before; that is
quite wrong. Right at the start of this
business, I indicated that the Premier
would get into all the trouble in the world
by not referring the matter to a Royal
Commission, where properly trained
people could take certain steps, where
untrained People would merely follow
their political dictates.

There can be no doubt as to the truth
of my remarks. If we were in the same
position as the Government, we would
have the same argument foisted upon us
from the other side. I am not hiding
under a bushel on this issue; that is the
way Governments work in our system. The
Government has appointed three members
who will bring down the decision they
wish to bring down despite the evidence
which is presented to the committee. It
does not matter very much about that,
because what they do not choose to dis-
close, the public does not know about,
anyway.

As the Speaker mentioned in his state-
ment, I approached him earlier today
expressing concern about certain aspects
of the inquiry. There has never been an
inquiry such as this for as long as this
Parliament has been in existence. It is a
different kind of inquiry. It is of no use
members saying, "There have been Select
Committees before and we must base our
Judgment upon that." This is a Select
Committee composed of members of this
House formed to investigate a matter
raised by a member of this House.

Mr O'Neil: What about the Robson case
in 1900?

Mr JAMIESON: That was not the same
at all.

Mr O'Neil: It was a Select Committee
of the House appointed to inquire into an
allegation about a member.

Mr JAMIESON: The Deputy Premier
has put himself where he should not be;
he trod where he should not have trod
before he looked, because If he had looked
at the case he would know the political
situation at the time was quite different
from that of today in that the party polit-
ical system had not developed.

Mr O'Neil: You said there had never
been a case of a Select Committee inquiry
into the actions of a member.

Mr JAMIESON: In that regard, the
Deputy Premier may be technically correct.
However, the point I am making is that at
that time, the Parliament was not party
politically orientated. Certainly, there has
never been a case since that system has
been in existence to compare with the
case under discussion now.

As the Deputy Premier would well know,
the 1900 committee was a very different
committee from the ones of today. Its
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members were not even nominated by the
Government and the Opposition but were
elected by a ballot of the whole House.

Sir Charles Court: We can do that under
our system.

Mr JAMIESON: Of course we can.- But
under the party political system the same
result would obtain; the majority side
would have the majority of members on
the committee.

Mr Clarko: Do You believe in that sys-
tem?

Mr JAMIESON: Of course I do, but I do
not believe in the party political system
conducting judicial inquiries and then sen-
tencing a person. I do not think members
are trained or are capable of making such
decisions.

This is what members opposite are ask-
ing them to do. This is a very dangerous
precedent to set. If we were sensible we
would get right out of it and put it into
the bands of somebody who could handle
it properly and could bring down a result
that would be fair and considered and
done in a way that trained people would
be capable of doing it and not in a way
that untrained persons, with their political
prejudices, would be liable to act.

I am not hiding behind one side or the
other. We would be politically prejudiced
and the other side would be politically
prejudiced. I am not saying one is any
better than the other, but I am saying
that the matter has reached a bad situ-
ation and the Speaker's decision to dis-
allow this notice of motion makes It much
worse. If witnesses are unsure they cer-
tainly will not come forward, and if I were
in the position of asking witnesses to come
forward, under these circumstances I
would not like to ask them. I would
rather take the blame myself.

I would be like the fellow from The
West Australian newspaper who was in a
Federal court today and was asked to dis-
close where his story came from. He will
probably have to go to gaol over that but
that will be his own choice, because vital
ethics are concerned In such matters.

If the Ministers concerned have nothing
to hide they would have nothing more to
hide before a judicial inquiry or a Royal
Commission than before a Select Commit-
tee, but because a Select Committee has
certain powers given to it under the Stand-
Ing Orders of the House many things can-
not be disclosed: they remain the preroga-
tive of that Select Committee.

Before a Royal Commission they must
be disclosed and, unless the Royal Commis-
sion decides to deliberate in camera, It
will be open to the public. Let the public
judge. Who should be more the judge of
the people in Parliament, their actions and
their activities, than the general public?
If the matters were before a Royal Com-
mission they would be above board. If

they are behind closed doors under the
control of party prejudices there is not
likely to be very much justice for anybody.

I think It was an unwise decision to rely
on that without having Probably taken
wide counsel as to whether such witnesses
would be accorded this privilege. Even if
they were accorded this privilege the final
problem is to determine how fairness can
be applied in a committee that has pre-
judices. One cannot accuse the judiciary
of this. We expect them, with their legal
training, to examine witnesses properly,
to define decisions In judgments they give
and to report to the Parliament or to the
Government In a way that Is fair and
proper to all concerned.

Although it maty be that to use Stand-
ing Orders is technically correct, I think
your ruling, Mr Speaker, is unwise because
it will set a precedent for future com-
mittees being referred to what have been
described as kangaroo courts. This is a
court of trial. It is not a court which is
inquiring into potatoes, or something like
that. It is the trial of an Individual. That
is what it was intended to be. When the
Premier saw it he said "Here is a way we
can get Bryce", and of course he went
ahead with It.

Sir Charles Court: We want to get the
facts.

Mr Bertram: He was lying in wait.
Mr JAMIESON: He did not think far

enough ahead. Having not thought out
things far enough ahead he has got us
Into as big a muddle as we can possibly
get into in this Parliament-one which we
will regret for many days. He did not
think of all the different efrections It
could take when he took this decision.
He gave us an opportunity we would never
have had if we had been left to our own
devices. I feel the ruling is most unwise
and should be disagreed with because It
will set an unwise precedent for future
Parliaments to follow.

Mr CLARKO: I move-
That the House do now divide.

Motion Put and a division taken with
the following result-

Mr Blalkie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowsa
Mr Cone
Mrs Craig
Mrt Oraydena
Mr Orewar
Mr P. V. Jones
Mr Laurance
Mr Mona
Mir Nanovict
Mr O'Connor

Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertr=
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davie
Mr H. D.' Evans

Mr T. fl. Evans

Ayes-23
Mr Old
Mr O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Ur Shalders
Mr Sibson
Mr Sodeman
Mr Stephens
Mr Tubby
Wr watt

Mr Young
Mr Clarko

(TeIzerJ
Noes-i?

Mr Fletcher
Mr Hatman
Mr Jamieson
Mr T'. H. Jones
Mr may
Mr Skidmore
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mr McIver

(Tell"r)
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pairm
Ayes Noes

Mr MePharlin Mr J. T. Tonkin
Mr Rushton Mr T. J. Burke

Mr Crane Mr Taylor
Mir Thompson Mr Hanter
Dr Dadour Mr Moiier

Motion thus passed.
Question (that the Speaker's ruling be

disagreed With) put and a division taken
with the following result-

Mr Barnett
Mr Bateman
Mr Bertram
Mr Bryce
Mr B. T. Burke
Mr Carr
Mr Davies
Mr H. D. Evans
Mr T. D. Evans

Mr Blalkie
Sir Charles Court
Mr Cowan
Ur Coins
Mrs Craig
Mr Grayden
Mr Groer
Mr P. V. Jones
Mr Isurane
Mr Mensaroe
Mr Nanovich
Mr O'Connor

Ayes-li7
Mr Pletcher
Mr Harman
Mr Jamieson
Mr T. H. Jones
Mr May
Mr Skidmore
Mr A. R. Tonkin
Mr Mclver

(Teller)

Noes-fl3
Mr Old
Mr O'Neil
Mr Ridge
Mr Shalders
Mr Sibeon
Mr Sodenlan
Mr Stephens
Mr Tuibby
Mr Watt
Mr Young
Mr Ciarko

(Teller I

pairs
Ayes Noes

Mr J. T. Tonkin Mr MoPharlin
Mr T. J. Burke Mr Rushton
Mr Taylor Mr Crane
Mr Bartrey Mr Thompson
Mr Molier Dr Dadour

Question thus negatived.

ADJOURNIMENT OF THlE flOUSE:
SPECIAL

SIRt CHARLES COURT (Nedlands-
Premier) [1.11 a.m.]: I move-

That the House at its rising adjourn
until 2.15 p.m. today (Wednesday).

Question put and passed.

House adjourned at 1.22 a.m. (Wednesday)

?Ecqh~tinr i(ttnuril
Wednesday, the 17th November, 1978

The PRBEDENT (the Hon. A. P.
Griffith) took the Chair at 2.30 p.m., and
read prayers.

QUESTIONS (6): ON NOTICE
1.SELBY-GRANTHAM STREETS

INTERSECTION
Roadworks

The Hon. R. F. CLAUGHTON, to the
Minister for Health, representing the
Minister for Transport:

What is the estimated total east
of road reconstruction and asso-
ciated works, and resumption at

2.

present In progress at the inter-
section of Selby and Granthamn
Streets, Wembley?

The Hon. N. E. BAXTR replied:
This work is the responsibility of
the Perth City Council. A grant of
$170 000 baa been Provided from
the Inner Metropolitan Councils
Urban Road Fund towards the
cost of this work.
On completion of roadworks, traf-
fic control signals will be installed
by the Main Roads Department
at an estimated cost of $18 000.

RACECOURSE DEVELOPMENT
ACT

Formation of Committee
The Hon. T. 0. Perry for the Hon.
H, W. GAYTER, to the Minister for
Health, representing the Minister for
Police:
(1) Has* the committee designated

under the Racecourse Develop-
ment Act been formed as yet?

(2) If so, who are to be the commit-
tee members?

(3) If not, when will the committee
be formed?

(4) If the committee has been nom-
inated when is it proposed they
will receive applications for race-
course development?

The Hon. N. E. BAXTER replied:
(1) to (3) The Committee has not

yet been formed but it Will
comprise representatives of Trea-
sury, Totalisator Agency Board
and Racing and Trotting bodies as
provided in the legislation.

(4) Applications will be sought as
soon as the Act has been Pro-
claimed.

3. This question was postponed.

4. WEST COAST HIGHWAY
Extension: Lake Claremont Route
The Hon. T. 0. PERRY, to the Attor-
ney-General, representing the Min-
ister for Town Planning:
(1) Has the Government decided to

use the Lake Claremont route for
the West Coast Highway link?

(2) If the answer is "No" what alter-
native links are to be used?

The H-on. 1. G. MEDCALF replied:

(1) and (2) No decision has yet been
made.
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